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Ordinary Council Meeting 18 November 2025

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 21 OCTOBER 2025

ORDER OF BUSINESS

1 ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF COUNTRY ...cuiiiiiiiiiiiaie et sessssnsssssssassssssssssaasssas st asssssssanssassnas 4

B PR A B R sy s s o e TR oS e s e s b T VRSB A B 4

3 PUBLIC ACCESS .. ovuiiiaiiinussivssmsnavessonsiisenianiopiosisassiassnissssospad savaseas sousiosns essonsi sesios seassions 4

B APOLOGIES ...ttt e s a s s s s eb s sa s sa s e b sedeas b oh s es s o4 et et bt et bt et e b s 5

§  MAYORAL MINUTES i aiinimiimisiesisiie it tiviiwisss wiainebsses vivsossiweson sionsaives sdsavesn 5
Nil.

6  CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES .....coiiiciiiinniiainmiasiscssssnssssssssassnsssssssssssssnesssssassnssassesssnss 5
6.1 Minutes Ordinary Meeting held 16 September 2025...........cccooceviiiiecieire i 5
MATTERS ARISING OUT OF THE MINUTES .......ccoiiiiiiiniie i ssas s asessssses seassssssessns 5
DECLARATION OF INTERESTS ....ccccocinasinmsassassossonsonsossssssessonsassassasssossss sessansssesssassssnssasssn 5

B PRITTIONS ..o necrmmnscomssammasvmnessmrnassrossasevmsonanstsossspseaon seannsorapye sy eyasnsoneasaoss st N s N asbu neROprSs 5
Nil

10 NOTICE OF MOTION ..iiiiiiiinaisiiuniiiimmisiiioimmssniiosests st uisisiiasss 6
101 Notice of Motion - 4WD Access to Airforce Beach - Future Management

w1137 1 e 6
10.2  Notice of Motion - Water Charges Casino Food Company Ltd .................c.cooeeeee. 6

1Y M AYOR S REP ORT . i e e S i i i 6
111 Mayoral Attendance Report 9 September - 13 October 2025............cccoooiiiiiiiiiinnn. 6

12 DELEGATES' REPORTS ..ottt sas s sss st sssssaas s saas s s s s s s s st st sa s s sssn s sssssasesnss 7
Nil

13 MATTERS DETERMINED WITHOUT DEBATE ........cooiiciiserniscess s e s e s sesssssssss e sssssasnanes 7
131 Matters to be Determined Without Debate.................coooiiiii e 7

14 GENERAL MANAGER.......coiiiiiie sttt st s st s s s s st e s st st s s s st st s e s s sasn s s enns 7
Nil.

15 PLANNING AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES .......ccoriuereiisneanninrieseesiesrae s sssessssssssasesnns 7
Nil.

16 INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES & PROJECTS ......cccoiiiiiriissssssssssssssssnssssrassssssssssssssssssessns 8
16.1 Proposed Part Road Closure Petersons Quarry Road & Springhill Road Coraki ...... 8

17 ORGANISATIONAL SERVICES .......ccooiiuiiiniiiirisusnsisiinsssssssasssassssssasssssssan ssassssssssssnssssseseasss 9
171 CO00 O MEOIY PYACHOE: ... . ..o oo roriossismsisnsomassesmsisrsima s b ns e e eSS e ot 9
17.2 Financial Analysis Report - September 2025...............ccooooiiiieeiiieeeeeeeeeeean. 10
17.3 Draft Financial Statements 2024/2025 ... 10
174 Fraud PraVenton POBOY - .. ix: auuits it s ussmassss suniiess s sauninevas S265a s idas sewash agstassaia 12

18 GENERAL BUSINESS ..ot niisresscs e ssssssssea s s e s e s as an s ss s st sa s st s sa s s sasssssasnss 12
Nil

19  MATTERS FOR INFORMATION ....oociiiiiiiiiiiiisinisesisisasesesessssssseasssoras ssnssnsiassssaasas sesssssasass 12
191 Customer Service Report July - September 2025.............ccoooeieriiceee e 12
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19.2  Development Applications Determined Under the Environmental Planning and
Assessment Act for the Period 1 September 2025 - 30 September 2025............... 12

19.3  Grant Application Information Report - September 2025 .............ccccviiiieiiiieiiene 13

194  Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee Minutes - 15 October 2025.................... 13

20  QUESTIONS ON:NOTICE . i ciomsumsinasisrermomnsosminm s st win e i ssnisin s @ssssisrn@reioes 13

201 Response to Questions on Notice - Cr Robert Hayes - Provision of sporting

facilities in new development.............ccccooiiiiiiiiii e e ieaees 13

21  QUESTIONS FOR NEXT MEETING (IN WRITING).....c.ccomremmnsmressemrresenssesresssassnssssssassesens 13

22 MATTERS REFERRED TO CLOSED COUNCIL .......oceieresrirs s e sen e srsesss s ss s se e resees 14
221 Tender VP464381 - Design & Construction of the NRLX Effluent Management

1 (= £ SRS O RSO TRSTP 14

23 RESOLUTIONS OF CLOSED COUNCIL .......c.ccoconmnnnmninsacsssnesnasssssassasansossonssnssssssassssssasass 15
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ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 21 OCTOBER 2025

MINUTES OF RICHMOND VALLEY COUNCIL
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING
HELD AT THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 10 GRAHAM PLACE, CASINO
ON TUESDAY, 21 OCTOBER 2025 AT 6PM

Please note: these minutes are subject to confirmation at the next Council
Meeting. Decisions recorded in the draft minutes are subject to the Council's
Code of Meeting Practice in relation to rescinding decisions.

PRESENT: Cr Robert Mustow (Mayor), Cr Stephen Morrissey (Deputy Mayor), Cr Robert
Hayes, Cr Sandra Humphrys, Cr Lyndall Murray, Cr John Walker

IN ATTENDANCE: Ben Zeller (Acting General Manager), Ryan Gaiter (Director Organisational
Services), Tina Kao (Director Planning and Sustainable Communities), Jenna
Hazelwood (Chief of Staff), Hayley Martin (Manager Finance), Charlene
Reeves (Executive Assistant Infrastructure Services & Projects), Simon
Breeze (IT Support Coordinator)

Jan-Michael Perez and Joan Uyanguren of Audit Office of NSW (Audit Service
Provider — via video link)

1 ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF COUNTRY

The Mayor provided an Acknowledgement of Country by reading the following statement on behalf
of Council:

"Richmond Valley Council recognises the people of the Bundjalung Nations as Custodians and
Traditional Owners of this land and we value and appreciate the continuing cultural connection to
lands, their living culture and their unique role in the |ife of this region in the past, present and
future.”

2 PRAYER
The meeting opened with a prayer by the Acting General Manager.

3 PUBLIC ACCESS
Nil.

Members of the Audit Office of NSW attended on-line and provided a presentation in relation to
Item 17.3 Draft Financial Statements 2024/2025.
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ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 21 OCTOBER 2025

- APOLOGIES

RESOLUTION 211025/1

Moved:  Cr Stephen Morrissey
Seconded: Cr Sandra Humphrys

That the apology received from Cr Sam Cornish be accepted and leave of absence granted.
CARRIED

MOTION

RESOLUTION 211025/2

Moved:  Cr Stephen Morrissey
Seconded: Cr Robert Hayes

That Council approves Cr Lyndall Murray's attendance via an audio-visual link at the 21 October
2025 Ordinary Meeting, due to personal commitments meaning she is absent from the area.

CARRIED

S MAYORAL MINUTES
Nil.

6 CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES

6.1 MINUTES ORDINARY MEETING HELD 16 SEPTEMBER 2025

RESOLUTION 211025/3

Moved:  Cr Sandra Humphrys
Seconded: Cr Robert Hayes

That Council confirms the Minutes of the Ordinary Meeting held on 16 September 2025.
CARRIED

7 MATTERS ARISING OUT OF THE MINUTES

Cr Robert Hayes requested an update on Item 16.3 regarding proposed negotiations for land
acquisition. The Acting General Manager responded that negotiations were sfill being undertaken
with the landholder.

8 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

Cr Robert Hayes declared a non-pecuniary — insignificant conflict in relation to item 10.1 Notice of
Motion — 4WD Access to Airforce Beach — Future Management Options, due to owning properties
near Airforce Beach, Evans Head.

9 PETITIONS

Nil
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ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 21 OCTOBER 2025

10 NOTICE OF MOTION

10.1  NOTICE OF MOTION - 4WD ACCESS TO AIRFORCE BEACH - FUTURE
MANAGEMENT OPTIONS

RESOLUTION 211025/4

Moved:  Cr Lyndall Murray
Seconded: Cr Robert Hayes

That Council receives a comprehensive report to the December 2025 Ordinary Council Meeting,
outlining three costed management options to address ongoing environmental degradation, user
conflict, and compliance challenges at Airforce Beach.

The report should include:

a. Consultation feedback from relevant agencies and the community, including social media
summaries

b.  Historical data on fines, patrols, and enforcement costs
c.  Environmental and cultural risk assessment outcomes
Consideration of comparative case studies from Ballina, Tweed and Kempsey Councils

CARRIED

10.2  NOTICE OF MOTION - WATER CHARGES CASINO FOOD COMPANY LTD

RESOLUTION 211025/5

Moved:  Cr Robert Hayes
Seconded: Cr Lyndall Murray

That a report be brought back to the November 2025 Ordinary Council Meeting, addressing the
following:

1. The results of the water and sewerage pricing structure review, undertaken in response to
Council's 20th December 2022 resolution, including pricing equity and the impacts of major
water users on the Casino water supply.

2. An outline of current water supply arrangements between Council and the Casino Food
Company Ltd, including the charges adopted in Council's 2025-2026 Revenue Policy and
proposed future price paths.

CARRIED

1 MAYOR'S REPORT

111 MAYORAL ATTENDANCE REPORT 9 SEPTEMBER - 13 OCTOBER 2025

RESOLUTION 211025/6

Moved: Cr Robert Mustow
Seconded: Cr Stephen Morrissey
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ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 21 OCTOBER 2025

That Council receives and notes the Mayoral Attendance Report for the period 9 September — 13
October 2025.

CARRIED

12 DELEGATES' REPORTS
Nil
13 MATTERS DETERMINED WITHOUT DEBATE

13.1  MATTERS TO BE DETERMINED WITHOUT DEBATE

RESOLUTION 21102577

Moved:  Cr Robert Hayes
Seconded: Cr Stephen Morrissey

That items 16.1, 17.2, 17 4 identified be determined without debate.
CARRIED

14 GENERAL MANAGER
Nil.
15 PLANNING AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES

Nil.
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ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 21 OCTOBER 2025

16 INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES & PROJECTS

16.1 PROPOSED PART ROAD CLOSURE PETERSONS QUARRY ROAD & SPRINGHILL
ROAD CORAKI

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This report seeks approval to formally close a section of Petersons Quarry Road and Springhill
Road, Coraki, and to classify the land as operational land to support the continued operation and
expansion of the Petersons Quarry facility.

Development Application DA2022/0250 has been approved for the expansion of the extractive
industry at Petersons Quarry, permitting extraction of up to 4,900,000 tonnes over the life of the
quarry. The approved development includes expansion of the quarry footprint over the existing
road reserves known as Petersons Quarry Road and adjoining Springhill Road. A condition of this
development approval is the formal closure of the road reserves located within the quarry's
operational area and the consolidation of the affected land parcels.

Petersons Quarry is owned by Richmond Valley Council and is operated by KIS Plant Pty Ltd
(trading as KIS Quarries) under a lease agreement. Upon closure, the subject section of road
reserve will be incorporated into the adjoining Council-owned quarry land and classified as
operational land, enabling its continued use as part of the quarry operations.

RESOLUTION 211025/8

Moved:  Cr Robert Hayes
Seconded: Cr Stephen Morrissey

That:

1. In accordance with Section 38D of the Roads Act 1993, Council supported the application to
close part Petersons Quarry Road, and Springhill Road Coraki (as shown in Attachment 1).

2. The General Manager be granted delegated authority to execute all necessary
documentation and to affix the Council Seal, as required, to give effect to this resolution.

3. Upon closure, the land is classified as Operational Land.

CARRIED
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ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 21 OCTOBER 2025

17 ORGANISATIONAL SERVICES

171 CODE OF MEETING PRACTICE

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Model Code of Meeting Practice for Local Councils in NSW (the "Model Code") is made under
section 360 of the Local Government Act 1993 (the Act) and the Local Government (General)
Regulation 2021 (the Regulation). Each Council in NSW is required to adopt a Code of Meeting
Practice which includes the mandatory provisions of the Model Code.

The Office of Local Government (OLG) has now released an updated Model Code which has
introduced substantial changes to current mandatory provisions.

A review of Council's current Code has been undertaken, with significant amendments made to
align the current Code with the new Model Code mandatory provisions. Section 361 of the Act
provides that prior to adopting a Code of Meeting Practice, the draft document must be placed on
public exhibition for 28 days, with a community feedback period of not less than 42 days.

RESOLUTION 211025/9

Moved:  Cr Robert Mustow
Seconded: Cr Stephen Morrissey

That Council:

1. Notes the updated Draft Richmond Valley Council Code of Meeting Practice, revised by
reference to The Model Code of Meeting Practice for Local Councils in NSW issued by the
Office of Local Government in August 2025.

2. Publicly exhibits the Draft Code of Meeting Practice for a minimum of 28 days following the
October 2025 Ordinary Meeting.

3. Notes that following a 42-day period to allow for community feedback, the Draft Code of
Meeting Practice will be brought before Council at a future meeting for adoption.

AMENDMENT

Moved:  Cr John Walker
Seconded: Cr Robert Hayes

That Council:

1. Notes the updated Draft Richmond Valley Council Code of Meeting Practice, revised by
reference to The Model Code of Meeting Practice for Local Councils in NSW issued by the
Office of Local Government in August 2025.

2.  Publicly exhibits the Draft Code of Meeting Practice for a minimum 28 days following the
October 2025 Ordinary Meeting subject to the following amendment:

a. insertion of Clause 9.17 “Notwithstanding the provisions of Clause 9.16, Richmond
Valley Council has determined that a councillor may raise a question during the general
business of the meeting agenda which departs from a listed item on an agenda.
Questions raised during general business of a meeting are limited to two (2) questions
per councillor and are subject to the same conditions as questions noted on a meeting
agenda and/or provided with notice."

3. Notes that following a 42-day period to allow for community feedback, the Amended Draft
Code of Meeting Practice will be brought before Council at a future meeting for adoption.
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ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 21 OCTOBER 2025

The amendment was lost on the casting vote of the Mayor.
In Favour: Crs Robert Hayes, Lyndall Murray and John Walker
Against: Crs Robert Mustow, Stephen Morrissey and Sandra Humphrys

[LOST]
The motion was put to the vote and was carried on the casting vote of the Mayor.
In Favour:  Crs Robert Mustow, Stephen Morrissey and Sandra Humphrys
ainst: Crs Robert Hayes, Lyndall Murray and John Walker
CARRIED

17.2  FINANCIAL ANALYSIS REPORT - SEPTEMBER 2025

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The purpose of this report is to inform Council of the status and performance of its cash and
investment portfolio in accordance with the Local Government Act 1993 s.625, Local Govermment
(General) Regulation 2021 cl.212, Australian Accounting Standard (AASB 9) and Council's
Investment Policy.

The value of Council's cash and investments at 30 September 2025 is shown below:

Bank Floating Fixed Rate

Term Deposits TCorp IM Funds

Rate Notes Bonds
$45,000,000 l $6,750,390 $3,000,000

Accounts
$22,898,691

$18,510,186 $96,159,267

The weighted average rate of return on Council's cash and investments at 30 September 2025 was
6.34% which was above the Bloomberg AusBond Bank Bill Index for September of 3.39%
(annualised), which is Council's benchmark.

RESOLUTION 211025/10

Moved:  Cr Robert Hayes
Seconded: Cr Stephen Morrissey

That Council adopts the Financial Analysis Report detailing the performance of its cash and
investments for the month of September 2025.

CARRIED

17.3  DRAFT FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2024/2025

Representatives of the Audit Office of New South Wales provided a presentation to Council on the
outcomes of the audit.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Council's draft financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2025 have been prepared and
subjected to external audit by the Audit Office of New South Wales. A copy of the draft financial
statements and draft auditor's report have been provided separately to Councillors for information.

Council's operating result from continuing operations for 2024/2025 was a surplus of $16.111
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ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 21 OCTOBER 2025

million, with a deficit before capital grants and contributions of $15.768 million for 2024/2025.

Council experienced several challenges this year with increased depreciation, loss on disposal of
assets and the ongoing challenges facing the economy with escalating cost of living, materials and
labour.

Total revenue decreased slightly to $104.039 million, from $109.782 million in 2023/2024 with
$31.879 million in capital grants and contributions. Council received $15.286 million in operating
grants and contributions during 2024/2025, which was slightly higher than the previous year which
largely comprised of disaster recovery funding.

Total operating expenditure, excluding depreciation, was $61.876 million, a slight increase from
$59.457 million in the previous year.

Council’s overall financial position remains strong with net assets of $1.208 billion, including cash
and cash equivalents of $80.141 million. Council has met the benchmark in five out of nine of its
key performance ratios.

RESOLUTION 211025/11

Moved:  Cr Robert Mustow
Seconded: Cr Sandra Humphrys

That Council:

1. Adopts the general purpose financial statements, special purpose financial statements and
special schedules for the year ended 30 June 2025.

2. Certifies the following in respect of the general purpose financial statements and special
purpose financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2025:

(a) Council's general purpose financial statements and special purpose financial
statements have been prepared in accordance with:

(i) The Local Government Act 1993 (NSW) and the regulations made thereunder,
and

(i) The Australian Accounting Standards and other pronouncements of the
Australian Accounting Standards Board, and

(i)  The Local Govemment Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting.

(b) The general purpose financial statements and special purpose financial statements
present fairly Council's financial position and operating result for the year ended 30
June 2025 and:

(i)  The reports are in accordance with Council's accounting and other records;

(ii) The signatories to this statement being the Mayor, a Councillor, Acting General
Manager and Responsible Accounting Officer are not aware of anything that
would make the financial statements false or misleading in any way;

3. Fixes Tuesday, 18 November 2025 as the date for the meeting to present the financial
statements for the year ended 30 June 2025 to the public, invites submissions in writing from
the public until 4pm on Tuesday, 25 November 2025 and provides appropriate public notice
of this meeting;

4.  Adopts the restricted assets (reserves) schedule as detailed in this report.
CARRIED
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ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 21 OCTOBER 2025

174  FRAUD PREVENTION POLICY

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

As part of Council's continuing policy review process, a review has been undertaken of Council's
Fraud Prevention Policy to ensure compliance and contemporary resources have been considered.

RESOLUTION 211025/12

Moved:  Cr Robert Hayes
Seconded: Cr Stephen Morrissey

That Council receives and adopts the updated Fraud Prevention Policy.
CARRIED

18 GENERAL BUSINESS
Nil
19 MATTERS FOR INFORMATION

RESOLUTION 211025/13

Moved:  Cr Stephen Morrissey
Seconded: Cr Sandra Humphrys

That the following reports submitted for information be received and noted.
CARRIED

19.1  CUSTOMER SERVICE REPORT JULY - SEPTEMBER 2025

RECOMMENDATION

That Council receives and notes the Customer Service Report for the period 1 July — 30
September 2025.

19.2 DEVELOPMENT APPLICATIONS DETERMINED UNDER THE ENVIRONMENTAL
PLANNING AND ASSESSMENT ACT FOR THE PERIOD 1 SEPTEMBER 2025 - 30
SEPTEMBER 2025

RECOMMENDATION

That Council receives and notes the Development Application report for the period 1 September
2025 to 30 September 2025.
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ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 21 OCTOBER 2025

19.3  GRANT APPLICATION INFORMATION REPORT - SEPTEMBER 2025

RECOMMENDATION

That Council receives and notes the Grant Application Information Report for the month of
September 2025.

19.4  AUDIT, RISK AND IMPROVEMENT COMMITTEE MINUTES - 15 OCTOBER 2025

RECOMMENDATION

That Council receives and notes the minutes of the Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee
Extraordinary Meeting held on 15 October 2025.

20 QUESTIONS ON NOTICE

20.1 RESPONSE TO QUESTIONS ON NOTICE - CR ROBERT HAYES - PROVISION OF
SPORTING FACILITIES IN NEW DEVELOPMENT

RESOLUTION 211025/14

Moved: Cr Robert Hayes
Seconded: Cr Lyndall Murray

That the response to the question by Councillor Cr Robert Hayes be received and noted.
CARRIED

21 QUESTIONS FOR NEXT MEETING (IN WRITING)
Nil.
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ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 21 OCTOBER 2025

22 MATTERS REFERRED TO CLOSED COUNCIL

RECOMMENDATION

That Council considers the confidential report(s) listed below in a meeting closed to the public in
accordance with Section 10A(2) of the Local Government Act 1993:

221 Tender VP464381 - Design & Construction of the NRLX Effluent Management
System

This matter relates to (d)(i) commercial information of a confidential nature that would, if
disclosed prejudice the commercial position of the person who supplied it.

This matter is considered to be confidential under Section 10A(2) - (d)(i) of the Local Government
Act, and the Council is satisfied that discussion of this matter in an open meeting would, if
disclosed prejudice the commercial position of the person who supplied it.

The Acting General Manager reported that no written representations had been received in respect
of the items listed for consideration in Closed Council,

The Chair called for representations from the gallery.
There were no verbal representations from the gallery in respect of this item.

The Chair advised that under section 10A Local Government Act 1993, the media and public are to
be excluded from the meeting on the basis that the business to be discussed is classified
confidential under the provisions of section 10(2) as outlined above.

RESOLUTION 211025/15

Moved:  Cr Stephen Morrissey
Seconded: Cr Sandra Humphrys

That:

1. Council enters Closed Council to consider the business identified in Iltem 22.1, together with
any late reports tabled at the meeting.

2. Pursuant to Section 10A(2) of the Local Government Act 1993, the media and public be
excluded from the meeting on the basis the business to be discussed is classified
confidential under the provisions of Section 10(2) as outlined above. The correspondence
and reports relevant to the subject business be withheld from access to the media and public
as required by Section 11(2) Local Government Act 1993.

CARRIED

Council closed its meeting at 7:40pm

The open Council meeting resumed at 7:49pm
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ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 21 OCTOBER 2025

23 RESOLUTIONS OF CLOSED COUNCIL

The resolutions of the Closed Council meeting were read by the Acting General Manager (ltem
22.1)

22.1 Tender VP464381 - Design & Construction of the NRLX Effluent Management System
That:

1.  Council declines all tenders for Tender VP464381 — Design & Construction of the NRLX
Effluent Management System, due to all submissions presenting potential delivery, cost or
scope risks.

2.  Applies Clause 178 (3)(e) of the Local Government (General) Regulation 2021 to authorise
the General Manager to enter direct negotiations with suitably qualified contractors with a
view to procure works that provide Council with the best outcome both from a financial and
delivery perspective, and to finalise terms of the contract or agreement and affixing the seal
of Council where necessary.

3. Notes that the outcome of the negotiations will be reported to Council for information at a
future meeting.

The Meeting closed at 7:50pm.

The minutes of this meeting were confirmed at the Ordinary Council Meeting held on 18
November 2025.

...................................................

CHAIRPERSON
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Richmond Valley Council

QUARTERLY BUDGET REVIEW STATEMENT
for the quarter ended 30 September 2025

& "A great community with a relaxed
RIChmond lifestyle, beautiful environment and vibrant
Valley economy.”

Council
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Richmond Valley Council Quarterly Budget Review Statement
Budget review for the quarter ended 30 September 2025
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Richmond Valley Council Quarterly Budget Review Statement
Budget review for the quarter ended 30 September 2025

Responsible Accounting Officer Statement
The followting stastoment (s made in acoordance with Clause 2032) of he Local Government (General) Regulation 2021

It 5 my opinion that the Quarerly Budget Review Statement for Richmond Valley Counal for the quarter ended
30 September 2025 inckcates that Council's projected financial positon at 30 June 2026 will be satistactory, having regard
to the progeciad estimates of mcome and expenditure and the orginal budgeted income and expenditure

The operating resuit before capital grants and contnbutions has decined slightly to a projected defich of $11.820 million, from
$10 807 mion in the ongmal budgel, largely due 1o carry over budgets from the previous year of $0 860 malhon along with $0.154 milkon
In recommendated changes for quarter 1. The unrestnicted cash surplus remains unchanged at $301,339

Councd contnually focuses on taking steps 1o reduce operating deficits whilst still being atde to maintan adequate expenditure
on capal projects and mamntenance of mesting assets  Delivery of capital budgets will continue to be montored in future
budgeting processes as thes has a sgnficant effect on the cash resull

Signed: /"lh@ Date: 131112025

Hayley Martin
Respons bl Accounting OfMcer

Item 17.1 - Attachment 1

Page 21



Ordinary Council Meeting

18 November 2025

DESCRIPTION

General Fund
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et Copia : ol ) — 3 o 0

R - (oo

Opening
Balance

Total Cash
Contributions
Received
As atthis Q
$000's

Total
Expended

Total Interest
Earned

Total imernal
Borrowings
(ro)from
AsatthisQ AsatthisQ Asatthis Q
$000's £000's $000's

Heid as
Restricted Asset

As at 1 July 2025
$000's

As atthis Q
$000°=

Cumulative balance of internal

borrowings

{ro)trom

As atthisn Q

$000"

-
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. O
Approved Carry| changes other
0 Overs than by
Income :
Rates and Annual Charges 33872 1 27251
Liser Charges and Fees 17219 2 5,865
Cther Revenue 80 3 178
Grants and Contnbubons . Operasng 15266 ] 2610
Grants and Coninbutons - Capital 31479 7 s 75183
interest and Investment lnoomo; 2 980 | "2','555{ o € 1410
Cther Income 2923 of 7 80
Net gain from dispasal of assets : 0l 8 0
Total Income from col operations
Employee benefits and on.costs 2852 3 B 550
Materials and Servicas 26 053 286] 10 4 80
Bonowing Casts 800 (5] KD A2
Omer Experses 2650 ) 791
Not Loss from Disposal of Assets 3851 0] 1 70
sxcluding depreciation, amortisation and
impairment of non-financial assets
excluding depreciation, amortisation and
Impairment of non-financial assets
Depreciation, amadtisabon and impairment of non
financel assets 26,052 1 6,203

o] result from
contributions provided for capital purposes

Noles

Diiginal Budge! +/- approved budoet changes in previous quaners = REVISED Budget
Revsad Budget +/- recommended changes ths quarter = PROJECTED year results
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Richmond Valley Council Quarterly Budget Review Statement
Budget review for the quarter ended 30 September 2025
udget Variation Explanations
ecommended changes to Revised Budget

1@ loflowng notas detadl budget varations of $10,000 or mote from the Original Budge! 1o the Revised Budget as at 30 Septomber,
wcluding monthly budget adjustments previousty adopted by Counail

Notes

1

Details

Rates & Annual Charges

No repartable changes for the period 1 July 2025 1o 30 September 2025
User Charges and Fees

Owverall movament less than vanation noles fhreshokl

Other Revenue

Overall movement leas than vanation notes Mreshokd

Grants and Contributions - Operating

Swimming Pools
Contribution from the Coraki Pool Commitiee lowards assential Corak) Pool nfrastructure

Building and Maintaining Roads

Increase Regional Road Block Grant lunding admnistered by Transpord for NSW in fne with the Consumer Price Index (CPI) announced for the 2026
financial year

Environmental Sustainabliity

Realocabon from the capital budge! 1o the operational budgel in ine with the updated work schedule for the Raw Waler Purmp Staton project funded
under the Northem Rivers Watershed Imitiative program

Environmental Management

Funding provided by Fniends of the Koala o carmry out habvial restoration works on designated Koala habial sites al Windsor Park in Coraki

People & Culture
Raise budge! in Ine with actual funds recened for the franstermng of Long Service Leave from other Councils for newly recruled staff

Grants and Contributions - Capital

Libraries
Removal of income budget for the Pubic Library Infrastructure Grant from the 2026 budget, as funds were received in 2025

Changes > $10000  Overall movemer

$0

$200

$9,063

$161,010
$56 189
$20000
$37 500
$15000
$26 835

$204,622
($500,000)
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Richmond Valley Council Quarterly Budget Review Statement
Budget review for the quarter ended 30 September 2025
udget Variation Explanations
ecommended changes to Revised Budget

1@ loflowng notas detadl budget varations of $10,000 or mote from the Original Budge! 1o the Revised Budget as at 30 Septomber,
wcluding monthly budget adjustments previousty adopted by Counail

Notes

_Details
Sports Grounds, Parks and Facilities

Reduce income in 2026 for the Sparts Pnonty Needs Program to shgn with the timing of miesfone clams, as this muit-year program is funded by the
NSW Office of Sport

Raiso ncome budge! for he Rowtalisation of Shark Bay project in kne with the updated program scheduie and miestone clans under the Stronger
Country Communities grant funding program,
Building and Maintaining Roads

Reduce income in 2026 for the Tatham Bedge Rarsing pragect to abgn with the timing of milestone claims under the mulli-year Northem Rivers Recovery
and Resifence Program

Reduce mcome m 2026 for the Woodburn-Evans Head Shared Pathway project to align with the tining of mifestone clawns under the multi-year Road
Safely Program
Rase moome budgel in fine with the final invoice for Broadwaler Bndge upgrade

Raise moome budge! for he Carak) Salety Intiative n iine with imdestone claims under the Novthern Rivers Towns & Villages Resdten! Busness
Activation Program grant

Increase moome budge! in 2026 for the Ml Sports Communily Facility Fund to abgn with the Sming of mitestonse clarms, as this mul-year program is
funded by the NSW Office of Sport

Raise mcome budget for the Broadwater Pedestnan Connection project in kne vath miéestone claimms under the Northern Rivers Towns & Villages
Resfient Business Activation Program grant

Water Supplies

Reduce income in 2026 for the Regional Leakage Reduchon Program fo afign with milestone clams, as thrs mufti-year program is funded by the
Department of Climate Change, Energy, the Environment and Waler

Realocaton from capital to operational for the Raw Water Pump Staton promct in Casrio in line with the updated work schedule for the Northem Rivers
Watershed Initsatve program

Sewerage Services

Ravse ncome budge! for Rappwille Sewer Treatment Plant project m kine with forecasted milestone claims for the 2026 year
Development & Regulatory Services

Proposed increase in heavy haulage budget m line with acfuals

Interest and Investment Income

Overall movement jess than vanation noles threshokl

Changes > $10,000 Overall movemer

($150,000)

$00 333

($1.719,827)
(§1.063 400)

$343 507
$04 500

$67.738

$70.000

($31,288)

($37 500)

$2,970,000

$55,000
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Richmond Valley Council Quarterly Budget Review Statement
Budget review for the quarter ended 30 September 2025
udget Variation Explanations
ecommended changes to Revised Budget

1@ loflowng notas detadl budget varations of $10,000 or mote from the Original Budge! 1o the Revised Budget as at 30 Septomber,
wcluding monthly budget adjustments previousty adopted by Counail

_Nales

Income

Expenditure

Expenditure

10

Expenditure

Expenditure

Expenditure

Expenditure
Expenditure

Details

Overall movement less than vanabon notes threshokl

Net gain from disposal of assets

Waste Management

Proposed increase i hne wath actuals received from Ihe sale of Waste Management owned piant
Employee benefits and on-costs
Eipancial Services

Proposed afocaton of unexpended contritxions from Revenue NSW o part lund Councils revenue officers employee bénelits and on-costs inine with
the funding arrangements

Eleet Management

Proposed afocaton of unexpended grant lunding under the Fresh Start Program furded by the Departiment of Planning, Housing ard Infrastructive for
employee benefits and on-costs of Councils workshop apprentices

Materials and Services

Sports Grounds, Parks and Facilities

Rause budge! for habital restoration and creation for microbats along the rail tral in bne with grant funding provided by the Department of Clhmte
Change, Energy, the Ermvironnent and Walter

Building and Maintaining Roads

Abocate Malevials and Sevvices lunding from the block gramt in live with the CPI ncrease for 2026 1 cover costs for regional road slashing and pothole
repars

Stormwater Management

Proposed reallocation of drainage renewals bucket aliocation fo Mid Rchwond Stormwater Study project

Water Supplies

Reduchon of bulk waler supply budgel per wpdated figutes provided by Rous Cownlty Cownarld

Proposed alocaton of funds from water reseives o inspect stop valves across the Richmond Valley local government area

Changes > $10,000

$54 000

$21610

$207N

$18,500

$15827

$78,012

(350,000)
$170.000

Overall movemer

$37374
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Richmond Valley Council Quarterly Budget Review Statement
Budget review for the quarter ended 30 September 2025
udget Variation Explanations
ecommended changes to Revised Budget

1@ loflowng notas detadl budget varations of $10,000 or mote from the Original Budge! 1o the Revised Budget as at 30 Septomber,
wcluding monthly budget adjustments previousty adopted by Counail

Notes  Details Changes > $10,000 Overall movemer
Environmental Sustainability

Expenditure $25615
A realiocation of $37,500 from the Raw Water Pumyp Station Fencing prayect, which came i under budget, has been made (o the Raw Water Punp

Station Vegetation and Erosion Management project, i line with funding from the Northern Rivers Watershed Initiative This adjustment is partially offsef
by $11.000 of the 2026 budge! howving been exponded in 2025

Environmental Management

Expenditure  Funding provsded by Friends of the Koala fo camy out habitat restoration works an designated Koala habdat sites at Windsor park in Coraki $15,000

1 Borrowing Costs so
Exponditure  Overail movement loss than varabon notes threshokl

12 Other Expenses $0
Expenditure  Overall movement less than vanation notes threshold

13 Net Loss from Disposal of Assets $0
Exponditure  Overall movement less than varation noles ihmshok!

14 Depreciation $0

Expenditure  Overall movement less than vanation notes threshokl

Iltem 17.1 - Attachment 1 Page 27



Ordinary Council Meeting

18 November 2025

Approved | changes other
Carry Overs | than by QBRS

Rates and Annual Chacges 22 887 24,706 0 0 24 0 24
User Charmges and Fees 8976 17390 17 0
Other Revanue 80 241 0 : 9]
Grants and Contributions - 0| 5250 18 208 161 18
Grants and Contrxitions - 30,608 [RYF] ZBan 3

nierest and Investmant 1,732 2074 0
Other Income 2,923 185) 0
Net gain ¥om of assets 0 0 0

otal Income from continuin rations
Employee benefés and on-costs 24,485 25 074 0 0 : 37 1 6,354
Matenals and Services 17,766 24,300 406 87 166 65| 1 7.236
Borrowing Costs 458 430 0 13
Other Expenses 2,650 360 0 0 3 0 3.604 528
Net Loss from Di of Assets 3178 1,350 0 70

otal Expenses from continuing operations

xcluding depreciation, amortisation and
impairment of non-financial assets
operations excluding depreciation,
amortisation and impairment of non-

assels
Depraciation, amortisabion and mpaitment of
non finencisl assets 18616 17,350 0 0 1 0 17, 4,383
result from continuing operat
Net Operating Result before grants and
contributions provided for capital purposes
Notes
Ongnal Budget +/- approved budget changes In prewous quarers = REVISED Budget
Revised Budget +/- recommended changes ths quarer = PROJECTED year results
8
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User Ca

L= B

515

1,765

and Conrbuions - Operating

Inforest and Investment Income

in disposal of assets

Tmmmm 90|

. s
BE|

benafits and on-costs

543

-

1,04

&
=

378

o | o3 &R
lolof2

118

operations exciuding depreciation,
amortisation and impairment of non-
financial assets

Depreaaton, amortsaton snd imparment of
non financial assets

before capital amounts

Grants and Contrbutions - Cepital
after capital amounts

Notes

Orginal Butget +/- app tudget changes n

2 2,01

quaners « REVISED Budget

mmu-:mwm&n@-mmmvmm

01
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Access Charges 6403

Uset Charges 1891

212
218

trade-wasie >

Fees 445

Grants and Contnbubons - Operating 12

)

Inerest and Investment Income 697
Other Incoms -

Net gain from | of assels =
Total Income from continuing operations

of~|B|o|E|R

and on-costs 2_23-5

2,99-

Employee beneits 2
| Materiats and Serices 4718

4694

Bormowing Costs 347

Calculated taxation equivalents 80
Debit Guarantee fee =

Other Expenses -

461 0

olo lojolololo

Met Loss from Di | Of Assets 294

Total Expenses from continuing operations
excluding depreciation, amortisation and
Impalrment of nonfinancial assets

operations excluding depreciation,

amortisation and impairment of non-

financial assets

Deprecaton, amortisation and impaliment of

ron financid aesels 5416
us ope ns

before capital amounts

Grants and Contrbutions - Capital 839
us ope ns

after capital amounts

Notes.

390

2825

Orignal Budget +/- approved budget changes in previous quariers = REVISED Budget
Revised Buoget +/- recommended changes is quarter =« PROJECTED year resufts

1,319

41
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. O b SBudg mm dg 0 dge b
024/20 0 0 ‘ﬂm“ Carry m‘. other 0 o &/20 025 02602026

000 000 ﬁ.nwnm 000 000 000 000 000
CAPITAL FUNDING
Rates and ofther untied funding 1,562 2 479 0 0 0 2,479 132 2611 132 634
Copital Grants & Contributions 30 432 40, 254 _4)5] 188 0 40 484 (385) 40 090 (164 4178
Reserves - Exiemal Restnctons 11,073 24 146 706 1511 1) 26, 364 5393 31,756 7,610, 2 805
Reserves - Intlemally Allocated 9,400 Q9,209 679] 827 D) 10,715 (950) 9,766 557 3,051
HNew Loans - 0 0 0. 0 0 0 0 0 0
Proceeds from sale of assats o8 102 0 0 0 102 [ 102 0 0
Dpersting Grants & Contbutions 1,437 3,353 0 0 0 3,353 0 3,353 0 172
Total Capital Fundi 2 7 83, % : 10,84(
CTI LT — i8] 25%8] ol &10] 10840
wiP 13,653 0 0 0 0 —_ 0 0 0 0 0
ilew Assets 12,115 24,132 537 984 0 25,654 4,800 0514 6,382 2,330
Asset Renowa 29,074 55411 891 1,542 0 57 844 (680} 57,163 1,753 B.501
Dfher - plegse geo)
FoaT g i B 1 S ) S — | — S_— L _— - —
Net Capital Funding - Surpius 1DeRch | - ) ()] 0 _— )

Notes
Orgna Budget +/- approved budget changes in previous quarters = REVISED Budget
Revised Budget +/- recommended changes this quarter = PROJECTED year results

"
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Richmond Valley Council Quarterly Budget Review Statement

Budget review for the quarier snded 30 September 2028

Budget Variation Explanations
Recommended changes to Revised Budget

The following notes detall budget varatons of $10,000 or mosm trom he Original Budget to the Revised Budoet as at 30 Septenber

ludng y tnadget a previcusly adopted by Council

Notes  Detalls Changes > $10.000 Overall
Capltal Expenditure $4,179.06%
Sparts Grounds, Parks aod Eacifies

Expendiure  Ravss budge! for Sian Payne Lightng sohdon project wheh des grant Aunding of 200 000 wnde Ihe pvcpect suppord rogram Rmdwd by the Offce of $629.005
Sport and & Council coninbudion of $326.025

Expondluse  bcwass 2020 budgat Ly e Arfarce Besch capark upgrade  Anw with e updaded grand peogram Amded by the Offcs of Loce! Gowmment undw e $62.008
NSW 3o veve wenther and floods 2022 progewm for ighly impacied Counals

Expeodiure  Rass 2028 dudget for the Scondwaler Hall Tennis Courls rasivfating with S56 162 funded by the OWce of Local Gowemment under NSW severe woalher $67,505
and Aoods 2022 progeam for fughly mpacted Councis and §1,.34) beng Councie contnduton for 2006

Expondh, Pro n the Woodturn Oval playground budged funded Hom mewanos reaenes i ne mih proect plan §51.0M

Expendiure Ruobudpucuml hethal court end landacaping sl Crawford Square m Ane with the proposed work scheduie n Counaily section 712 pimn $35,000
Community Contres and Halls

Expendiurs RmW!aEmlHndSenwmnHWanWMMmMMnmanwnda suchon 7 12 plany $100.000

Expandl d ¥ in M Bedkgei for Rappwile C by Hall St traatonant i e wath pegpect planang Amdwd from completed section 7 17 prowots §45,000
cqummmbuq#
Swinming Pools

Expendiure  Raae budget for pool clubbouse project from genaral revenue i ine with Counals confributon $24. 7%
Buliding and Maintating Roads
Sigrificant ¢ huages [Over SHIL0GO)

Expendiurs  Reducs 2029 Tatham Bndge Raswg budgel in Mo weith actuals i 2025 and an updated work achedule due 10 the progect beng a mully year program (31 684 r92)

Expendiure  Redvotion of X126 bodge! 10 akgn with the updeled nork scheduie for grand funded propects ander the R E Rowd Repar Fund. Adustmenis 121.085)
mohade educing e Wyan Road budgst by $160,000. Sextomalie Road by 54 101 ammw"wkmbyﬂ.) 100

Expendiure Recuce the owrent year budget by $84.622 for Litte Pi¥ Sroet road reconeducton due fo works completed i the previous year (58 622)

Expendiure  Rawos budge! m bne wih ihe varton granted wide ihe Crown Land Flood Recovery Program Br reconsuction of Halrdeads Driw $560.000

Expendture  Rame budget for the Corak Safety intiatve with $5¢ 500 tunded weder $he grant Northem Rners Towns & Vivages Restert Buaness Actvation Program $135,000
and Courc contbutng $40 500 from guany reserves

Expendiute  frcrease e budoe i accordaace with e Restied 5 Activation Progeam sy of, wiseh ickaes o 570000 grant and # 530000 condrifon $75.000
fom Couner ¥ iz proposed o hund the Councd coninbution as bilows: $5,000 hom section 712 msenves §5,000 from Cavino foodpath ranowals and
520 000 from the sxiatng budgw for pecke sirnn wovks

Expandiuie  Budgel for aval drmnage projwat af M1 45 Ainded Som | bucin! slocsh $60,.000
Other changus [Betwnun 510,000 & 550,000

Expundiure Kavtr & Gutter - Dyraata Streed Funded from carry aver works reserve L R R k]

Expendture Foopaths Evans - Woodburn St Funded from section 7 12 reserw £35 000

Expandiure Urban Roads - A d Qreo! wad Funded from Pacte Comp $34,363

Expendiure Ganino s - Goundry Law Redad Futidwd hrom camy over works reas $23.751

Expediure Evane Hoad Roads - Captmn Cook Dewve pavement works  Funded from quarry reserves $16.15¢

Expendiure Foapaths Casino - OF Park fo Swapension Brdge Grant Funded - Mifd Sports Communty Facy Fund £13579

Expandiure H ‘s Bicige Awrb pph Trunafar funds from operationsl budps! §12.000

Expendture Sewind Rursl Rowds - W Dooald Bridge Rood $25.000 Realocation from avel mads hasvy paiching budge! %
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Richmond Valley Council Quarterly Budget Review Statement

Budget review for the quaress snded 30 September 2028

Budget Variation Explanations
Recommended changes to Revised Budget

The tollowing notes detall budget varatons of $10,000 or mosm trom he Original Budget to the Revised Budoet as at 30 Septenber

y tnadget a previcusly adopted by Council

Detalls

Stormwater Managemunt
Reafocation of the sxsfing buupe? for dramags (8500000, b Sheel ($105 000 and construchon of a coen dae on Crown moed mesrve
for 50,000 towards hgher provly proectn, as prevasly mpofed to Couned

The i progects (Qreater $havn 5100000 1o whch alormwater fuads have Des rewlbcated we Fated below The remaving $78 012 has Deen reafiocated 1o
Foral fundy fo conduct & af s shiafy Koy Ihe Mid Bichmond and 560 000 hay been ransfernd wanty rumd dranage on MR145

Dransge Casno - dnprovements
Dranage Casno - Redne Cuverts
Dranape Comak - Ghrch Lane

Dranage Comk - Impr
Dranape Evans - Woodburm St Ot Reph
Dmsvn Shnhmow

Draage Evans - dnpr

Water Supplies
Add acfed budgel Ry dhe raw wader pump sdadon roller dooe iefirbeshmen ! Lach 1o waler e rvas

Resdocation of $37 500 of Notthwrn Frvevs Wadershed Iniadive program fundeng Fom e raw wales pumg stabon Anong promal wieh has come # under
tudgel (o Hie row wafer purmp stadon veg: wxd eragon > { proyec!

Propect af Commo water Foadnent pine for fer i wosds plant funchonalty desgn emoved fom 2026 achedide and added back o waler reserves

Expendiure

Expandiuie

Add ended budgot for tank dran valves propct back to waler reserves

Add budged to wafer rosenves m Ine with the progect plan for the Casno maervar scuth booster sfafion upprade because of budpe! beng Srought forward 4o
cover actuals v excess of the 2025 budge?

Rasfocation of $£0 000 from water reservor flow medsr rerewas pvosec? fo waler lnak reduction works offse! by 55 587 added back t0 grant reserve im ine
with the propact plan

Propased budge! of S$44 850 Ky e purchase of & forkilt Aeded 57, 500 Som the bocket alocabion for pfanf purchases aod 537 150 Bom walsy ressow s

Expendiure
Expandiure

Prop bodge! alo for $he nocth resenvar COTV system funded from waler reserves out of the wended 2025 futwe s aVocads

Sewurage Services
Remove Evans Head pump strton RTU apgrade budpe? and add back b sewer reserves
RuwmnkaSm Trasiment Plant propeat @ Ane with updated propect plan v the 2020 pear

&;ondm-
Expendiure

o for the SPSUI kat\pr sower montorng proyed! from sewer resevves cut of unespended 2025 operadonal projects
Ruhcarmdsuiwhun SPSE03 awtchbosnd project and 514 250 from SP561 1 swichboand prowct 10 fund 8 prged? 10 prowde power S0 Rileys MV
SPS401 from the STP generator
Rase budget for sewer treadment plant Hach DRIBO0 purchazes Amded from sewer fidure renewsls bucket allocaton

Pro o alo @ new Soor at the Covaki wovks depot funded Fom quarmy reserves

Elost Management
Reduce plant purchases budget in bne weh updated long e Mnancal plan after 2024 year-and mwew.

Prop Dbuoige! Tor aweing of newfy comalrucied Gombs Mrdvostion ahed funded 521 729 fom quary rserves and o eallocation of 59,220
nswyance funda

Changes > $10.000 Overall movemaent

(3685 .000)

$57 000
$62,000
543 500
$24 000
£11.000
$140 000
§52.000
$118,000
§26,000

(§6i2 359
($97 500)
1520 000
($17.907)
(S12.381)
(§5.587)

$37.150
$10.600

(825 000)
4875378
$60.000
s0

$16.500

£10,100

(5814 269)
Eralrs ]
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Richmond Valley Council Quarterly Budget Review Statement
Budget review for the quarer snded 30 September 2028
Budget Variation Explanations
Recommended changes to Revised Budget
The tollowing notes detall budget varatons of $10,000 or mor trom e Original Budget to the Revised Budost a5 at 30 Septernbar
oxciuding monthly budget sdfuntrmod previously adopted by Council
Notes Detalls Changes > $10.000 Overall movement

Expendture  Reaflocate 5126 500 fom Mammoone pound upgrades 1o the Evang Head overngh! snclosure proyect, imded undey the Office of Local Goverament's (823212
program for Mghly impacted Councis afer the 2027 foods. This Aas been offied by adklng back §23 412 10 moerves m e with coment proyect plan
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Apgroved
Approved Carry | changes other
Overs than g
Total Cash, Cash lents & lnvestments 80,141 64,144 { (4,075 159
- . : -1 . - 1 y - . e y
T ERiN i [} L) ()
r [ 3 i 3 ﬁs r
- A [{ 3 A L
- Wasr 1 3
conty - a2 L 4 [X
u
waste mant 8 9.22 01 X
m: ement { 1]
ranls and Cor lations D,Fnl N ( i) gsﬁi [ (5]
Loans X
Bonds and A 4 1) 456
Other 234 0 242
Total Externally Restricted
Cash, cosh equivalents & investments not subject
to external restrict
Loave Entifements 1 27 AT 1658
Employse Loave Enfifemants - Richmaond Uppes
Clarence Regional L 0 56
Rictrmond Claswrce Regionw! Lirary 0 1] 78 130)
Rates Variaton i ol
Fnancial Assitrcs Grant Adwance Payment [ 3 é'l 2686
S o2  —
Heplacsm wt i { 9 1
Roal Extate and Infias) 431 2 28
P ons Quary v {58) 1
W o Q 3] 1749
(I Rl b
Road Rerabiitaion Resarve 277
eorthern HI vestock Exchange 1
Ofher W asts Managum st [
O " Maragemart - Plant Reserve il
HMS State Roads Maintonance Contract
Publc Cometeries Perpetual Manenance Reserve 12 3
Mortheen Hioers Fead 11l Mairtaoancs Russoy 4
ding 1
Fiood Enquiry Funds
(Carry et Works 3 7706, (05 i1 pX ]
Unaliocated
Notes
Exjernal testicions - must be wsed K 8 specic purpose and are 1ot 15 be used for peneead operatane. The funds are bound by of hird party {hatt resinchs her use
Imamal Adocations « Counol have by o ooy o work and any forwed plans Gentfied by Councl. These aflocatons are al the dscoretion of councl.
15

Iltem 17.1 - Attachment 1 Page 35



Ordinary Council Meeting

18 November 2025

Contributions R Total Total Internal Held as Cumulative balance of

Balance Total  Total Actual Amounts Borrowings Restricted internal borrowings
Inerest Expendod (to)from Assot (to)from
Earned
As at 1 July As at this As at this As at this As at this As at this
2025 (1] Q1 1 Q Q
| z $000's $000's $000's $000's $000's
Drainage 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Roads 1,580 223 Q 0 0 3 0 1,799| 0
Traffic Facilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 i}
Parking 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0| 0
Dpen space 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1) 1]
Community facilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total $7.11 Under plans 1 - = - | 3] T Q_E [
57.11 Not under plans 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
57.12 Levies 2,304 45 0 0 0 13 0 2337 Q
57.4 Planning agreements 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
564 Contributions 11,038 48 0 0 0 701 Q 10,385 0
Other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
L T S N ;| N | — S— L — | :
‘iotes

Al devaloper contrbubons recsived are 1o be disclosed and dstinguashed as cash or non cash. Recognition occurs when Counci gains contrd over the assel (cash ot non cash)
souncis have obligations to prowvde faciliies from contnbutions revenue levied on developears undar the provisions of 7.4 7 11 and 7 12 of the EPA Act 1979
Jeveloper cortnbutions may only be expended for the purpose Tor which the contnbutions weee required, howaver council may apply contributions accoeding 10 their proporties established in work schaedules for Ihe contibutions plan

16
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HOW TO READ YOUR QUART OVERVIEW

(Name) Council
Budget review for the quarter ended - XX XXXXXXX 20XX

Prevenans Yoar  Curvent Yeor

fLSp—
DESCRIPTION Mgt
FDuninr
OO0’
Uenarnl fune of € ¢ 0 ‘ [ ) ( .l (
Wirter | ! | [ Q 0 ] \ | 1‘1 C
Suvwer Fard [ [ ! ( 0 'l’ .' ) l ( «‘n C
Cansol doted o 0 o 0 0 " 0 0 ol o
| Considatos 0 0 0 o o o o o o
ol
Totl b romr s of
Extermal rest e bons l [ [ 0 | ] i ol [
ternel AHoCeton ( ( ¢ 0 { [l 0| l 0 { } C
Unailocaied [} o Q o of i ) [} o «
Total Cash and Cash { quavalents al 0 0 o o 0 o o 0 o
Capdal ) uroew " i ) 1 | ) n | ﬂ’ q
novtnl £ epand e . ¢ o 0 | a 2 . o ¢
Mot Capstan ol " o o 0l ° o ol ul o

1 Approved changes ~ Review - Q1
These are the changes for Q1 that were approvad by a previous council resoluton. The ongnal
buaget amount plus the approved changes determing the revised budget n thes QBRS

2.  Revised budget
This figure is the onginal budget plus prior quaner approved changes

3 Recommended changes for council resolution
Any change to the budget must be approved by counal By resolving to accept this QBRS,
Councillors are approving the recommended changes

4. Projected year end result
This figure is the revised forecast position of the fund at financal year end. The projected year
end result is the onginal budget plus the approved and recommended budget changes

The Consolidated Fund 1s the cornbination of the General, Water and Sewer funds  Some
counois do nol provide water o Sewer 10 their communites

5. Varance
This column shows the vanance batwaen the onginel adopted budge! and the rovised projected
year resull. Councdlons should ba aware of the reasons behind 1he vanance

6. Actual YTD
Actual year to date IS the resull from 1st July up untid the end of the quarter being reported

7 Internal allocations and unallocated reserves
Intemal alocations and unaliocaled reserves demonstrate the level of iqudty of Council
Speaafcally, the Council's abilty to cover short term habilities such as empioyee entilements

8 Capital
The capital overview should inform councd as to whether the capital works program s on track to
deliver programs outhned n the IP&R documentation

The funds are reported separately (o ensure council, and the community have a clear picture
of how the respoctive infrastrudiure and sarvice dolivery streams are pardforming -
Indepondent of councils broadet (Consolidated) account
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This report documents Richmond Valley Council’s A :
financial performance throughout the 2024-2025 financial
year.
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General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2025

Contents Page
Understanding Council’s Financial Statements 3
Statement by Councillors and Management 4

Primary Financial Statements:
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Statement of Comprehensive Income 6
Statement of Financial Position 7
Statement of Changes in Equity 8
Statement of Cash Flows 9

Notes to the Financial Statements 10

Independent Auditor’s Reports:

On the Financial Statements (Sect 417 [2]) 84
On the Financial Statements (Sect 417 [3]) 87

Overview
Richmond Valley Council is constituted under the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW) and has its principal place of business at:

10 Graham Place
Casino NSW 2470

Council's guiding principles are detalled in Chapter 3 of the LGA and includes:

principles applying to the exercise of functions generally by council,

principles to be applied when making decisions,

principles of community participation,

principles of sound financial management, and

principles for strategic planning relating to the development of an integrated planning and reporting framework.

A description of the nature of Council’s operations and its principal activities are provided in Note B1-2.

Through the use of the internet, we have ensured that our reporting is timely, complete and available at minimum cost. All press
releases, financial statements and other information are publicly available on our website: www.richmondvalley.nsw.gov.au.

Pamn 7 1 Q8
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Understanding Council's Financial Statements

Introduction
Each year NSW local governments are required to present audited finandal staterments to their council and community.
What you will find in the Statements

The financial statements set out the financial performance, financial position and cash flows of Council for the financial year
ended 30 June 2025,

The format of the financial statements is standard across all NSW Councils and complies with both the accounting and reporting
requirements of Australian Accounting Standards and requirements as set down by the Office of Local Government.

About the Councillor/Management Statement

The financial statements must be certified by senior staff as ‘presenting fairly’ the Coundil's financial results for the year and
are required to be adopted by Council - ensuring both responsibility for and ownership of the financial statements.

About the Primary Financial Statements

The financial statements incorporate five “primary” financial statements;

1. The Income Statement

Summarises Council's financial performance for the year, listing all income and expenses. This statement also displays
Council's original adopted budget to provide a comparnson between what was projected and what actually occurred.

2. The Statement of Comprehensive Income
Primarily records changes in the fair value of Council's Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment.

3. The Statement of Financial Position
A 30 June snapshot of Council's financial position indicating its assets, liabilities and “net wealth".

4, The Statement of Changes In Equity
The overall change for the year (in dollars) of Council's "net wealth”.

5. The Statement of Cash Flows

Indicates where Council's cash came from and where it was spent. This statement also displays Council's original adopted
budget to provide a comparison between what was projected and what actually occurred.

About the Notes to the Financial Statements

The Notes to the Financial Statements provide greater detail and additional information on the five primary financial statements.
About the Auditor's Reports

Council's financial statements are required to be audited by the NSW Audit Office.

In NSW the auditor provides 2 audit reports:

1. an opinion on whether the financial statements present fairly the Council's financial performance and position, and
2. their observations on the conduct of the audit, including commentary on the Council's financial performance and financial

position.
Who uses the Financial Statements?

The financial statements are publicly available documents and must be presented at a Council meeting between seven days
and five weeks after the date of the audit report.

The public can make submissions to Council up to seven days subsequent to the public presentation of the financial statements.

Council is required to forward an audited set of financial statements to the Office of Local Government.

Parn LrrQa
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Richmond Valley Council

General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2025

Statement by Councillors and Management

Statement by Councillors and Management made pursuant to Section 413 {2c) of the Local
Government Act 1993

The attached general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with:
+ the Local Government Act 1993 and the regulations made thareunder
«  the Australian Accounting Standards issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board

+ the Local Gavernment Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, these statements:
+  present fairy the Council's operating result and financial position for the year
« accord with Council's accounting and other records.
We are not aware of any matter that would render these statements false or misleading in any way.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of Council made on 21 October 2025,

7y eF

Robert Mustow Stephen Morrissey
Mayor Deputy Mayor
21 October 2025 21 October 2025

e

Ben Zeller Hayley Martin
Acting General Manager Responsible Accounting Officer
21 Oclober 2025 21 October 2025

P 4 Q8
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Richmond Valley Counal | Income Statement | for the year ended 30 June 2025
Richmond Valley Council

Income Statement
for the year ended 30 June 2025

Original
unaudited
budget Actual Actual
2025 $°000 Notes 2025 2024
Income from continuing operations
34074 Rates and annual charges A 33,672 32419
16,174 Usaer charges and fees 2 17,219 16,476
136 Other revenues 2.3 80 B7
12,526 Grants and contributions provided for operating purposes 224 15,286 13,329
38,168 Grants and contnbutions provided for capital purposes 824 31,879 41,401
1,687 Interest and investment income B2-5 2,980 3134
2,773  Otherincome e 2923 2,936
105,541 Total income from continuing operations 104,039 109,782
Expenses from continuing operations
26,103  Employee benefits and on-costs 839 28,522 26,293
19,750 Materials and services B3.2 26,053 25,254
861 Borrowing costs 833 800 933
2,729 Other expenses B5 2,650 28611
= Netloss from the disposal of assets Ba.1 3851 4366
Total expenses from continuing operations excluding
depreciation, amortisation and impairment of non-financial
40,443 assets 61,876 59,457
Operating result from continuing operations excluding
depreciation, amortisation and impairment of non-financial
56,008 assets 42,163 50,325
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment of non-financial
20,358 assets B34 26,052 23370
35,740 Operating result from continuing operations 16111 26,955
35,740 Net operating result for the year attributable to Council 16,111 26,955
~ Net operating result for the year before grants and contributions )
{2,458) provided for capital purposes (15,768) (14,4486)
The above Income Statement should be read in corguncion with the accompanying notes
Pamn & S Q8
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Richmond Valley Council

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 30 June 2025

$ '000
Net operating result for the year - from Income Statement

Other comprehensive income:

Amounts which will not be reclassified subsequent to operating result

Gain (loss) on revaluation of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
Impairment (loss) reversal / (revaluation decrement) relating 1o infrastructure,
property, plant and equipment

Total items which will not be reclassified subsequent to operating result

Total other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to Council

16,111

cL.T 31,508

Gr7 o (3,086)
28,512

28,512
44,623

The above Staterment of Comprehansive Income should be read in conyunction with the accompanying notes

2024

26,955

185,104

_(36,700)
148,404

148,404
175,359

Pavs R o Q8
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Richmond Valley Council

Statement of Financial Position

as at 30 June 2025
$'000

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments

Receivables

Inventones

Contract assets and contract cost assets

Other
Total current assets

Non-current assets
Investmants
Receivables
Inventones

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (IPPE)

Right of use assets
Total non-current assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities
Payables

Contract liabilities

Lease [abilities

Borrowings

Employee benefit provisions
Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Payables

Contract liabiliies

Leasa liabilities

Borrowings

Employee benefit provisions
Provisions

Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities
Net assets

EQUITY
Accumulated surplus
IPPE revaluation surplus

Council equity interest

Total equity

The above Statement of Financial Posstion should be read in conjunchion with the accompanying notes

Richmond Valey Council | Statement of Financial Position | as at 30 June 2025

G333

c34

2025

22,961
51,430
12,985
5224
1,891
434
94,925

5750
1,884
1,112
1,162,660
529

1,171,935
1,266,860

12,684
16,370
90
3,385
5,062
37,591

952
99

107
11,260
212
8,009
20,729
58,320

1,208,540

476,963
___m™sm
1,208,540

1,208,540

2024

37,600
33446
12,037
2261
4,146
3%
89,846

11,250
1,655
1,374

1,110,849
699

1,125,927
1215773

12,692
9,108
114
3,893
5029
30,836

615

256
260
14,646
205
5,038

21,020

51,856
1,163,917
460,852
703,065
1,163,917
1,163,917

Pamn T 1 Q8
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Richmond Valley Council

Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2025

$ '000

Opening talance at 1 .July

Net operating result for the year

Other comprehensive income

Gain (oss) on evaluation of Infrastiuciure, property, plent and equipment
Impasmmant (loss) reversal relating %o IPPAE

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

Closing balance at 30 June

Richmond Valley Counal | Statement of Changes in Equity | Tor the year ended 30 June 2025

Accumulated

460,852

16,111

c17 -

Cci.7 -

16,111

476,963

The above Statement of Changes in Equity should be read m conjunchon with the accompanying notes

20256
IPPE
revaluation
surplus

703,066

31,598
(3,086)
28512

28512

731,577

Total
equity

1,183,917

16,111

31,598
{3,086)

28,512
44,623

1,208,540

Accumusated
Surpius

433 897

26,955

26,955

460,852

185,104
{36,700)
148 404

148,404
703,065

Total
equity

988,558

26,955

185,104
(36,700)
148 404
175,358

1,163,917
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Richmond Valley Council

Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 30 June 2025

Original
unaudited
budget Actual Actual
2025 $°'000 2025 2024
Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts:
34.074 Rates and annual charges 33,628 31,308
16,174 User charges and fees 20,119 15,570
1.687  Interest received 3,052 3,001
50,697 Grants and contributions 53,586 54,077
3,066 Other 7,235 582
Payments:
(26,119) Payments to employees (28,528) (26,709)
(20513) Paymaents for materials and services (32,869) (25,463)
{861) Borrowing cosis (577) (829)
- Bonds, deposits and retentions refunded (270) (340)
(21108) Other s i (1 :799}
56,007 Netcash flows from operating activities 55,376 49,488
Cash flows from investing activities
Receipts:
2.627 Sale of real estate assets - -
833 Proceeds from sale of IPPE 948 832
2 Deferred debtors receipts 3 4
Payments:
—  Purchase of investments (4) (3,480)
-~ Acquisition of term deposits (11,000) (5,000)
(62,968) Payments for IPPE (53.427) (58,043)
(1,850) Purchase of real estate assets  (2.464) (336)
(61,354) Net cash flows from investing activities (65,944) (66,023)
Cash flows from financing activities
Recelpts:
- Proceeds from borrowings - 2,600
Payments:
(3,891) Repayment of borrowings (3,804) (3,523)
~  Principal component of lease payments (177) (439)
(3,891) Netcash flows from financing activities (4,071) (1,362)
(9,148) Netchange in cash and cash equivalents (14,639) (17,897)
37,600 Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 37,600 55,497
28,452 Cash and cash equivalents at end of year G1-1 - 22,961 37,600
57,180  plus: Investments on hand at end of year 012 57,180 44 696
85632 Total cash, cash equivalents and investments 80,141 82.296

The above Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conyunchon with the accompanying notes

Parn Qs Q8
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Richmond Valley Council

Contents for the notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2025

A About Council and these financial statements
A1-1 Basis of preparation

B Financial Performance

B1 Functions or activities
B1-1 Functions or activities - income, expenses and assels
B1-2 Components of functions or activities

B2 Sources of income
B2-1 Rates and annual charges
B2-2 User charges and fees
B2-3 Other revenues
B2-4 Grants and contributions
B2-5 Interest and investment income
B2-6 Other income

B3 Costs of providing services
B3-1 Employee benefits and on-costs
B3-2 Materials and services
B3-3 Borrowing costs
B34 Depreciation, amortisation and impairment of non-financial assets
B3-5 Other expenses

B4 Gains or losses
B4-1 Gain or loss from the disposal, replacement and de-recognition of assets

B5 Performance against budget
B5-1 Material budget variations

C Financial position

C1 Assets we manage
C1-1 Cash and cash equivalents
C1-2 Financial investments
C1-3 Restricted and allocated cash, cash equivalents and investments
C1-4 Receivables
C1-5 Inventories
C1-6 Contract assets and Contract cost assets
C1-7 Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
C1-8 Other

C2 Leasing activities
C2-1 Council as a lessee
C2-2 Council as a lessor

C3 Liabilities of Council
C3-1 Payables
C3-2 Contract Liabilities
C3-3 Borrowings
C3-4 Employee benefit provisions
C3-5 Provisions

C4 Reserves

12
12
14

14
14
15

16
16
17
18
19
23
23
24
24

25
25
26
27

28
28

33

3

31
N

BLERER
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Richmond Valley Council

Contents for the notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2025

C4-1 Nature and purpose of reserves

D Council structure

D1 Results by fund
D1-1 Income Statement by fund
D1-2 Statement of Financial Position by fund

D2 Interests in other entities
D2-1 Subsidiaries, joint arrangements and associates not recognised

E Risks and accounting uncertainties
E1-1 Risks relating to financial instruments held
E2-1 Fair value measurement
E3-1 Contingencies

F People and relationships

F1 Related party disclosures
F1-1 Key management personnel (KMP)
F1-2 Councillor and Mayoral fees and associated expenses
F1-3 Other related parties

F2 Other relationships
F2-1 Audit fees

G Other matters
G1-1 Statement of Cash Flows information
G2-1 Commitments

G3 Statement of developer contributions
G3-1 Summary of developer contributions
(G3-2 Developer contributions by plan

H Additional Council disclosures (unaudited)

H1-1 Statement of performance measures — consolidated results (graphs)

H1-2 Council information and contact details

88 388 &8 &

S8 8

7

74

74
74
74
75

75
75

76
76

78

79

81
81
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A About Council and these financial statements

A1-1 Basis of preparation

These financial staterments were authorised for issue by Council on 21 Octaber 2025, Council has the pawer to amend and
reissue these financial statements in cases where critical information is received from public submissions or where the OLG
directs Council to amend the financial statements.

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These palicies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and
Australian Accounting Interpretations, the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW) and Local Government (General) Regulation
2021 (Regulation), and the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting. Council is a not for-profit
entity for the purpose of preparing these financial statements.

The financial statements are presented In Australian dollars and are rounded to the nearast thousand dollars.

Unless otherwise indicated, all amounts disclosad in the financial statements are actual amounts. Spacific budgetary amounts
have been included for comparative analysis (to actuals) in the following reports and notes:

* Income statement
» Statement of cash flows
« B5-1 Material budget variations

and are clearly marked.

Historical cost convention

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
certain infrastructure, property, plant and equipment and investment property.

Significant accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Council's accounting policies. Estimates and judgements are continually
evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, induding expectations of future events that may have a
financial impact on the Council and that are befieved to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
Council makes estimates and assumptions conceming the future,
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results.

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year include:

(1) estimated fair values of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment - refer Note C1-7
(11) estimated tip remediation pravisions — refer Note C3-5
(i) employee benefit provisions - refer Note C3-4,

Natural Disaster Events

During the 2021/2022 financial year, Council was faced with catastrophic flooding to our region. This event significantly
impacted our Local Govemment Area (LGA). These financial challenges have presented themselves at a time when the
community is relying heavily on Council to maintain essential services and to provide economic stimulus by supporting local
suppliers and job creation schemes. In March 2025, our region experienced another natural disaster in the form of Cyclone
Alfred resulting in flooding and damage to assets.

Impacts during 2024/2025 due to flooding largely consisted of damage to the road network along with delays in the supply and
dalivery of materials as well as constraints on contractor availability.

Despite the ongoing impacts of natural disaster events, Council is confident that it will continue as a going concem in the
long-term.

ronling s fes novt naon Pano 17 1 Q8
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Richmand Valley Council | Notes to the Finanaial Statements 30 June 2025

A1-1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Significant judgements in applying the Council's accounting policies

i.  Impairment of receivables — refer Note C1-4,

ii. Determination of whether performance obligations are sufficiently specific and whether the contract is within the scope
of AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and / or AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities — refer to Notes
B2-2 -B24.

iii. Determination of the lease term, discount rate (when not implicit in the lease) and whether an arrangement contains a
lease — refer to Note C2-1.

Monies and other assets received by Council
The Consolidated Fund

In accordance with the provisions of Section 409(1) of the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW), all money and property received
by Coungil is held in the Council's Consolidated Fund unless it is required to be held in the Coundil's Trust Fund

Cash and other assets of the following activities have been included as part of the Consolidated Fund:

s General purpose operations
«  Water service
= Sewerage service

The Trust Fund

In accordance with the provisions of Section 411 of the Local Govermment Act 1993 (NSW) (as amended), a separate and
distinct Trust Fund is maintained to account for all money and property received by the council in trust which must be applied
only for the purposes of, or in accordance with, the trusts relating to those monies.

Trust monies and property subject to Council's control have been included in these reports. A separate statement of monies
held in the Trust Fund is available for inspaction at the council office by any person free of charge

Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of associated GST, unless the GST incurred is not
recoverable from the taxation authority. In this case it is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part
of the expense,

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The netamountof GST recoverable
from, or payabie to, the taxation authority is included with other recelvables or payables in the Statement of Financial Position.

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis, The GST compaonents of cash flows arising from investing or financing activities
that are recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority, are presented as operating cash flows.

Volunteer services

Council utilise @ number of volunteer services however these are deemed not material to recognise on the income
statement.

New accounting standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective
Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for the 30 June 2025

reporting period. Council has not applied any pronouncements before its cperative date in the annual reporting period beginning
1 July 2025.

As at the date of authonsation of these financial statements Council does not consider that any of these new (and still to be
applied) standards and interpretations are likely to have a material Impact on the Council’s future financial statements, financial
position, financial performance or cash flows.

New accounting standards adopted during the year

During the year Council adopted all accounting standards and intespretations {as issued by the Australian Accounting
Standards Board) which were mandatorily effective from the first time at 30 June 2025,

None of these standards had a significant impact on reported position or performance.
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B Financial Performance
B1 Functions or activities

B1-1 Functions or activities — income, expenses and assets

InCome, expanses and assets have boen deectly altnbuled 1o the following funchons or activities. Detalls of those fJunchons or activRies are provided in Note B1-2

Income Expenses Operating result Grants and contributions Carrying amount of assets
$ 000 2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024
Functions or activities
Strengthening our role n the region 3330 6875 3,602 3,803 (272) 29712 4796 6316 41533 46,108
Creating great places to five 64,303 65,724 65,755 62,515 (1,452) 3,200 36,039 41117 1,101,384 1,045 243
Protecting our uniqus environment 9,888 9 504 11,793 10,978 (1,905) (1,384) 241 574 18,035 18 145
Delivering for our community 26,518 27 569 6,778 5431 19,740 22,158 6,089 6,723 105,908 106,187
Total functions and activities 104,039 109,782 87,928 82827 16,111 26,955 47,165 54730 1,266,860 1215773
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Richmond Valiey Council | Notes to the Finanaial Statements 30 June 2025

B1-2 Components of functions or activities

Details relating to the Council's functions or activities as reported in B1-1 are as follows:
Strengthening our role in the region
+ Rebuild and reconnect communities
+ Establish the Richmond Valley as a regional growth centre
*  Grow and diversify our economy
Creating great places to live
+  Celebrate our local identity and lifestyle
+ Live sustainably in a changing climate
* Provide infrastructura that meets community needs
Protecting our unique environment
* Preserve native bushland and biodiversity
*  Maintain healthy nvers, beaches and waterways
*  Manage waste responsibly
Delivering for our community
* Lead and advocate for our community

* Manage resources responsibly
* Provide great service
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B2 Sources of income

B2-1 Rates and annual charges

$ '000 2025 2024

Ordinary rates

Residential 11,000 10,529

Farmland 3,362 3229

Business 2,308 2219

Less: pensioner rebates (mandatory) (359) (360)

Rates levied to ratepayers 16,311 15,617
Pensioner rale subsidies received 198 198

Total ordinary rates 16509 = 15815
Annual charges (pursuant to s496, 496A, 4968, 501 & 611)

Domestic waste management services 5,390 5,361

Stormwater management services 207 208

Water supply services 1911 1819

Sewerage services 8,610 8,159

Waste management servicas (non-domestic) 1,239 1,257

Less: pensioner rebates (mandatory) (433) (442)
Annual charges levied 16,924 16,360

Pensioner annual charges subsidies recelved:

- Water 75 76

- Sewerage 73 74

- Domestic waste management 91 4

Total annual charges 17,163 16,604

Total rates and annual charges 33,672 32,419

Council has used 2022 year valuations provided by the NSW Valuer General in caloulating its rates.

Material accounting policy information
Rates and annual charges are recognised as revenue at the baginning of the rating period to which they relate. Prepaid rates
are recognised as a financial liability until the beginning of the rating period.

Pensioner rebates relate to reductions in rates and certain annual charges for eligible pensioners’ place of residence in the
local government council area.

Pansioner rata subsidies are received from the NSW Government to provide a contribution towards the pensioner rebates and
are recognised within the underilying revenue item based on their substance.
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B2-2 User charges and fees

$ 000 Timing 2025 2024
Specific user charges (per s502 - specific ‘actual use’ charges)

Water supply services 1 5944 5630
Sewerage services 1 2,045 1627
Waste management services (non-domestic) 1 34 31
Total specific user charges , 8,023 7,288
Other user charges and fees

() Fees and charges — statutory and regulatory functions (per s608)

Planning and building regulation 2 507 541

Private works — section 67 1 432 212

Regulatory!/ statutory fees 2 159 141

Registration fees 2 21 224

Total fees and charges - statutory/regulatory 1,309 1,118

() Fees and charges — other (Incl. general user charges (per s608))

Aerodrome 2 13 14

Caravan park 2 108 102
Cemeteries 2 427 337

Transport for NSW works (state roads not controlled by Council) 1 3,844 4,595
Northern Rivers Livestock Exchange 2 423 290
Waste disposal tipping fees 2 2,201 2073

Casino showground 2 82 18
Richmond Upper Clarence Regional Library 2 26 23
Sports grounds 2 25 27
Other 2 648 587
Total fees and charges - other 7,887 8,070
Total other user charges and fees 9,196 9,188
Total user charges and fees 17.219 16,476
Timing of revenue recognition for user charges and fees

User charges and fees recognised over time (1) 12,290 12,099
Usaer charges and fees recognisaed at a point in time (2} 4,920 4377
Total user charges and fees 17,218 16,476

Material accounting policy information
Revenue arising from user charges and fees is recognised when or as the performance obligation is completed and the
customer recaives the benefit of the goods / services being provided.

The performance obligation relates to the specific services which are provided to the customers and generally the payment
terms are within 30 days of the provision of the service or in some cases such as caravan parks, the customer is required to
pay on arrival or a depostt in advance, There is no material obligation for Coundil in relation to refunds or retums.

Where an upfront fee is charged such as joining fees for the leisure centre the fee is recognised on a straight-line basis over
the expected life of the membership.

Licences granted by Council are all either short-term or low value and all revenue from licences is recognised at the time that
the licence is granted rather than over the term of the licance.
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B2-3 Other revenues
$ '000

Fines
Insurance claims recoveries
Other

Total other revenue

Timing of revenue recognition for other revenue

Other revenue recognised over time (1)

Other revenue recognisad at a point in time (2)

Total other revenue

Richmond Valiey Council | Notes to the Finanaial Statements 30 June 2025

Timing 2025 2024
2 47 68

2 23 1

2 10 8
80 87

80 87

80 87

Material accounting policy information for other revenue
Where the revenue is eamed for the provision of specified goods / services under an enforceable contract, revenue s

recognised when or as the obligations are satisfied.

Statutory fees and fines are recognised as revenue when the service has been provided, the payment is received or when

the penalty has been applied, whichever occurs first,

Other revenue is recorded when the payment is due, the value of the payment is notified, or the payment is received, whichever

occurs first,
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B2-4 Grants and contributions

Operating  Operating Capiltal Capital

$ '000 Timing 2025 2024 2025 2024
General purpose grants and non-developer
contributions (untied)
General purpose (untied)
Current year allocation
Financial assistance — general componeant 2 307 289 - -
Financial assistance - local roads component 2 768 81 - -
Payment in advance - future year allocation
Financial assistance — genaral componant 2 3,581 4,017 - —
Financial assistance - local roads component 2 - 1,751 - -
Amount recognised as income during current
year 4,656 6,118 - =
Special purpose grants and non-developer
contributions (tied)
Cash contributions
Bushfire and emergency services 2 1,438 1,740 - 15
Employment and training programs 129 = = =
Energy saving certificate 1 - 3 - -
Economic Development 2 289 - 1,985 -
LIRS subsidy 2 - 1 - -
Library — Richmond Upper Clarence Regional 2 647 615 57 9
Natural disaster funding 1 3,156 629 11,237 13,729
Northern Rivers Livestock Exchange 2 - - 46 1
Public Halls 1 - - 265 13
Sewerage (exd. section 64 contributions) 2 12 28 218 1,779
Sporting grounds, parks and facilities 1 89 89 3,273 10,350
Strategic planning 2 258 187 - -
Street lighting 2 98 96 - -
Transport (roads to recovery) 2 1,183 1,002 - -
Transport (other roads and bridges funding) 1 1,914 1,070 12,039 12,561
Touriem & Events 2 264 270 - -
Waste and sustainability 1 25 200 - 78
Water supplies (excl. section 64 contributions) 2 24 22 87 199
Other specific grants and contributions 2 1,075 1,230 520 940
Total special purpose grants and
non-developer contributions — cash 10,601 7,182 29,727 39,674
Non-cash contributions
Dedications — subdivisions {other than by s7.4 and
s7.11 - EP8A Act, 564 of the LGA) 2 - - 49 675
Bushfire and Emergency Services 2 29 29 656 8
Sporting grounds 2 - - - -
Public Halls 2 - - - =
Total other contributions —- non-cash 7 29 20 705 683
Total special purpose grants and
non-developer contributions (tied) 10,630 7211 30432 40,357
Total grants and non-developer
confributions 15,286 13,329 30,432 40,357
Comprising:
- Commonwealth funding 5,910 7,120 79 6,155
— State funding 8,110 5316 30,055 32,918
= Other funding 1,266 893 208 1,284

15286 13320 30432 40,357
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B2-4 Grants and contributions (continued)

Developer contributions

Operating Operating Capital Capital
$'000 Hates Timng 2025 2024 2025 2024
Developer contributions:
(s7.4 & s7.11 - EP&A Act, s64 of the
LGA): G3
Cash contributions
S 7.11 ~ contributions towards
amenities/services 2 - - 167 116
S 7.12 - fixed development consant levies 2 - - 454 294
S 64 — water supply contributions 2 - - 225 199
S 64 — sewerage service contributions 2 - - 601 435
Total developer contributions - - 1,447 1,044
Total contributions - - 1,447 1,044
Total grants and contributions 15,286 13,329 31,879 41,401
Timing of revenue recognition
Grants and contributions recognised over time (1) 5,184 1,991 26814 36,71
Grants and contributions recognised at a point in time
() 10,102 11,338 5,065 4,670
Total grants and contributions 15,286 13,329 31,879 41,401
ronting st e noyl naoe Pana M L Q8
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B2-4 Grants and contributions (continued)

Unspent grants and contributions

Certain grants and contributions are obtained by Council on the condition they be spent in a specified manner or in a future
period but which are not yet spent in accordance with those conditions are as follows:

Operating Operating Capital Capital

$ '000 2025 2024 2025 2024
Unspent funds at 1 July 1,968 3,145 27,526 28,445
Add: Funds recognised as revenue in the

reporting year but not yet spent in

accordance with the conditions - - 2,041 2,243
Add: Funds received for tha provision of

goods and services in a future period 4174 664 7,728 10,090
Less: Funds recognised as revenue in previous

years that have been spent during the

reporting year - = - =
Less: Funds received in prior year but revenue

recognised and funds spent in current

year (669) (1.841) (5,774) (13.252)
Unspent funds at 30 June 5473 1,968 31,521 27 526

Unspent funds are largely comprised of ($'000's):-
$3,218 Casino Industrial Precincts Upgrade
$1,905 Rappville Sewer

$2.410 Disaster Recovery Funding

$1,934 Crown Lands Flood Recovery Halsteads
Dr

$1,841 Regional and Local Roads Repair Fund
$1,390 NRLX Effiuent Management System
$1,073 TINSW Woodburn Evans Head Shared
Pathway

$14,923 Developer contributions

$1,186 Pacific Compiete Contributions

Material accounting policy information
Grants and contributions - enforceable agreement with sufficiently specific performance obligations

Grant and contribution revenue from an agreement which is enforceable and contains sufficiently specific performance
obligations is recognised as or when control of each performance obligations is transferred.

The performance obligations vary according to the agreement but include milestones or schedule of costs. Payment terms
vary depending on the terms of the grant, cash is received upfront for some grants and on the achieverment of certain payment
milestones for others.

Performance obligations may be satisfied either at a point in time or over time and this is reflected in the revenue recognition
pattemn. Point in tima recognition occurs whan the beneficiary obtains control of the goods / services at a single time (e.g.
completion of the project when a report / outcome is provided), whereas over time recognition is where the control of the
services is ongoing throughout the project (e.g. provision of community health services through the year).

Where control is transferred over time, generally the input methods being either costs or time incurred are deemed 1o be the
most appropriate methods to reflect the transfer of benefit.

Capital grants

Capital grants received by Council under an enforceable contract for the acquisition or construction of infrastructure, property,
plant and equipment to Identified specifications which will be under Council's control on completion are recognised as revenue
as and when the obligation to construct or purchase is completad.

For construction projects, this is generally as the construction progresses in accordance with costs incurred since this is
deamed to be the most appropriate measure of the completeness of the construction project,

For acquisitions of assets, the revenue is recognised when the asset is acquired and controlled by the Counal.
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B2-4 Grants and contributions (continued)

Developer contributions

Coundil has obligations to provide facilities from contribution revenues levied on developers under the provisions of sections
74,711 and 7.12 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 (EP&A Act).

While Council generally incorporates these amounts as part of a Development Consents Order, such developer contributions
are only recognised as income upon receipt by Council, due to the possibility that individual development consents may not
be acted upon by the applicant and, accordingly, would not be payable to Counal,

Developer contributions may only be expended for the purposes for which the contributions were required, but Council may
apply contributions according to the priorities established in work schedules for the contribution plan.

Other grants and contributions

Assats, including cash, received from other grants and contributions are recognised at fair value when the asset is received.
Coundil considers whether there are any related liability or equity items associated with the asset which are recognised in
accordance with the relevant accounting standard.

Once the assets and liabilities have been recognised then income is recognised for any remaining asset value at the time
that the asset is received.
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B2-5 Interest and investment income

$ 000 2025 2024
Interest on financial assets measured at amortised cost

— Overdue rates and annual charges (indl. special purpose rates) 109 88
- Cash and investments 2,871 3,046
Total interest and investment income (losses) 2,980 3,134

Interest and investment income is attributable to:

Unrestricted Investments/financial assets;

General Council cash and investiments 2,980 3,134
Total interest and investment income k 2980 3,134

Material accounting policy information
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest rate at the date that interest is eamed,

B2-6 Other income

$'000 Moty 2025 2024
Reversal of impairment losses on receivables

Rates and annual charges (3) -
User charges and fees 36 -
Other ) —4 - -
Total reversal of impairment losses on receivables G4 37 -
Falr value Increment on investments

Fair value increment on investments through profit and loss = 1,480 1,128
Total fair value increment on investments 1,480 1,128
Rental Income

Other lease income

Quarry leases 1,153 1,518
Room/Facility Hire . 253 292
Total other lease income 1,406 1,808
Total rental income 22 1,406 1,808
Total other income 2,923 2,936
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B3  Costs of providing services

B3-1 Employee benefits and on-costs

$'000

Salaries and wages

Employee leave entitlements (ELE)
Superannuation

Workers’ compensation insurance

Fringe benefit tax (FBT)

Payroll tax

Training costs (other than salaries and wages)
Other

Total employee costs

Less: capitalised costs
Total employee costs expensed

Material accounting policy information

Richmand Valley Council | Notes to the Finanaial Statements 30 June 2025

2025 2024
21,880 20428
4987 4433
2,841 2,565
463 455

17 115
167 142

254 238
241 338
30,950 28,714
(2,428) (2.421)
28,522 26,293

Employee benefit expenses are recorded when the service has been provided by the employee.

Retirement benefit obligations

All employees of the Council are entitied to benefits on retirement, disability or death. Council contributes to various defined
benefit plans and defined contribution plans on behalf of its employees,

Superannuation plans

Contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense as they become payable. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available,

Coundl participates in a defined benefit plan under the Local Government Superannuation Scheme, however, sufficient
information to account for the plan as a defined benefit is not available and therefore Council accounts for its obligations to
defined benefit plans on the same basis as its obligations to defined contribution plans, i.e. as an expense when it becomes

payable — refer to Note E3-1 for mare information.
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B3-2 Materials and services

$ ‘000 Hotes 2025 2024
Raw matenals and consumables 20,197 18,915
Audit Fess F2-1 129 86
Previously other expenses:;

Councilior and Mayoral fees and associated expenses F1-2 228 222
Advertising 51 81

Bank charges 85 80
Electricity and heating 820 1,150
Insurance 1,068 1,006
Internal Audit 16 15
Street lighting 209 208
Subscriptions and publications 187 170
Telephone and communications 436 392
Valuation fees 82 85
IT expenses 1,364 1,214

Postage, printing & stationary 197 283
Other expenses 346 228
Legal expenses:

- Legal expenses: other 215 590
Expenses from leases of low value assets 423 519
Total materials and services 26,053 25,254

Material accounting policy information
Expenses are recorded on an accruals basis as the Council receives the goods or services,

B3-3 Borrowing costs

$ '000 Hate s 2025 2024
(1) Interest bearing liability costs

Interest on leases 13 17
Interest on loans - 773 827
Total interest bearing liability costs 786 844
Total interest bearing liability costs expensed 786 844
(ii) Other borrowing costs

Discount adjustiments relating to movements in provisions (other than ELE)

- Remediation liabilities s 14 B9
Total other borrowing costs 14 89
Total borrowing costs expensed : 800 933

Material accounting policy information
Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any quaiifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required
to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Other borrowing costs are expensed as incurred.
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B3-4 Depreciation, amortisation and impairment of non-financial assets

$ '000 Fotes 2025 2024

Depreciation and amortisation

Plant & Equipment c 2,738 2315
Land cr7 896 449
Infrastructure c17 21914 20,061

Right of use assets 241 170 330

Other assets G1-7 79 83

Reinstatement, rehabilitation and restoration assets C35C87 255 132
Total depreciation and amortisation costs 26,052 23,370
Impairment / revaluation decrement of IPPE

Land improvements {depreciable) 231 -

Infrastructure: C1.7

— Buildings — specialised (8) -
- Roads 3,670 38814
- Bridges - (2,114)
- Sewerage network ~(807) -
Total gross IPPE impairment / revaluation decrement costs 3,086 36,700
Amounts taken through revaluation reserve C17 (3,086) (36,700)
Total IPPE impairment / revaluation decrement costs charged

to Income Statement - -
Total depreciation, amortisation and impairment for

non-financial assets 26,052 23,370

Material accounting policy information

Depreciation and amortisation
Depreciation and amortisation are calculated using the straight line method to allocate their cost, net of their residual values,
over their estimated useful lives.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Council assets held at fair value that are not held primarily for their ability to generate net cash flow, and that are deemed to be
specialised, are no longer required to be tested for impairment under AASB 136. This is because these assets are assessed
on an annual basis to ensure that the carrying amount is not materially different from fair value and therefore an impairment
loss would be captured during this assessment.

Other assets that do not meet the criteria above are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less
costs to sell and value in use.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Impairment losses for revalued assets are firstly offset against the amount in the revaluation surplus for the class of asset,
with only the excess to be recognised in the Income Statement.
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B3-5 Other expenses

$ 000 2025 2024
Impairment of receivables

Other - 21

Total impairment of receivables G4 - 21

Other

Contributions/levies to other levels of govemment

Election expenses 182 -
-~ Emergency sarvices levy (includes FRNSW, SES, and RFS levies) 85 109
-~ NSW fire brigade levy 135 135
~ NSW rural fire service levy 1,377 1,400
-~ Waste lavy 207 289
Donations, contributions and assistance to other organisations (Section 356) B 664 657
Total other expenses 2,650 2,611

Material accounting policy information
Other expenses are recorded on an accruals basis when Council has an obligation for the expenses.

Impairment expenses are recognisad when identified.
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B4 Gains or losses

B4-1 Gain or loss from the disposal, replacement and de-recognition of
$ '000 Hotes. 2025
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment Ci7

Proceeds from disposal 948
Less: carrying amount of assets sold/written off ~(4,709)
Gain (or loss) on disposal (3,851)

Gain (or loss) on disposal of assets held for sale C15
Less: carrying amount of assets sold/\written off -
Gain (or loss) on disposal -

Net gain (or loss) from disposal of assets ~ (3,851)

Material accounting policy information
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. The gain or

assets
2024
832

_(5,169)
(4,337)

(29)
(29)
(4,366)

loss on sale of an

asset is determined when control of the asset has irrevocably passed to the buyer and the asset is de-recognised
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B5 Performance against budget

B5-1 Material budget variations

Council's original budget was adopted by the Council on 25 June 2024 and is not required to be audited. The original projections
on which the budget was based have been affected by a number of factors, These include state and federal government
decisions, induding new grant programs, changing economic activity, environmental factors, and by decisions made by
Coungil.

While these General Purpose Financial Statements include the original budget adopted by Council, the Act requires Council to
review its financial budget on a quarterly basis, soitis able to manage the variation between actuals and budget that invariably
occur during the year.

Material variations of more than 10% between original budget and actual results or where the variance is considered matenal
by nature are explained below.

Variation Key: F = Favourable budget variation, U = Unfavourable budget variation.

2025 2025 2025
$'000 Budget Actual wmmeenne VALANCE weevmene
Revenues
Other revenues 136 80 (56) 41)% U

Council's other revenues were under budget by $56,000 (41%). This is largely due to a reduction in revenue from
infringements fines due to a lower number of infringements issued over the course of the year.

Operating grants and contributions 12,529 15,286 2,757 22% F
Council's grants and contributions were over budget by $2,757,000 (22%). In many instances, the actual amount of grants
received depends upon decisions made by the State and Federal Governments after the original budget is adopted and on
the outcome of various grant applications submittad throughout the . The main increase includes natural disaster
funding of $3,156,785 received as a result of the February 2022 and March 2025 flood events for emergency and immediate
reconstruction works, It is also important to note that Council only received 50% of it's Financial Assistance Grant in
advance for 2025/2026 with the previous year receiving 85% in advance. This resulted in operating grants being $2.19mil
under budget.

Capital grants and contributions 38,168 31,879 (6,289) (16)% U
Council's grants and contributions were under budget by $6,289,000 (16%). In many instances, the actual amount of grants
received depends upon decisions made by the State and Federal Governments after the original budget is adopted and on
the outcome of various grant applications submitted throughout the year. The main variance is due to delays in the
commencament of significant capital works projects on roads and bridges, such as the $17.5mil Tatham Bridges
Replacement in which we recognised only $7.78mil in income this year, due to the ongoing delays from wet weather and the
impacts of Cyclone Alfred.

Interest and investment revenue 1,687 2,980 1,203 7% F
Council's interest and investment revenue was over budget by $1,293,000 (77%). This was mainly due to consistently high
term deposit rates within the economy along with high levels of cash available to be investment. The original budget is
slightly conservative due to the continued level of uncertainty in the economy,

Expenses

Materials and services 19,750 26,053 (6,303) (32)% U
Materials and services were over budget $6,303,000 {(32%). This is largely attributed to additional maintenance works being
undertaken on Council's assets and road network, funded from unspent funding from previous years in internal cash reserves,
along with an increase in contract costs for works with an offsetting income item, such as Councils maintenance contract with
TINSW for state highways. Further contributing towards this increase is the cost of living pressure facing the economy as a
whole such as the increasing costs of services.

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment of
non-financial assets 20,358 26,052 (5,694) (28)% U

Depreciation was over budget by $5,694,000 (28%). Councils asset are indexed annually in between comprehensive
revaluations, in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards to record the fair value of assets, the rates of which are
unknown at the time of budget setting. The past 3 years has seen significantly higher rates of indexation than has been applied
in the past. Along with a significant number of asset renewals, Council has also revised the remaining useful life of the Casino
Sewerage Treatment Plant which has resulted in an additional $2.68m in depreciation for the year ended 30 June 2025, Council
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B5-1 Material budget variations (continued)

2025 2025 2025
$ '000 Budget Actual === Variance —-—---

revised the depreciation budget during the September quarterly budget review to better align with the expected result which
is not reflected in the original budget reported.

Net losses from disposal of assets - 3,851 (3,851) = U
The net profit or loss on disposal of assets is unknown at the time of setting the original budget. A revised budget was applied
during the September quarterly budget review fo better account for net losses from the disposal of assets based on a 3 year
average. The net loss from the disposal of assets is $3,851,000, details of which are disclosad in note B4.
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C Financial position
C1 Assets we manage

C1-1 Cash and cash equivalents

$'000 2025 2024
Cash assets

Cash on hand and at bank 2,325 6,183
Cash equivalent assets

~ Deposits at call 20,636 31417
Total cash and cash equivalents 22961 37,600

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents

Total cash and cash equivalents per Statement of Financial Position 22,961 37,600
Balance as per the Statement of Cash Flows 22,961 37,600

Material accounting policy information

For Statement of Cash Flow presentation purposes, cash and cash equivalents include: cash on hand; deposits held at call
with financial institutions; other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are
readily convertible 1o known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank
overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities on the Statement of Financial Position.
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C1-2 Financial investments

2025 2025 2024 2024
$ 000 Current Non-current Current  Non-current
Financial assets at fair value through the profit and loss
Managed funds 17,930 - 16,446 =
Total 171930 = ___16446 _ =:
Debt securities at amortised cost
Long tarm deposits 28,000 - 17,000 -
Government and semi-govemment bonds 3,500 1,000 - 4,500
NCD's, FRN's (with maturities > 3 months) 2,000 4,750 - 6,750
Total 33,500 5,750 17,000 11,250
Total financial investments 51,430 5,750 33,446 11,250
Total cash assets, cash equivalents and
investments - 74391 5,750 71,046 11,250

Material accounting policy information

Financial instruments are recognised initially on the date that the Council becomes party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. On initial recognition, all financial instruments are measured at fair value plus transaction costs (except for
instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss where transaction costs are expensed as incurmed).

Financial assets
All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending
on the classification of the financial assets.

Classification

On initial recognition, Council classifies its financial assats into the following categories — those measured at:
* amortised cost
» fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
» fair value through other comprehensive income — equity instrument (FVOCl-equity)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition.

Amortised cost
Assels measured at amortised cost are financial assets where:
+ the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows, and
» the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

Coungil's financial assets measured at amortised cost comprise trade and other receivables, cash and cash eqguivalents and
term deposits in the Statement of Financial Position,

Subsequent to initial recognition, these assets are camed at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less
provision for impairment. Interest income, impairment and gains or loss on de-recognition are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets through profit or loss

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income as desaribed
above are measured at fair value through profit or loss. Net gains or losses, including any interest or dividend income, are
recognised in profit or loss.

Council's financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss comprise investments in managed funds in the Statement
of Financial Position,
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C1-3 Restricted and allocated cash, cash equivalents and investments
$ '000 2025 2024

(a) Externally restricted cash,
cash equivalents and

investments
Total cash, cash equivalents and investments 80,141 82,296
Less: Externally restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments (57,677) (49,786)
Cash, cash equivalents and investments not subject to external
restrictions 22,464 32,510

External restrictions
Extarnal restrictions included In cash, cash equivalents and investments above comprise:

Speafic purpose unexpended loans — general - 1,052
Bonds and deposits 456 535
Specific purpose unexpended grants — general fund 14,369 9,142
Spedific purpose unexpended grants — water fund 21 125
Spedific purpose unexpended grants — sewer fund 1,905 327
Developer contributions ~ general 3,884 3478
Developer contributions — water fund 3,615 3,203
Developer contributions — sewer fund 7424 6,480
Spedific purpose unexpended grants (recognised as revenue) - general fund 3,57 4,048
Water fund 7,060 6,056
Sewer fund 4,065 6,141
Domestic waste management 8,029 4912
Stormwater management 844 1,330
Other 2,364 2,957
Total external restrictions 57,677 49,786

Cash, cash equivalents and Investments subject to external restrictions are those which are only avallable for specific use
by Council due to a restriction placed by legisiation or third-party contractual agreement.

$ '000 2025 2024
(b) Internal allocations

Internal allocations
At 30 June, Council has intemally allocated funds to the following:

Plant and vehicle replacement 643 2388
Real estate and infrastructure 313 4288
Employees leave entitlement 1,706 1631
Carry over works 2,862 3,780
Insurance 313 1,848
Other waste management 1,051 4,382
Petersons quarry 1,756 1,449
Public cemeteries perpetual maintenance 59 114
Quarry rehabilitation 699 634
Richmond Upper Clarence Reglonal Library 2 R
TINSW state road maintenance contract 6 6
Road rehabilitation 2,834 2649
Rural road safety program 115 121
Unexpended rates variations 1,213 833
Financial Assistance Grant Advance Payment 3,581 5767
Woodview quarry 1,698 1693
Northern Rivers Rail Trall Maintenance 562 640
Event Funding 44 43
Total internal allocations 22,394 32,310
roniting el fe novl naon Pana 1L s QL

Item 17.2 - Attachment 1 Page 71



Ordinary Council Meeting 18 November 2025

Richmond Valley Council | Notes to the Finanaal Statements 30 June 2025

C1-3 Restricted and allocated cash, cash equivalents and investments (continued)

Cash, cash equivalents and investments not subject to external restnctions may be internally allocated by resolution or
policy of the elected Council.

$'000 2025 2024
(c) Unrestricted and unallocated

Unrestricted and unallocated cash, cash equivalents and investments 70 200
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C1-4 Receivables

2025 2025 2024 2024
$ '000 Current Non-current Current Non-current
Rates and annual charges 2,968 586 2813 546
Interast and extra charges 110 5 11 6
User charges and fees 4414 443 6,006 584
Accrued revenues
- Interest on investments 429 - 499 -
Bank guarantees 868 881 712 553
Deferrad debtors 2 2 2 5
Government grants and subsidies 2,757 - 507 -
Net GST receivable 733 - 1,085 -
Other debtors 788 - 407 -
Total 13,069 1,917 12,152 1,694
Less: provision for impairment
Rates and annual charges (30) (18) (29) (17
User charges and fees (47) (14) (75) (21)
Other debtors 7 (1) (11) (1)
Total provision for impairment —
receivables (84) (33) (115) (39)
Total net receivables 12,985 1,884 12,037 1,655

Material accounting policy information

Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment. Receivables are generally due for settlement within 30 days.

Impairment

Impairment of financial assets measured at amortised cost is recognised on an expected credit loss (ECL) basis. When
determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition, and when estimating
ECL, the Council considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort.
This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis based on Council's historical experience and informed
credit assessment, and including forward-looking information.

When considering the ECL for rates debtors, Council takes into account that unpaid rates represent a charge against the
rateable property that will be recovered when the property is next sold. For nan-rates debtors, Council uses the presumption
that an asset which is more than 30 days past due has seen a significant increase in credit nsk,

The Council uses the presentation that a financial asset is in default when:
* the other party is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Council in full, without recourse by the Council to actions
such as realising security (if any is held) or
» the financial assets (for non-rates debtors) are more than 90 days past due.

Credit losses are measured as the present value of the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance
with the contract, and the cash flows expected to be received. This is applied using a probability weighted approach. On initial
recognition of the asset, an estimate of the expected credit losses for the next 12 months is recognised. Where the asset
has experienced significant increase in credit risk then the lifetime losses are estimated and recognised. There has been no
change in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions made during the current reporting period.

The Council writes off a trade receivable when there is information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings, or when the receivables are considered significantly past due, whichever occurs first,

None of the receivables that have been written off are subject 1o enforcement activity. Where the Council renegotiates the
terms of recaivables due from certain customers, the new expected cash flows are discounted at the original effective Interest
rate and any resulting difference to the carrying value is recognised in profit or loss,

Rates and annual charges outstanding are sacured against the property.
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C1-5 Inventories

$ '000

(i) Inventories at cost
Real estate for resale
Stares and materials

Total inventories

Externally restricted assets

There are no restrictions applicable to the above assets.

(i) Other disclosures

$'000

(a) Details for real estate development
Residential - undeveloped
Industrial/commercial

Total real estate for resale

(Valued at the lower of cost and net realisable valua)

Material accounting policy information

Raw materials and stores, work in progress and finished goods

Richmand Valley Council | Notes to the Finanaial Statements 30 June 2025

2025
Current

3,790
1434
5,224

2025
Current

3,790

3,790

2025
Non-current

1,112

1,112

2025
Non-current

1,112
1112

2024
Current

1,064
1,197
2,261

2024
Current

1|W
1,064

2024
Non-current

1,374

1,374

2024
Non-current

1374
1.374

Raw materials and stores, work in progress and finished goods are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs are assigned to individual items of inventory on the basis of weighted average costs. Costs of purchased inventory
are determined after deducting rebates and discounts. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary

course of business less the estimated costs of complation and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Land held for resale

Land held for resale is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is assigned by specific identification and
includes the cost of acquisition, and development and borrowing costs during development. When development is completed,
borrowing costs and other holding charges are expensed as incurred,

Borrowing costs included in the cost of land held for resale are those costs that would have been avoided if the expenditure
on the acquisition and development of the land had not been made. Borrowing costs incurred while active development is
interrupted for extended periods are recognised as expenses.
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C1-6 Contract assets and Contract cost assets

2025 2025 2024 2024
$ '000 Current Non-current Current Non-current
Contract assets 1,891 - 4,146 -
Total contract assets and contract
cost assets 1,891 - 4,146 -
Contract assets
Government Grants & Subsidies - Natural
Disaster Funding (Capital Only) 1,294 - 1,891 =
Government Grants & Subsidies - Other capital
grants 597 - 2,255 -
Total contract assets 1,891 - 4,146 =

Material accounting policy information

Contract assets
Contract assets represent Councils right to payment in exchange for goods or services the Council has transferred to a
customer when that right is conditional on something other than the passage of ime.

Contract assets arise when the amounts billed to customers are based on the achievement of various milestones established in
the contract and therefore the amounts recognised as revenue in a given period do not necessarily coincide with the amounts
billed to or certified by the customer. Once an invoice or payment claim Is raised or the relevant milestone is reached, Council
recognises a receivable.

Impairment of contract assets is assessed using the simplified expected credit loss model where [ifetime credit losses are
recognised on initial recognition.

Contract cost asset - costs to fulfil a contract
Where costs are incurred to fulfil a contract and these costs are outside the scope of another accounting standard, they are
capitalised as contract cost assets if the following criteria are met:

~ the costs relate directly to a contract
- the costs generate or enhance resources of Council that will be used to satisfy performance obligations in the future and
- the costs are expacted 1o be recoverad,

The capitalised costs are recognised in the Income statement on a systematic basis consistent with the timing of revenue
recognition.

Refer to B3-4 for the accounting policy for impairmant of contract cost assets.

Pano 17 1 Q8

Iltem 17.2 - Attachment 1 Page 75



Ordinary Council Meeting

18 November 2025

o B
bt

Etad
- -
Cupital wank o progrsss 6%
Pt nd sguemen! »nn
Ofce egupment 140
Fumiurs a1d ftings 1400
Land:
= Ceoem land =040
~ Operatora) lavd P ik
= Commumty e Ly
- Land urdder samos (oost JOW0N) foc)
Lared arcrovenunts - ron-egretistin 7400
Lard anprovements - segrecisbie M
Infrestructre!
< BURSNgs - specained 0055
~ Ot atructeg n1s
] A7 0
~ e uan
- Footpatre neR
~ Bub sartrecoa (non e piec i) 120444
~ Stormmlur O o2
- Wt suity netwnk a8
= Sorwm g vl wotk 5.
~ Oftor ocen yECYoCRatond st 4495
Otver assetx:
« Libwary Smoks wwn
R twtemwnt, rehabil taoon andd
restoration assets (refer Note C3.£1
- Cuarry asats 1
~Tin samiy sun
Total b astructine, progerty. plest and
emnpment 1,500,582

vl O
e
Rl Ll

w12
11,2604
11095

nre
5508

(IRR21H

-
.
L)

&85
17,865
"2

a3
10000
o8
1400
X

74 tun
. 757
2360
1012
2ar
129484
LR ]
"more
1802
EX2

E )

7
o

L1y

175
Lo

zse

(1) Rerewah s Seined 23 e roptsosmen ! of ssirbng aests (m ogossd 1o e scptation of New sseei)

ernlinumd nn novl faoe

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment

-t -
——"

88

$ S, _x8Esd #:s,..

A
Zan

- -,
o \npare

ann

AL

At v peeds 60wy Ton o ol by

Richmond Valley Council | Hotes 1o the Fnancial Sintements 30 June 2025

'  enan
bt amee ™ -
wm - an -
e @Remn - -

- “n -
= e = ~

“ - -
on [l @
s =2y - 1
- o0m A -
nas wnm - 3EM
(an om0 - -

om 40 -

m - = =
um (mam - -
om (L.n - -
@ [ L] - w
o e 3

L) i - -

< L] - =
(" {2am - =
[LEAM ] asma em a8

L}

ez
503

wr
15370
1,0

5052
a2

1828
1067

Lt
e Ads e
™ -
aeeen AN —! | m:
- - ane - "noe
~ - N [SLAL nou
- a7 nass n
- - 1500 [ARLL] b
- wr nns e
- L 2. - aron
- m 1nes - "nax
- - "l - 9
= e none - L)
L0 42188 (5.507) 9%
- BL ) 107,50 Q@A ™min
» 1400 oy A aas
- e “sisn 1146 s68) o
- 20 "o (A0,354) 108,14
- L P LR asn
- 185 143433 - 1040
- L e 18,195) LS
- 200% 2r=e (SR e
- m aLm W5.200) 1N
on 1881 SA50 @57 «m
- - 1,080 i pU]
- - *se s n
- - L] "R e
s 1,57 (L LRS ] 1650

Pans W ol Q4

Item 17.2 - Attachment 1

Page 76



Ordinary Council Meeting

18 November 2025

C1-7 Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (continued)

.':-"-— - i
e 0 - ~ane
oy "y B ] -
- R ke Lo it e e vy S e
Cupital wark o progrsss e - nm 703 1" -
Pt w1d sguement X408 117.20M 18,600 1 2m -
Ofce equpment 1 AGT 1310 >4 2 4 -
Fumture and ftings 1560 11168 04 #0 3% -
Land:
~ Ceoen tand 7 54 - 27,549 - - ’
~ Operatona) lavd M A4T - wEar 2 - -
- Camemumty wrd 10529 - 1004 - - -
- Land urder e (oost JOW0N) e - 208 - - -
Lard arcrovenunts - ron-egretitin 69494 - LE 2 - - =
Land anpevemernts - tegreciabie 21830 14001 17 368 1,700 s8
Infrestructre!
- BuRSNgs - secaised HiATR eaw &5 U5 an 1,08 29
— OUr atachrm X140 (€430 2570 - 24 -
- B 38203 (137608 nsa €904 ) 3861
- bomges 117 551 a7 TLom 00 - »
- Footpathe 7% 190 16,887 0o n -
~ Bub sartrecoic (non e e atrie) ™s0 - 7550 - - —
~ S1ormmiie Onwnagw 12258 narne 4 540 " na -
- Wt suimity retwnk 1178 3%6TH e am 158 -
= Seramiigge vl work TMETH (T2.004) 1M22%4 ARZ 1] nr a
~ Ottor open ymCstocuatona aesets 7 548 18315 e m 1 -
Otver assetx:
« Liwary tmoks 1134 7es) My - L] -
Rmrmtmtemw nt, rehabiltaoon
restoration assets (refar Note €381
- Quarry asats P03 may 0 - - -
~Tin samiy 5,500 14544 ) - 0 -
Total b astructin, progerty, plest and
emnpment 1300 402 13Te. 08N Lk 323 129K 430

(1) Rerwwals o Ssined 23 he roptrosmen! of ssirbng assety (m o0possd 10 Ive scpatntion of New sseei )

ernlinumd nn novl faoe

Richrmond Valley Council | Hotes 1o the Fnancial Siatements 30 June 2025

S -l -

PR
o
Lompogvtms It e
e AP e i )
1L - [LES
1841} 2.1%0) =
14 =
=0 75) -
(370 |ate) -
e 1,406) -
) 166) -
1348} (7 438 =
- o -
o) am -
L - =
"2 1610y -
LA (1,558} -
1380) 5007 o
Q33 .18 -
(3 1] | -
) al =
- 1128 -
a0 (23.040) L1

W araren

(1t 559

s
[ 3~23

.
(r— & oy~
~m

Gumirrneg iw e

surs

1500 362

onram
1290)
11.008)

@6357)
154)
1144 280
0
nas

5025
08 8E3
[ERL ]

18,0023

Tan

(e
I0.A85)

A

Panns 10O of Q4

$63%
7085
i3

®213
"am

740
030

4608

JHIE0
10 2

12944
LIRY
mor

TR
20

s

AL

tyoon

Item 17.2 - Attachment 1

Page 77



Ordinary Council Meeting 18 November 2025

Richmond Valiey Council | Notes to the Finanaial Statements 30 June 2025

C1-7 Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (continued)

Material accounting policy information

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment are held at fair value. Independent comprehensive valuations are performed at
least every five years, however the carmrying amount of assets is assessed by Coundil at each reporting date to confirm that
it is not materially different from cumrent fair value.

Water and sewerage network assets are indexed at each reporting period in accordance with the Rates Reference Manual
issued by Department of Chimate Change, Energy, the Environment and Water.

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation are credited to the revaluation reserve. To the extent that the increase
reverses a decrease previously recognising profit or loss relating to that asset class, the increase is first recognised as profit
or loss. Decreases that reverse previous increases of assets in the same class are first charged against revaluation reserves
directly in equity to the extent of the remaining reserve attributable to the class; all other decreases are charged to the Income
Statement.

IPPE is measured initially at cost. Cost includes the fair vaiue of the consideration given to acquire the asset (net of discounts
and rebates) and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use (inclusive of import
duties and taxes),

When infrastructure, property, plant and equipment are acquired by Council for nil or nominal consideration, the assets are
initially recognised at their fair value at acquisition date.

Subsequent costs are inciuded in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to Council and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Income Statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight-line method to aflocate their cost, net of
their residual values, over thelr estimated useful lives as follows:

Plant and equipment Years Transportation Assets Years
OfMhce ogupment d1i0 10 Sealed roads. surface 2010 35
Office furmniture S5t 20 Sealed roads structure &0 10 110
Computer equipment 3 Korb & Gutter 100
Vehicles Slo 20 Foolpalhs 25t0 75
Heavy plant/road making equipment S 20 Mmnor & Major Culverts 50 1o 100
Other plant and equipment 3o 50 Unsealed roads 25t0 35
Bridge: concrete 105
Water and sewer assets Bridge: timber 85
Dams and reservaoirs 2510 200 Brdge: Doolan Deck 50
Treatment Plant structure 1010 100 Other road assets 15 10 100
Trealment Plant mech & slec 1010 60
Pump Station structure 1510 100 Stormwater assets
Pumps Station mech & slect 20 50 Drains 80 1o 120
Retculation pepes: PVC 100 Culveris 80 to 120
Reficulation pipes. Other 7010 100
Panlingod fan novi e Pane 4N nf Q8
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C1-7 Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (continued)

Other Infrastructure asssts Other equipment

Bulk earthworks nhnite Piayground equipment 10 to 60
Open spacerecreabonal assets 1010 100 Benches, seats elc 10 10 100
Bulidings

Buildngs 1010 100

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

Change in remaining useful life of Casino Sewage Treatment Plant

Counil is currently in the development and planning phase of a proposed replacement of the Casino Sewerage Treatment
Plant. The existing facility was constructed in 1932 and has received minor augmentation over the past 90 years, however, is
now aged and at capacity. The proposed plan for replacement has the new plant being commissioned in 2027/2028 pending
external funding availability and therefore, the existing STP will be retained and operational until this time. As such, Council
has revised the useful life of the existing plant at 1 July 2023, to be 5 years in line with the current project plan, the result of
which Is an increase n depredation across the 2024-2028 years as seen in the table below.

$ 000 30 June 2024 | 30 June 2025 30 June 2026 | 30 June 2027 | 30 June 2028
Previous Depreciation 226 190 193 197 201
Current Depreciation 2909 3,056 3,180 3,310 3445
Increase 2683 2 866 2987 3113 3,244
Impairment

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment were assessed for impalrment at 30 June 2025. Where indicators of impairment
exist, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated and an impairment adjustment made if the asset's recoverable amount is
less than its carrying vaiue,

During February and March of 2022, the Richmond Valley and surrounding LGA's were severely impacted by catastrophic
flooding which resulted in Coundl recognising an impairment value of $65.8 million relating directly to the natural disaster.
Council are now 3 years into the expected 5 year recovery process from this event and were impacted by another event,
in Cyclone Alfred in March 2025 which resulted in further damage and re-damage to existing repairs, resulting in additional
impairment of $4.3m with asset inspections still ongoing.

The remaining impairment from these flood events relate to the following asset dasses:
* Roads and Bridges
*  Stormwater

Impairment Assessment Process
Following the fiood event, Counal staff commenced inspections of its assets to determine the extent of damage. The processes
involved are as per below:

Roads and Bridges

Total remaining Impairment - $44,241 692

Estimated repair costs are calculated using Transport for NSW templates which provides a repair estimate based on the extent
of damage {Low, Medium, High) and the length of the damage and type of asset base etc. These estimates have been utilised
to determine the impairment value. For large repair values, the amount of repairs have been reviewed against the asset WDV
and where the estimated repair is higher, the total asset has been impaired.

Stormwater

Total remaining impairment - $253 519

Council assets staff inspected stormwater assets, in particular the outlets leading into the Richmond River. These outlets
experienced significant damage due to the damage to the riverbank making the sites inaccessible. The cost to repair these
assets will be substantially higher due to the need to make the sites accessible. These assets have been reviewed against
their current book value to determine the impairment amounts.
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C1-7 Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (continued)

In accordance with AASB 116, any impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrement, Impairment losses are recognised
against the revaluation reserve to the extent that the impairment loss does not exceed the amount in the revaluation reserve
for the same asset.

Land under roads
Land under roads is land under roadways and road reserves including land under footpaths, nature strips and median strips.

Council has elected not to recognise land under roads acquired before 1 July 2008. Land under roads acquired after 1 July
2008 is recognised in accordance with the IPPE accounting policy.

Crown reserves

Crown reserves under Council's care and control are recognised as assets of the Council. While ownership of the reserves
remains with the Crown, Council retains operational control of the reserves and s responsible for their maintenance and use
in accordance with the specific purposes to which the reserves are dedicated.

Improvements on Crown reserves are also recorded as assets, while maintenance costs incurred by Council and revenues
relating to the reserves are recognisad within Council’s Income Statement.

Rural Fire Service assets

Under Section 119 of the Rural Fire Services Act 1997 (NSW), “all firefighting equipment purchased or constructed wholly
or from money to the credit of the Fund is to be vested in the council of the area for or on behalf of which the firefighting
equipment has been purchased or constructed”. These Rural Fire Service assets are recognised as assets of the Coundil in

these financial statements.
C1-8 Other
Other assets

2025 2025 2024 2024
$ '000 Current  Non-current Current  Non-current
Prepayments 434 - 356 -
Total other assets 434 - 356 -
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C2 Leasing activities

C2-1 Council as a lessee

Council has |eases over a range of assets including heavy plant and IT equipment. Information relating to the leases in place
and associated balances and transactions is provided belfow.

Terms and conditions of leases
Details of existing leases in place are shown below on a class basis:

Plant & Equipment
Council currently leases a Komatsu grader and a Wirtgen Stabilizer with lease terms of between 3 and 5 years. The lease
payments are fixed during the lease term and there is generally no renewal option.

IT equipment

Leases for IT equipment are generally for low value assets, except for significant tems such as network, server and radio
equipment. The leases are for between 2 and 5 years with no renewal option and the payments are fixed.

(a) Right of use assets

Plant &

$'000 Equipment  IT Equipment Total
2025

Opening balance at 1 July 461 238 699
Depreciation charge . (84) (86) (170)
Balance at 30 June 377 152 529
2024

Opening balance at 1 July 702 327 1,029
Depreciation charge (241) (89) (330)
Balance at 30 June 461 238 699
roniting et fe novl naon Pano 47U L Q8
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C2-1 Council as a lessee (continued)

(b) (i) The maturity analysis
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities based on contractual undiscounted cash flows is shown in the table below:

Total per
Statement of
Financial
$'000 <1 year 1-5 years > 5 years Total Position
2025
Cash flows 90 107 - 197 197
2024
Cash flows 114 260 - 374 374
(c) Income Statement
The amounts recognised in the Income Statement relating to leases where Council is a lessee are shown below:
$ '000 2025 2024
Interest on lease kabilities 13 4
Depreciation of right of use assets 170 660
Expenses relating to leases of low-value assets 423 519
606 1,213
(d) Statement of Cash Flows
Total cash outflow for leases 176 439
176 439

(e) Leases at significantly below market value — concessionary / peppercorn leases

Council has a number of leases at significantly below market for land and buildings which are used for:

* Halls and Community Centras
» Surf Club

The leases are generally between 1 and 20 years and require payments of a maximum amount of $3,000 per year. The use of
the nght-to-use asset is restricted by the lessors to specified community services which Council must provide, these services
are detailed In the leases.

Council does not believe that any of the leasas in place are individually material from a statement of financial position or
performance perspective.

Material accounting policy information

At inception of a contract, Council assesses whether a lease exists - i.e. does the contract convey the right to cantrol the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration?

Council has elected not to separate non-lease components from lease components for any class of asset and has accounted
for payments as a single component.

At the lease commencement, Council recognises a nght-of-use asset and associated lease liability for the lease term. The
lease term includes extension periods where Council befieves it is reasonably certain that the option will be exercisad.

The right-of-use asset is measured using the cost model where cost on initial recognition comprises: the lease liability, initial
direct costs, prepaid lease payments, estimated cost of removal and restoration, less any lease incentives received, The
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C2-1 Council as a lessee (continued)

right-of-use is deprecated over the lease term on a straight-line basis and assessed for impairment in accordance with the
impairment of asset accounting policy.

The lease liability is initially recognised at the present value of the remaining lease paymaents at the commencement of the
lease, The discount rate is the rate implicit in the lease, however where this cannot be readily determined then the Council's
incremental borrowing rate for a similar term with similar security is used.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the lease liabdity is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. The
lease hability is re-measured when there is a lease modification, or change in estimate of the lease term or index upon which
the jeasa payments are based (e.g. CPI).

Where the |ease lmbility is re-measured, the right-of-use asset is adjusted to reflect the re-measurement.

Exceptions to lease accounting

Council has applied the exceptions to lease accounting for both short-term leases (i.e. leases with a term of less than or equal
to 12 months) and leases of low-value assats. Council recognises the payments associated with these leases as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leases at significantly below market value / concessionary leases

Coundil has elected to measure the right of use asset arising from the concessionary leases at cost which s based on the
associated lease liability at initial recognition.
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C2-2 Council as a lessor

Operating leases

Coundll leases out @ number of properties; these leases have been classified as operating leases for financial reporting
purposes and the assets are included as PP&E (refer in this note part (i) below) in the Statement of Financial Position.

The amounts recognised in the Income Statement relating to operating leases where Coundl Is a lessor are shown below:
§ '000 2025 2024
(i) Assets held as property, plant and equipment

Coungil leases out two of its quarries and the Northern Rivers Livestock Exchange. In
addition, Council receives rantal income for hire and rent of some of its buildings and

facilities.
Lease income (excluding variable lease payments not dependent on an index or rate) 1,406 1,808
Total Income relating to operating leases for Councll assets 1,406 1.808

(ii) Maturity analysis of contractual lease income

Maturity analysis of future lease income recelvable showing the minimum
undiscounted lease payments to be received after reporting date is shown below:

< 1year 1,343 1,305
1-2 years 1,372 1,333
2-3 years 1,403 1,363
34 years 1,433 1,393
4-5 years 1,465 1423
> 5 years 4,069 5,520
Total undiscounted lease payments to be received 11,085 12,337

Material accounting policy information

When Coundil is a lessor, the lease is classified as either an operating or finance leasa at inception date, based on whether
substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the asset have been transferred to the lessee. If the risks
and rewards have been transferred then the lease is classified as a finance lease, otherwise it is an operating lease.

When Council has a sub-lease over an asset and is the intermediate lessor then the head lease and sub-lease are accounted
for separately. The classification of the sub-lease is based on the right-of-use asset which arises from the head lease rather
than the useful life of the underlying assel.

If the lease contains lease and non-lease components, the non-lease components are accounted for in accordance with AASB
15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers.

The lease income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term for an operating lease and as finance income
using amortised cost basis for finance leases.
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C3 Liabilities of Council
C3-1 Payables

2025 2025 2024 2024
$ '000 Current Non-current Current Non-current
Goods and services — operating expenditure 3,103 - 2,518 -
Goods and services — capital expanditure 6,265 - 6,546 -
Accrued expenses:

- Other expenditure accruals 456 = 798 -
Security bonds, deposits and retentions 850 - 1,120 -
Bank guarantees 868 881 712 554
Prepaid rates and annual charges and user

charges and fees 1,142 7 1,000 61
Total payables 12,684 952 12,692 615

Current payables not anticipated to be settled within the next twelve months

$'000 2025 2024

The following liabilities, even though dassified as current, are not expected to be settied in
the next 12 months.

Payables ~ security bonds, deposits and retentions 850 1,120
Total payables 850 1,120

Material accounting policy information
Council measures all financial liabilities initially at fair value less transaction costs, subsequently financial liabilities are
measured at amortisad cost using the effective interest rate method.

Payables
Payables represent liabilities for goods and services provided to Council prior to the end of financial year that are unpaid.
The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition.
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C3-2 Contract Liabilities

2025 2025 2024 2024
$ '000 Notes Current Non-current Current Non-current

Grants and contributions recelved in
advance:

Unexpended capital grants (to
construct Council controlled assats) h 13,002 - 8,051 -
Unexpanded operating grants
(received prior to performance
obligation being satisfied) i) 3,219 54 12 79

Unexpended capital contributions {to

construct Council controlled assats) i 149 9 = 141
Unexpended operating contributions

(recetved prior to performance

obligation being satisfied) fii) - 36 - 36
Total grants received in

advance 16,370 99 9,063 256

User fees and charges recelved In advance:

Funds received in advance of

services provided - - 45 -
Total user fees and charges

received in advance - - 45 -

Total contract liabilities 16,370 99 9,108 256

Notes

(i) Council has received funding to construct assets including sporting faciities, bridges, library and other infrastructure. The
funds received are under an enforceable contract which require Counail to construct an identified asset which will be under
Council's control on completion. The revenue is recognised as Council constructs the asset and the contract liability reflects
the funding received which cannot yet be recognised as revenue. The revenue is expected to be recognised in the next 12
months.

(i) The contract liability relates 1o grants received prior to the revenue recognition criteria in AASB 15 being satisfied since
the performance obligations are ongoing.

(ii) Booking fees for Council facilities received in advance of service provided are recorded as a contract liability on receipt
and recognised as revenue after booking date.
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C3-2 Contract Liabilities (continued)

Revenue recognised that was included in the contract liability balance at the beginning of the period

$ '000 2025 2024
Grants and contributions recelved in advance:

Capital grants (to construct Council controlled assets) 3,875 12,321
Operating contributions (received prior to performance obligation being satisfied) 36 "
Total revenue recognised that was included in the contract liability

balance at the beginning of the period 3911 12,332

Significant changes in contract liabilities

Coungil has received upfront grant funding for the following projects: ($'000)
Rappville Sewer $1,905

Halsteads Drive $1,934

NRLX Effluent Management System $1,391

Disaster Recovery Funding $2,410

Woodburn Evans Hd Footpath $1,073

Material accounting policy information
Contract liabilities are recorded when consideration is received from a customer / fund provider prior to Council transferring
a good or service to the customer, Council presents the funds which exceed revenue recognised as a contract liability.
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C3-3 Borrowings

2025 2025 2024 2024
$ '000 Current Non-current Current Non-current
Loans —secured ' 3,385 11,260 3,893 14,646
Total borrowings 3,385 11,260 3,893 14,646

M Loans are secured over the genetal rating come of Counail
Dsclosures on liabiity interest rate nsk exposures, far value disclosures and security can be found in Note 20

(a) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
2024 2025
Opening Closing
$ '000 Balance Cash flows balance
Loans — secured 18,539 (3,894) 14,645
Loase lability (Note C2-1) 374 (177 197
Total liabllities from financing activities 18,913 (4,071) 14,842
2023 ) 2024
Opening Closing
$'000 Balance Cash Nows balance
Loans — secured 19 462 {923) 18,5629
Lease habilty (Note C2-1) B3 (439) 314
Total liabilities from financing activities 20,275 (1.362) 18,013
(b) Financing arrangements
$'000 2025 2024
Total facilities
Total financing facilities available to Council at the reporting date are:
Bank overdraft facilities ' 500 500
Credit cards/purchase cards 71 7
Total financing arrangements B B 571
Drawn facilities
Financing facifities drawn down at the reporting date are:
~ Credit cards/purchase cards 3 1
Total drawn financing arrangements 3 1
Undrawn facilities
Undrawn financing faciliies available to Council at the reporting date are;
- Bank overdraft facilities 500 500
- Cradit cards/purchase cards 68 70
Total undrawn financing arrangements 568 570

11 The bank overdraft faciity may be drawn st any time and may be temmnated by the bank without notice

Material accounting policy information
Coundil measures all financial liabilities Initially at fair value less transaction costs, subsequently financial liabilities are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan 1o the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down,
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C3-3 Borrowings (continued)

Borrowings are removed from the Statement of Financial Position when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carmrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or
transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in other income or borrowing costs.
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C3-4 Employee benefit provisions

2025 2025 2024 2024
$ '000 Current  Non-current Current  Non-current
Annual leave 2,193 - 2,274 -
Long service leave 2822 212 2728 205
Other leave 47 - 27 -
Total employee benefit provisions 5,062 212 5,029 205

Employee benefit provisions relating to restricted assets
There are no restricted assets (external or internal) applicable to the above provisions

Current employee benefit provisions not anticipated to be settled within the next twelve months
$'000 2025 2024

The following provisions, even though classified as current, are not expected to be settied
in the next 12 months.

Provisions — employees benefits 2127 2203
2,127 2,203

Material accounting policy information

Employee benefit provisions are presented as current liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position if Coundil does not
have an unconditional nght to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the reporting date, regardless of when the actual
seftlement is expected to occur and therefore all annual leave and vested long service leave (or that which vests within 12
months) is presented as current.

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries (including non-monetary benefits, annual leave and accumulating sick leave expected to be
wholly settled within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service) are recognised
in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid
when the liabilities are settled. The liability for annual leave and accumulating sick leave is recognised in the provision for
employee benefits. All other short-term employee benefit obligations are presented as payables.

Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liability for long-service leave and annual leave that is not expected to be wholly settled within 12 months after the end of
the period in which the employees render the related service is recognised in the provision for employee benefits and measured
as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of
the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels,
experience of employee departures, and periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted using market yields at
the end of the reporting period on national government bonds with terms to maturity and currency that match, as dosely as
possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

On-costs

The employee benefit provisions include the aggregate on-cost liabilities that will arise when payment of current employee
benefits is made in future periods.

These amounts include superannuation, payroll tax and workers compensation expensas which will be payable upon the future
payment of certain leave liabilities which employees are entitled to at the reporting period,
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C3-5 Provisions

2025 2025 2024 2024
$ '000 Current Non-Current Current Non-Current
Asset remediation/restoration:

Asset remediation/restoration (future works) - 8,099 - 5,038
Sub-total - asset remediation/restoration - 8,099 - 5,038
Total provisions - 8,099 - 5,038
Description of and movements in provisions

Other provisions

Asset

$'000 remediation Total
2025
At beginning of year 5,038 5,038
Changes to provision:
- New disturbances to tip 3,178 3,178
- Revised discount rate 209 209
- Revised costs (389) {389)
- Revised life 48 48
Unwinding of discount 14 14
Other 1 1
Total other provisions st end of year 8,099 8,000
2024
Al beginning of year 4916 4916
Changes to provision:
- Revisad discount rate 16 18
- Revised costs 17 17
Unwinding of discount 88 88
Other ) 1 1
Total other provisions al end of year 5038 5.038

Nature and purpose of provisions

Asset remediation
Council has a legal/public obligation to make, restore, rehabilitate and reinstate the foliowing tip and quarry assets:
Estimated
Asset/Operation year of NPV of Provisions
restoration
2025 2024
Landfills - Nammoona Cell 1-4 2029 4,505 4,700
Landfills - Nammoona Cell 6 2039 3,178 0
Quarries - Woodview 2035 415 338
Balance at end of reporting period 8,098 5,038

Material accounting policy information
Provisions are recognised when Council has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settie the obligation, and the amount has been reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihcad that an outflow will be required in settlemant is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision I recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same dass of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required 1o settle the present
obligation at the reporting date. The discount rate used to determine the present value reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the lability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as a borrowing cost,
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C3-5 Provisions (continued)

Asset remediation — tips and quarries

Restoration

Close-down and restoration costs include the dismantling and demolition of infrastructure, and the removal of residual materials
and remediation of disturbed areas. Estimated close-down and restoration costs are provided for in the accounting period
when the obligation arising from the related disturbance occurs, whether this occurs during the development or during the
operation phase, based on the net present value of estimated future costs.

Provisions for close-down and restoration costs do not indlude any additional obligations which are expected to arise from
future disturbance. The costs are estimated on the basis of a closure plan. The cost estimates are calculated annually during
the life of the operation to reflect known developments, e.g. updated cost estimates and revisions to the estimated fives of
operations, and are subject to formal review at reqular intervals.

Rehabilitation

Where rehabilitation is conducted systematically over the life of the operation, rather than at the time of closure, provision
Is made for the estimated outstanding continuous rehabilitation work at each reporting date, and the cost is charged to the
Income Statement.

Provision is made for the estimated present value of the costs of environmental clean-up obligations outstanding at the reporting
date. These costs are charged to the Income Statement. Movements in the environmental clean-up provisions are presented
as an operating cost, except for tha unwinding of the discount which is shown as a borrowing cost,

Remediation procedures generally commence soon after the time the damage, remediation process, and estimated
remaediation costs become known, but may continue for many years depending on the nature of the disturbance and the
remediation techniques.

As noted above, the ultimate cost of environmental remediation is uncertain and cost estimates can vary in response to many
factors, including changes to the relevant legal requirements, the emergence of new restoration techniques, or experience at
other locations. The expected timing of expenditure can also change, for example in response to changes in quarry reserves
or production rates. As a result, there could be significant adjustments to the provision for dose down and restoration and
environmental clean-up, which would affect future financial results,

Other movements in the provisions for dose-down and restoration costs, including those resulting from new disturbance,
updated cost estimates, changes to the estimated lives of operations, and revisions to discount rates, are capitalised within
property, plant and equipment. These costs are then depreciated over the lives of the assets 1o which they relate,

Close-down and restoration costs are a normal consequence of tip and quarry operations, and the majority of dose-down and
restoration expenditure is incurred at the end of the life of the operations. Although the ultimate cost to be incurred is uncertain,
Council estimates the respective costs based on feasibility and engineering studies using current restoration standards and
techniques.
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C4 Reserves

C4-1 Nature and purpose of reserves

IPPE Revaluation Surplus
The infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (IPPE) revaluation surplus is used to record increments and decrements In
the revaluation of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment.
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D Council structure
D1  Results by fund

General fund refers to all Council activities other than water and sewer. All amounts disclosed in this note are gross i.e.
inclusive of internal charges and recoveries made between the funds. Assets and Rabilities shown in the water and sewer
columns are restricted for use for these activities.

D1-1 Income Statement by fund

General Water Sewer
$'000 2025 2025 2025
Income from continuing operations
Rates and annual charges 22,887 1,882 8,803
User charges and fees 8,242 8,641 2,336
Interest and investment revenue 1,732 551 697
Other revenues B0 - g
Grants and contributions provided for opecating purposes 15,250 24 12
Grants and contributions provided for capital purposes 30,698 342 839
Other income 2,923 = =
Total income from continuing operations 81,812 9,540 12,687
Expenses from continuing operations
Employee benefits and on-costs 24 485 1,802 2,235
Materials and services 18,242 5,093 4,718
Borrowing costs 458 - 342
Other expenses 2,650 - -
Net losses from the disposal of assets 3,179 378 204
Total expenses from continuing operations excluding
depreciation, amortisation and impairment of
non-financial assets 47014 7,273 7,589
Operating result from continuing operations excluding
depreciation, amortisation and impairment of
non-financial assets 34,798 2,267 5,098
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment of non-financal assets 18,616 2,020 54186
Operating result from continuing operations 16,182 247 (318)
Net operating resulit for the year = 16,182 247 (318)
Net operating result attributable to each council fund 16,182 247 (318)
Net operating result for the year before grants and
contributions provided for capital purposes (14,5186) (95) (1,157)
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D1-2 Statement of Financial Position by fund

General Water Sewer
$ 000 2025 2025 2025
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 9,692 3,152 10,117
Investments 40,539 7614 3277
Receivables 9,062 1,667 2,256
Inventones 4,953 218 53
Contract assets and contract cost assets 1,891 = <
Other 434 - -
Total current assets 66,571 12,651 15,703
Non-current assets
Investments 5,750 - -
Receivables 890 445 549
Inventones 1,112 - -
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment 945,821 90,311 126,528
Right of use assets 529 - -
Total non-current assets 954,102 90,756 127077
Total assets 1,020,673 103,407 142,780
LIABILITIES
Current liabllities
Payables 12,627 1 56
Contract liabilities 16,370 - -
Lease labilities 90 = =
Borrowings 1,618 - 1,767
Employee benefit provision 5,082 - -
Total current liabilities 35,767 1 1,823
Non-current liabilities
Payables 252 - -
Contract liabilities 99 = &
Lease fabilities 107 - -
Borrowings 6,791 - 4,469
Employee benefit provision 212 - -
Provisions ) 8,099 - _ -
Total non-current liabilities 18,260 - 4,489
Total liabilities ) 52,027 ; 6,292
Net assets 968,646 103,406 136,488
EQUITY
Accumulated surplus 400,646 27,872 48,445
IPPE revaluation surplus 568,000 75,534 88,043
Councll equity interest 968,646 103,406 136,488
Total equity 968,646 103406 136,488
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D2 Interests in other entities

D2-1 Subsidiaries, joint arrangements and associates not recognised

The following subsidiaries, joint arrangements and associates have not been recognised in this financial report.

2025 2025
Net
Name of entity/operation Principal activityitype of entity profitfloss)  Net assets
North East Weight of Loads Enforcement of load weights camied by heavy vehicles,
Group (NEWLOG) Joint venture {108) 909

Reasons for non-recognition
Council's share of NEWLOG net assels is 13.73%. Council does not control the operations of NEWLOG and considers it's
interest in the operations to be immaterial to the consolidated finandial statements.
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E Risks and accounting uncertainties
E1-1 Risks relating to financial instruments held

Counail's activities expose it 1o a variety of financial risks including (1) price risk, (2) credit nsk, (3) liquidity risk and (4) interest
rate risk.

The Council's overall isk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Council.

Council does not engage in transactions expressed in foreign currencies and Is therefore not subject to foreign currency risk,
Financial risk management is carried out by Council’s finance section under policies approved by the Council.

A comparnison by category of the camying amounts and fair values of Council's finandal assets and financial liabilities
recognised in the financial statements is presented below.

Carrying value  Carrying value Fair value Fair value
$'000 2025 2024 2025 2024
Financial assets
Measured at amortised cost
Cash and cash equivalents 22,961 37,600 22,961 37,600
Receivables 14,869 13,692 14,869 13,692
Investments
- Debt saecurites at amortised cost 39,250 28,250 39,250 28250
Fair value through profit and loss
Investments
- Heid for trading - 17930 16,446 17,930 16,446
Total financial assets 95,010 95,988 95010 95,988
Financial liabilities
Payables 13,636 13,307 13,636 13,307
Loans/advances 14645 18,539 14224 0 17912
Total financial liabilities 28,281 31,846 27,860 31,219

Fair value is determined as follows:

+ Cashand cash equivalents, receivables, payables — are estimated to be the carrying value that approximates market
value.

+ Borrowings and measure at amortised cost Investments — are based upon estimated future cash flows discounted
by the current market interest rates applicable to assets and liabilities with similar risk profiles, unless quoted market
prices are available.

» Financial assets classified (i) at falr value through profit and loss or (if) at fair value through other comprehensive

income — are based upon quoted market prices (in active markets for identical investments) at the reporting date or
Independent valuation.

Council's objective is to maximise lts return on cash and investments whilst maintaining an adequate level of liquidity and
preserving capital,

Councif's finance area manages the cash and Investments portfolio with the assistance of independent advisors,

Council has an investment policy which complies with the Local Government Act 1993 and Minister's investment order 625.

This policy is regularly reviewed by Council and it's staff and an investment report is tabled before Council on a monthly basis

selting out the portfolio breakup and its financial performance as required by Local Government regulations.

The risks associated with the instrumaents held are:

+ Price risk - the risk that the capital value of Investments may fluctuate due to changes in market prices, whether

there changes are caused by factors specific to individual financial instruments or their issuers or are caused by factors
affecting similar instruments traded in a market.

+ Interest rate risk — the risk that movements in interest rates could affect returns and mcome.
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E1-1 Risks relating to financial instruments held (continued)

« Liquidity risk — the risk that Counal will not be able to pay its debts as and when they fall due.

+ Credit risk — the risk that the invesiment counterparty will not complete their obligations particular to a finandal
instrument, resulting in a financial loss to Council - be it of a capital or ncome nature.

Coundil manages these risks (amongst other measures) by diversifying its portfolio and only purchasing investments with high
credit ratings or capital guarantees.

Council also seeks advice from independent advisers before placing any funds in cash equivalents and investments,

(a) Market risk — interest rate and price risk

$ '000 2025 2024

The impact on the result for the year and equity of a reasonably possible movement in the
price of investments held and interest rates is shown below. The reasonably possible
movements were determined based on historical movements and economic conditions in
place at the reporting date.

Impact of a 1% movement in interest rates

- Equity / Income Statement 801 823
Impact of a 10% movement in price of investments
— Equity / Income Statement 1,793 1,645

(b) Credit risk
Council's major receivables comprise (i) rates and annual charges and (ii) user charges and fees.

The major risk associated with these receivables is credit risk - the risk that debts due and payable to Council may not be
repaid in full,

Council manages the credit nsk associated with these receivables by monitoring outstanding debt and employing stringent
debt recovery procedures. Council also encourages ratepayers to pay their rates by the due date through incentives.

Credit risk on rates and annual charges is minimised by the ability of Council to secure a charge over the land relating to the
debts - that is, the land can be sold to recover the debt, Council is also able to charge interest on overdue rates and annual
charges at higher than market rates which further encourages the payment of debt.

The credit risk for liquid funds and other short-term financial assets is considered negligible, since the counterparties are
reputable banks with high quality external credit ratings.

There are no significant concentrations of credit risk, whether through exposure to individual customers, specific industry
sectors and/or regions.

The lavel of outstanding receivables is reconciled monthly and benchmarks are set and monitored for acceptabie collection
performance.

Council makes suitable provision far doubtful recaivables as raquired and carrles out credit checks on most non-rate deblors.
There are no material receivables that have been subjected to a re-negotiation of repayment terms,
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E1-1 Risks relating to financial instruments held (continued)

Credit risk profile

Receivables - rates and annual charges

Credit risk on rates and annual charges is minimised by the ability of Council to recover these debts as a secured charge
over the land; that is, the land can be sold to recover the debt. Council is also able to charge interest on overdue rates and
annual charges at higher than market rates which further encourages payment,

Notyet overdue rates and annual charges

$ '000 overdue <5 years 2 5 years Total
2025
Gross carrying amount 2,968 586 - 3,664
2024
Gross camying amount 2814 515 - 3,350

Receivables - non-rates and annual charges and contract assets

Coundil applies the simplified approach for non-rates and annual charges debtors and contract assets to provide for expected
credit lossas, which permits the use of the lifetime expected loss provision at inception. To measure the expacted credit losses,
non-rates and annual charges debtors and contract assets have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics
and the days past due.

The loss allowance provision is determined as follows, The expected credit losses incorporate forward-looking information.

Not yet Overdue debts

$ '000 overdue 0 -30 days 31 - 60 days 61 .90 days > 91 days Total
2025

Gross carrying amount 11,991 - - - 1332 13,323
Expected loss rate (%) 0.45% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 1.08% 0.51%
ECL provision 54 - - - 14 68
2024

Gross camying amount 12,773 - - - 1,860 14,633
Expeciad loss rate (%) 067% 000% 0.00% 0.00% 1.19% 074%
ECL provision : 86 = = = 22 108
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E1-1 Risks relating to financial instruments held (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk

Payables, lease liabilities and borrowings are both subject to liquidity nsk; that is, the risk that insufficient funds may be on
hand to maet payment obligations as and when they fall due.

Coundil manages this risk by monitoring its cash flow requirements and liquidity levels, and by maintaining an adequate cash
buffer. Paymaent terms can be extended, and overdraft facilities drawn upon in extenuating circumstances.

Borrowings are also subject to interest rate risk: the risk that movements in interest rates could adversely affect funding costs.
Council manages this risk through diversification of borrowing types, maturities and interest rate structures.

The finance team regularly reviews Interest rate movements to determine if it would be advantageous to refinance or
renegotiate part or all of the loan portfolio.

The timing of cash flows presented in the table below to settle financial fiabilities refliects the earliest contractual settlement
dates. The timing of expected outflows is not expected to be materially different from contracted cashflows.

The amounts disclosed in the table are the undiscounted contracted cash flows for non-lease liabilites (refer 10 Note C2-1(b)
for lease liabilities) and therefore the halances in the table may not equal the balances in the Statement of Financial Position

due to the effect of discounting.
Weighted

average  Subject payable in: Actual

interest to no 1-5 Totalcash  carrying
$ '000 rate  maturity S1Year Years > YeAS " oitows values
2025
Payables 0.00% 850 11,834 952 - 13,636 13,636
Borrowings 4.67% = 4,015 9622 3149 16,786 14,645
Total financial liabilities 850 15849 10,574 3,149 30,422 28,281
2024
Payables 0.00% 1,120 11,572 615 - 13,307 13,307
Borrowings 4.68% & 4,701 11,702 5,086 21,489 18,539
Total financial liabilities 1120 16273 12317 5086 34796 31,846

Loan agreement breaches
No breaches to loan agreements have occurred during the reporting year.
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E2-1 Fair value measurement

The Council measures the following asset and liability classes at fair value on a recurming basis:
- Infrastructure, property, piant and equipment ~ Financial assets

The fair value of assets and liabllities must be estimated in accordance with various accounting standards for either recognition
and measurement requirements or for disclosure purposes. AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement requires all assets and liabilities
measured at fair value to be assigned to a 'level’ in the fair value hierarchy as follows:

Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabiites that the entity can access at the
measurement date.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or kability, either directly
or indirectly.

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Fair value measurement hierarchy
Level 3 Significant

Date of latest Level 2 Significant unobservable
valuation observable inputs inputs Total

$ '000 Ntes 2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024 2026 2024
Recurring fair value measurements
Financial assets c1.2
Al fair value through profit or
loss 0062025 J00624 17930 16446 200 - 20 - 17930 16446
Total financial assets 17,930 16,446 - - 17,930 186446
Infrastructure, property,
plant and equipment c1.7
Land.
- Crown Land 30623 - - 28736 26646 28,736 28646
- Operational Land 3023 - - 29,701 20213 20701 20213
- Community Land 3006/23 - - 11,636 11406 11636 11406
- Land Under Roads (post
30M06/08) 00623 - - 954 908 954 008
Land Improvements — non
depreciable 3040620 - - 8,066 7,400 8,056 7,400
Land Improvements —
depreciable 300620 - - 36,597 20,383 36,597 20,393
Builldings — Specialised 300620 - - 79171 74 608 7917 74 608
Other Structures V0620 - - 27,7116 26757 27,716 26,757
Infrastructure
- Roads 30006/ 24 - - 310,911 283610 310911 283610
- Brdges 300624 - - 106,134 101 862 106,134 101 862
- Foofpaths V0624 - - 22,637 22237 22,5831 22237
- Bulk Earhworks (non
depreciable) 300624 - - 143,433 120 444 143433 120 444
- Stormwater Drainage 30062025 300618 - - 63,141 61179 63141 61179
~ Water Supply Network 30006722 - - 85,976 85,074 85976 85074
- Sewermge Network 300622 - - 116,511 116,002 116,611 116,002
- Swimming Pools 0620 - = - = = =
~ Other Open
Space/Recreational Assets 30620 - - 48,771 36,262 48,771 36,262
— Libvary Books 3000624 - - 368 351 368 351
Total infrastructure,
property, plant and 1,120,34 103544  1,120,34 1,03544
equipment - - 1 2 1 2
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E2-1 Fair value measurement (continued)

During the year, there were no transfers batween level 1 and level 2 fair value hierarchies for recurnng fair value
measurements.

Valuation techniques

Where Coundil is unable to denive fair valuations using quoted market prices of identical assets (ie. level 1 inputs) Council
instead utilises a spread of both observable inputs (level 2 inputs) and unobservable inputs (level 3 inputs).

The fair valuation techniques Coundil has employed while utilising level 2 and level 3 inputs are as follows:
Financial assets

Investments at fair value through the profit and loss include the following:

Term Deposits (maturity > 3 months) $28,000,000
Floating Rate Notes $6,750,390
Treasury Bond $4,500,000
NSW Treasury Corporation - Medium Term Growth Fund $14,085,319
NSW Treasury Carporation - Long Term Growth Fund $3,844 576

Term deposits are carried at face value and interest is received on maturity.

For the NSW Treasury Corporation investments, Council receives a monthly statement quoting the unit price of the investments
and any movement in fair value is recorded in the profit and loss. Investmaents with NSW Treasury Corporation are not within
an active market and are therefore classified as level 2 inputs. There has been no change to the valuation process during

the reporting period.
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (IPPE)
Land - Operational

This asset class comprises all of Council's land classified as Operational Land under the NSW Local Government Act 1993,
Council obtains its fair values for operational land from an external valuer every 3 years,

Generally, fair value is the most advantageous price reasonably obtainable by the seller and the most advantageous price
reasonably obtained by the buyer. This is not necassanly the market selling price of the asset, rather, it is regarded as the
maximum value that Councll would rationally pay to acquire the asset if it did not hold it, taking into account quoted market
price in an active and liquid market, the current market price of the same or similar assel, the cost of replacing the asset, if
management intend to replace the asset and cash flows from the future use and disposal.

Council's Operational Land was revalued as at 30 June 2023. This asset class is categorised as level 3 due to a number of the
above-mentioned inputs used in the valuation requiring significant professional judgement, which are therefore unobservable.
There has been no change to the valuation process during the reporting period.

Land - Community

Council's Community Land is land intended for public access and use or whera other restrictions applying to the land create
some obligation to maintain public access. Many of these parcels of land have no feasible alternative use, such as parks and
resarves. Community Land is valued using the "Market Approach'.

Fair value is derived by adjusting observable market inputs using unobservable inputs. The resulting measuremant is
categorised within level 3. Community Land was revalued as at 30 June 2023. There has been no change to the valuation

process during the raporting period.
Land - Crown
Council's Crown Land (including tand managed by Council) by definition is land intended for public access and use or where

other restrictions applying to the land create some obligation to maintain public access. Many of these parcels of land have
no feasible alternative use, such as parks and reserves. Community Land is valued using the 'Market Approach’.

Fair value Is derived by adjusting observable market inputs using unobservable inputs. The resulting measurement Is
categonsed within level 3. Crown Land was revalued as at 30 June 2023. There has been no change to the valuation process

during the reporting period.
Land Improvements (Non-Depreclable and Depreclable)
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E2-1 Fair value measurement (continued)

Land improvement assets include all works carmed out to the land o improve its utility, service potential or make it ready for
an identified use. Assets include landscaping, land forming, earthworks not integral to othar assets, external playing surfaces
and facilities internal infrastructure.

Land Improvements are valued by an external valuer every 5 years using the cost approach and the last valuation was
performed by an external valuer as at 30 June 2020 using the cost approach. Unobservable inputs include asset conditions and
remaining useful lives. These factors require extensive professional judgement, resulting In this asset class being classified
as level 3. There has been no change to the valuation process during the reporting period.

Land Under Roads (post 30/06/08)

Land under roads is land under roadways and road reserves induding land under footpaths, nature strips and median strips.
Council has elected not to recognise land under roads acquired before 1 July 2008 in accordance with AASB 1051. Land under
roads acquired after 1 July 2008 is recognised in accordance with AASB 116 - Property, Plant and Equipment and Council
recognised this for the first time in the 201072011 financial year. Land Under Roads has been revalued as at 30 June 2023 and
the valuation was based on the average unit value of all rateable land within Council's area of control using values provided
by the Valuer General, discounted by 90% to reflect restnictions on use of land under roads in-ine with the englobo method.
This asset class is classified as level 3 as significant inputs used in the valuation methodology are unobservable. There were
no changes to the valuation process durning the reporting period.

Buildings (Specialised)

Spedalised bulldings are valued using the cost approach and are valued by an external valuer every 5 years and the last
valuation was performed by an external valuer as at 30 June 2020.

Unobservable inputs include asset conditions and remaining useful lives.
These factors require extensive professional judgement, resulting in this asset class being classified as level 3,

In between comprehensive revaluations, these assets are indexed each year in line with the NSW non-residential construction
index. There has been no change to the valuation process during the reporting period.

Other Structures

These assets include all other structures not Included in the category of Buildings. Examples include statues, fences,
monuments and docktowers, Other structures are valued using the cost approach and are valued by an external valuer every
5 years and the last valuation was performed by an external valuer as at 30 June 2020.

Unobservable inputs include asset conditions and remaining useful lives.

These factors require extensive professional judgement, resulting in this asset class being classified as level 3,
There has been no changes to the valuation process during the reporting period,

Roads, Bridges & Footpaths (including Bulk Earthworks)

This asset class inciudes the road formation (bulk earthworks), road pavement and road seal, along with other road assets
including kerb and guttering, guardrail and roadside fumiture including signs and other traffic management devices. A
revaluation was last performed as at 30 June 2024. Indexation has been applied and relevant valuation inputs reassessed
annually,

Whilst units rates, based on square metras or similar capacity, can be supported by market evidenca (level 2), other inputs
(such as estimates of useful life and asset condition) require extensive professional judgement and impact significantly on the
final determination of fair value. As such, this asset class is classified as being valued using level 3 inputs.

Stormwater Drainage

Drainage refers to the system for the coflection, storage and removal of stormwater developed and maintained by Council.
These assets include pipelines, pits, headwalls and other drainage structures. The full revaluation of Stormwater Drainage
assets s undertaken every 5 years. Arevaluation was performed as at 30 June 2019. Council is undertaking a comprehensive
revaluation for the year ending 30 June 2025,

Whilst units rates, based on square metres or similar capacity, can be supported by market evidence (level 2), other inputs
(such as estimates of useful life and asset condition) require extensive professional judgement and impact significantly on the
final determination of fair value. As such, this asset class is classified as being valued using level 3 inputs. There has been
no change to the valuation process during the reporting period.
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E2-1 Fair value measurement (continued)

Water Supply Network

Water Supply Network assets include water pipelines, treatment plants, reservoirs, pump stations, water meters and
connections etc. Water Supply Network assets are valued by an external valuer every 5 years using the cost approach. In
between full revaluations, these assets are indexed each year in fine with the NSW Reference Rates Manual as published by
the NSW Office of Water. Water Supply Network Assets were last comprehensively revalued as at 30 June 2022

Whilst the units rates based on linear metres of certain diameter pipes and prices per unit per pit or similar capacity can be
supported by market evidence (level 2), other inputs (such as estimates of useful life and asset condition) require extensive
professional judgement and impact significantly on the final determination of fair value. As such, this asset class is classified
as being valued using level 3 inputs. There has been no change to the valuation process during the reporting period.

Sewerage Network

Sewerage Network assets indude sewerage pipelines, treatment works, pump stations, manholes and sewerage connections.
Sawerage Network assets are valued by an extemal valuer every 5 years using the cost approach. In between full revaluations,
these assets are indexed each year in line with the NSW Reference Rates Manual as published by the NSW Office of Water
Sewerage Network Assets were last comprehensively revalued as at 30 June 2022

Whilst the units rates based on linear metres of certain diameter pipes and prices per unit per pit or similar capacity can be
supported by market evidence (level 2), other inputs (such as estimates of useful life and asset condition) require extensive
professional judgement and impact significantly on the final determination of fair value. As such, this asset class is classified
as being valued using level 3 inputs. There has been no change to the valuation process during the reporting period.

Other Open Space/Recreational Assets

These assets include all structures within Council's sports grounds, parks and reserves and ssimming pools. This asset class
is valued by an external valuer every 5 years using the cost approach and the last valuation was performad by an external
valuer as at 30 June 2020. Unobservable inputs include asset conditions and remaining useful lives. These factors require
extensive professional judgement, resulting in this asset class baing dassified as level 3. There has been no change to the
valuation process during the reporting period.

Other Assets (Library Books)

These assets includa library books, journals, magazines, CD's, DVD's efc, Library books are valued at cost but are disclosed
at fair value in the notes due to the nature of these items.

The gross replacement cost of these assets are based on current market prices, which are based on observable inputs,

however the pattern of consumption and remaining useful life are implicated by internal factors which are unobservable inputs
placing these assets in level 3. There has been no change to the valuation process during the reporting period.
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E2-1 Fair value measurement (continued)

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (level 3)
The valuation process for level 3 fair value measurements

Fair Value Hierarchy
AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement requires disdosure of fair value measurement by level of input, using the following "hierarchy:

« Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date,

» Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability either directly
or indirectly.

* Level 3 - Unobservable inputs for asset or liability.
Fair Valuation Techniques
The valuation techniques prescribed by AASE 13 can be summarised as:

‘Cost Approach’: A valuation technique that reflects the amount that would be required to replace the service capacity of an
asset (current replacement cost).

‘Income Approach’: A valuation technique that converts future amounts (cash infiows/outiiows) to signal the current (ie
discounted) amount. The fair value measurement is determined on the basis of the value indicated by current market
expectations about these future amounts.

‘Market Approach’: A valuation technique that uses prices and other relevant information, generated by market transactions
involving identical or comparable (similar) assets, labilities or a group of assets and liabilities such as a business.

Valuation Techniques used to derive Level 2 and Level 3 Fair Values

Where Council is unable to derive Fair Valuations using quoted market process of identical assets (ie Level 1 inputs), Council
instead utilises a spread of both observable inputs (Level 2 inputs) and unobservable inputs (Level 3 inputs),

The Fair Valuation techniques Council has employed while utilising Level 2 and Level 3 inputs are as follows:

Level 2 valuation process for some assel dasses where the basis was Cost Approach under Level 2 input, whereby maximising
observabie inputs and minimising unobservable inputs as below:

» Quoted prices for similar asset in active markets
» Current replacement cost concapt

« Purchase price

« Useful Ife

Level 3 valuation process for some asset classes where the basis was Cost Approach. The inputs used for this technique were:
+ Asset condition

» Unit rates
« Useful Ife
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E2-1 Fair value measurement (continued)

A reconciliation of the movements in recurring fair value measurements allocated to Level 3 of the hierarchy by
class of assets is provided below:

Land improv-
Land under Roads post ements non-
Operational Land Community Land 30/6/08 depreciable
$'000 2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024
Opening balance 29213 28 447 11,4086 10,929 808 208 7,400 06,954
Total gains or losses for
the period
Revaluation incremeants o
equily (ARR) 334 720 230 ATT - - 406 446
Other movements
Purchases {GBV) 87 2 - - 46 - 78 -
Transters from/(to) Cagpstal
Work in Progress 67 44 - - - - 172 -
Closing balance 20701 20213 11,636 11 406 854 908 8,056 7,400
Land Improv-
ements depreciable Buildings specialised Other structures Roads
$°'000 2025 2024 2025 2024 20256 2024 2028 2024
Opening balance 20,393 17,6820 74,698 60 050 26,757 25710 283,610 245417
Total gains or losses for
the period
Revaluation mcrements to
equity (ARR) 1,103 1,100 3,913 4426 1,406 1,605 9,204 72,883
Impairment 10ss recogresed
in equily (231) - B - - = {3.670) (38 814)
Other movements
Purchases (GBV) 1,512 2,068 2,281 1,609 48 124 6,861 6,544
Disposals (WDV) (19) (370) (583) (88) - (16) (1,285) (348)
Deprecation and impairment (896) (449) (1,523) (1,406) (700) (666) (8,310) (7,488)
Transters fromy(to) Cagstal
Work in Progress 14,503 157 346 887 167 - 15,370 1,755
Remnstatement costs for
impared assets I ) I - S : B 220 - 9131 = 3661
Closing balance 36,596 20,393 79,171 74 598 27678 26757 3109 283,610
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E2-1 Fair value measurement (continued)

Bulk earthworks
(non-
Bridges Footpaths depreciable) Stormwater drainage
$ '000 2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024
Opening balance 101,862 72,080 22237 16,887 129 444 75,750 61,179 58 540
Total gains or losses for
the period
Revaluation increments to
equity (ARR) 2,890 28711 B804 5550 3,852 53,703 769 2,958
Impairment loss recogresed
In equity - 2113 - - - - - -
Other movements
Purchases (GBV) 2,020 309 50 182 5,092 - 1,936 333
Disposals (WDV) (598) S (19) (B4) @ ) (178) 42}
Depracation and impairment (1,650) 1311 (341) (318) - - (640) B10)
Transters fromV(to) Capial
Work in Progress 1,364 - - 20 5052 - - -
Ramnstatement costs for
Impairod assels 246 26 - - - - 75 -
Closing balance 106,134 101,862 22,531 22237 143 433 120444 63,141 61,179
Other open space/
Water supply network Library books Sewerage network recreation
§'000 2025 2024 2026 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024
Opening balance 85,074 82 358 351 349 116,002 112214 36,262 20,632
Total gains or losses for
the period
Revaluation increments to
equity (ARR) 2,069 4,040 - - 2,790 5819 1,881 1,760
Impairment j0ss recogresed
in equity - - - - 807 - - -
Other movements
Purchasss (GBV) 736 640 106 103 616 2,106 1,460 1,868
Disposals (WOV) (378) 11) (10) (18) (294) (390) (444) (2,3209)
Depreciation and impairment (1,097) (1.934) (79) (83) (5,335) (5,067) (1,418) (1,194)
Transfers from/(to) Cagstal
Work in Progress a72 563 - - 1925 1179 11,087 6,525
Remnstatement costs for
Impaired assels - - - - - 341 - .
Closing balance 85,976 85,074 368 351 116511 116,002 48,808 36,262
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E2-1 Fair value measurement (continued)

Crown Land Total
$ '000 2025 2024 2025 2024
Opening balance 28,646 27,549 1,035,442 880,603
Revaluation increments to equity (ARR) 147 1,097 31,598 185,104
Impairment loss recognised in equity - - (3.,086) (36,701)
Purchases (GBV) - B 22929 15897
Disposais (WDV) (58) - (3,873) (4,305)
Depreciation and impairment - - (22,889) {20,592)
Transters from/(to) Capital Work in Progress - - 50,505 11,130
Reinstatement costs for impaired assets R R 9714 4306
Closing balance 28,735 28,646 1,120,340 1,035,442

Highest and best use

All of Council's non-financial assets are considered as being utilised for their highest and best use.
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E3-1 Contingencies

The following assets and liabilities do not qualify for recognition in the Statement of Financial Position, but their knowledge
and disclosure is considered relevant to the users of Council's financial report.

LIABILITIES NOT RECOGNISED

1. Guarantees

() Defined benefit superannuation contribution plans
Coungil is party to an Industry Defined Benefit Plan under Active Super — Pool B {the Scheme) which is a defined benefit plan
that has been deamed to be a ‘multi-employer fund for purposes of AASB 119 Employee Benefits for the following reasons:

- Assets are not segregated within the sub-group according to the employess of each sponsoring employer.

— The contribution rates have been the same for all sponsoring employers. That is, contribution rates have not vaned for each
sponsoring employer according to the experience relating to the employees of that sponsoring employer,

- Benefits for employees of all sponsoring employers are determined according 1o the same formulae and without regard to
the sponsoring employer.

~ The same actuarial assumptions are currently usad in respect of the employees of each sponsoring employer.

Given the factors above, each sponsoring employer is exposed to the actuanal risks associated with current and former
employees of other sponsoring employers, and hence shares in the associated gains and losses (to the extent that they are
not borne by members),

Description of the funding arrangements, including the method used to determine Council's rate of contributions and any
minimum funding requirements.

Pooled employers are required to pay future service employer contributions and past service employer contributions to the
Fund.

The future service employer contributions were determined using the new entrant rate method under which a contribution rate
sufficient to fund the total benefits over the working life-time of a typical new entrant is calculated. The current future service

employer contribution rates are:

Division B 1.9 times member contributions for non-180 Point Members;
INil for 180 Point Members®

Division C 2.5% salaries

Division D 1.64 times employeea contributions

* For 180 Point Members, Employers are required to contnbute 8.5% from 1 July 2025 of salaries to these members'
accumulation accounts in line with current level of SG contributions, which are pald in addition to members' defined benefits.

The past service contribution for each Pocled Employer is a share of the total past service contributions of $20.0 million for
1 July 2022 1o 31 December 2024 apportioned according to each employer's share of the accrued liabilities as at 30 June.
Given the funding position of the Fund as at 30 June 2024, it was recommended to cease these past service contributions
effective 1 January 2025,

The adequacy of contributions is assessed at each actuarial investigation which will be conducted annually, the next of which
is due effective 30 June 2025,

Description of the extent fo which Council can be liable to the plan for other counciis’ obligations under the terms and conditions
of the multi-employer plan

As stated above, each sponsoring employer (Council) is exposed to the actuarial nsks associated with current and former
employees of other sponsoring employers and hence shares in the assocated gains and losses.

However, there is no relief under the Fund's trust deed for employers to walk away from their defined benefit obligations.
Under limited circumstances, an employer may withdraw from the plan when there are no active members, on full payment
of outstanding past service contributions. There is no provision for allocation of any surplus which may be present at the date
of withdrawal of the Coundil.

Thare are no specific provisions under the Fund's trust deed dealing with deficits or surplus on wind-up.

There is na provision for allocation of any surplus which may be present at the date of withdrawal of an employer.
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E3-1 Contingencies (continued)
The amount of Council employer contributions to the defined benefit section of the Local Govermment Superannuation Scheme
and recognised as an expense for the year ending 30 June 2025 was $103,452.95. The last formal valuation of the Scheme
was undertaken by the Fund Actuary, Richard Boyfield FIAA as at 30 June 2024.

The amount of additional contributions included in the total employer contribution advised above is $55,443.33. Council's
expected contribution to the plan for the next annual reporting period is $7,765.41.

The estimated employer reserves financial position for the Pooled Employers at 30 June 2025 is:

Fmployar TessTVes oty $millions Asset Coverage
Assets 21976

Past Service Liabllities 2,092.0 105.0%
\Vested Benefits 2,130.4 103.2%

* excluding other accumulation accounts and reserves in both assets and liabilities.

The share of this deficit that |s broadly attributed to Council is estimated to be 0.50% as at 30 June 2025,

Council's share of that deficiency cannot be accurately calculated as the Scheme s a mutual arrangement where assets and
liabilities are pooled together for all member councils. For this reason, no lability for the deficiency has been recognised in
Coundil's accounts. Council has a possible obligation that may anse shoutd the Scheme require immediate payment to correct
the deficiency.

The kay economic long term assumptions used to calculate the present value of accrued benefits are:

JInvestment return 6.0% per annum
[Salary inflation 3.5% per annum
fincrease in CPI 2.5% per annum

The contribution requireaments may vary from the current rates if the overall sub-group experiance is not in line with the actuarial
assumptions in determining the funding program; however, any adjustment to the funding program would be the same for all
sponsoring employers in the Pooled Employers group.

Please note that the estimated employer reserves financial position above s a preliminary calcutation and once all the relevant
information has been received by the Funds Actuary, the final end of year review will be completed by December 2025.

(if) Native Title & Aboriginal Land Claims

Council currently has five claims determined within our Local Government Area by consent. The land affected by the
determinations are primarily Crown Land. Council must ensure compliance with all requirements of native titie legislation prior
to undertaking any work on land for which it is the Crown Land manager. A large number of Aboriginal Land Claims on Crown

Land remain undetermined within the Local Govermment Area. Council must ensure that any work undertaken on land subject
to undetermined Abariginal Land Claim does no impact on the inchoate interest of the applicant ad land council.

{ii) Seif-insurance: NORPOOL

Council has previously entered into an agreement with a number of Local Government Authorities to jointly manage certain
civil liabilities of these Councils which may arise as a result of the exercise of their powsrs, authonities, duties or functions.

The insurance pool known as NORPOOL was wound up during the 2005/2008 financial year with surplus funds distributed to
former members. There are no outstanding claims associated with NORPOOL, however if future claims arise then these will
be the responsibility of the Council to whom the claims relate.

(iv) StateCover Limited

Coundgil is @ member of StateCover Mutual Limited and holds a partly paid share in the entity.

StateCover Is a company providing workers compensation insurance cover to the NSW local government industry and
specifically Coundil.

Coungil has a contingent liability to contribute further equity in the event of the erosion of the company’s capital base as a

result of the company's past performance and/or daims experience or as a result of any increased prudential requirements
from APRA.
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E3-1 Contingencies (continued)

These future equity contnbutions would be required to maintain the company’s minimum level of net assets in accordance
with its licence requirements.

(v) CivicRisk Mutual Ltd

Coundil is a member of CivicRisk Mutual Ltd, a mutual self-insurance scheme providing general insurance to local government.
CivicRisk Mutual Ltd membership includes the potential to share in either the net surplus or deficit of protection years depending
on its past performance. Council's share of the net surplus or deficit reflects Council’s contributions 1o the pool and the result
of insurance claims within each of the fund years. The future realisation and finalisation of claims incurred but not reported
to 30 June 2025 may result in future liabilities or benefits as a result of past events that Counail will be required to fund or
share in respectively.

ASSETS NOT RECOGNISED
(i) Land under roads

As permitted under AASB 1051, Council has elected not to bring to account land under roads that it owned or controlled up
to and including 30/6/08.
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F People and relationships
F1  Related party disclosures

F1-1 Key management personnel (KMP)

Key management personnel (KMP) of the councll are those persons having the authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the council, directly or indirectly.

The aggregate amount of KMP compensation included in the Income Statement is:

$ '000 2026 2024
Compensation:

Short-term benalits 1,515 1,618
Post-employment benefits 142 146
Other long-ferm benefits (112) 48
Termination benedits 187 -
Total 1,732 1,812

Other transactions with KMP and their related parties

Outstanding

Nature of the transaction balances

Transactions including

$'000 Fnt during the year commitments
2025

Employee expenses relating to close family members of KMP 1 91 =
2024

Employse expenses relabng 1o close family members of KMP 1 "7 -

One (1) close family member of Council's KMP are employed by the councl undes the relevant pay award on an arm's length basis,
relationstep no longer slevant from March 2025

F1-2 Councillor and Mayoral fees and associated expenses
$ '000 2025 2024

The aggregate amount of Councillor and Mayoral fees and associated expenses
included in matenals and services expenses in the Income Statement are:

Mayoral fee 47 47
Counailiors’ fees 155 153
Other Councillors’ expenses (including Mayor) i 26 22
Total 228 222
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F1-3 Other related parties

Outstanding

balances

Transactions including

$ '000 “el during the year commitments
2025

NEWLOG 1 39 -
2024

NEWLOG t 38 -

The principal activity of NEWLOG is the checking and enforcement of load weights carried by heavy vehicles on roads
within the member council’s boundaries. NEWLOG operates with the objective to generally advance the aims of
reducing damage to Council and classified roads and promotion of road safety, by policing of vehicle weights as
prescribed in the Acts and Regulations pertinent to overicading.

F2  Other relationships

F2-1 Audit fees
$ '000 2025 2024

During the year, the following fees were incurred for services provided by the auditor
of Coundl, related practices and non-related audit firms

Auditors of the Council - NSW Auditor-General:

(i) Audit and other assurance services

Audit and review of financial statements 126 96
Other assurance services 3 -
Remuneration for audit and other assurance services 7 129 96
Total Auditor-General remuneration 129 96
Total audit fees 129 96
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G Other matters

G1-1 Statement of Cash Flows information

(a) Reconciliation of Operating Result

$ '000 2025 2024
Net operating result from Income Statement 16,111 26,955
Add / (less) non-cash ltems:

Depreciation and amortisation 26,052 23,370
(Gain) / loss on disposal of assets 3,851 4,366
Non-cash capital grants and contributions (734) (712)
Losses/(gains) recognised on fair value re-measurements through the P&L:

- Investments classified as “at fair value’ or ‘held for trading’ (1,480) (1,128)
Unwinding of discount rates on reinstatement provisions 223 104
Movements in operating assets and liabilities and other cash items:

(Increase) / decrease of recelvables (1,143) (2,778)
Increase / (decrease) in provision for impairment of receivables (37) 2
(Increase) / decrease of inventories (237) 100
(Increase) / decrease of other current assets (78) 5
({Increase) / decrease of contract asset 2,255 1411
Increase ( (decrease) in payables 585 (309)
Increase / (decrease) in other accrued expenses payable (340) (925)
Increase / (decrease) in other liabilities 365 (244)
Increase / (decrease) in contract liabllities 7,105 (1,191)
Increase / (decrease) in employes benefit provision 40 424
Increase / (decrease) in other provisions 2,838 18
Net cash flows from operating activities 55376 490 488
(b) Non-cash investing and financing activities

Bushfire grants 685 37
Other dedications 40 675
Estimated future reinstatement costs 14 B8
Total non-cash investing and financing activities 748 800
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G2-1 Commitments

Capital commitments (exclusive of GST)

$ 000 2025 2024

Capital expenditure committed for at the reporting date but not

racognised in the financial statements as liabilities:

Property, plant and equipment

Buildings - 27

Infrastructure — other 12,449 7,301

Plant and equipment 587 260
Total commitments 13,036 7,588

These expenditures are payable as follows:

Within the next year 13036 = 7588
Total payable 13,036 7,588

Details of capital commitments

The capital commitments are comprised of (S000's -

Replacement loadar $462

Replacement drum $125

Tatham Twin Bridges Replacement §7,223

Design and construct Casino Suspension Bridge $3,141

Casino stormwater outlet repairs $1,459

Queen Elizabsth Park electrical sub station $172

Stan Payne Oval cricket nets $135

Survey and design roundabout on Bruxner Highway & Patricia Street $115

D L
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G3 Statement of developer contributions

G3-1 Summary of developer contributions

Cumulative
Opering Contridtions received durlng the year Interest and Held an balance of internal
balance af Cosh Non.cash Land Noo-cash Investment Amounts Internad restricied botrowings
$ 0w 1 July 2624 Oaher Income earned xpen ded L 3 assel m 30 June 2025 toj/trom
Infrastructure — - - - - - - -
Community Services - - - - - - - -
Recrestion & Civil Fackbes - - - - - - - - -
Rural Heawy Haulage 13683 167 - - 7 8) - 1519 -
Quarny Roads m - - - (10) - [ 3} -
Bushfire - - - - - - - -
S7.11 contributions — under a
plan 1424 167 - - 7 (18} - 1,580 -
S7.12 levies ~ under a plan 2054 455 - - " (215) - 2308 -
Total $7.41 and §7.12 revenue
under plans 3478 622 - - 18 (233 - 3885 -
564 contriutions 9,663 826 = = 529 - = 11,038 =
Total contributions 13,161 1,448 - - 547 (233) - 14923 -

Under the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979, local Infrastructure contributions, also known as developar contributions, are charged by councils when new development
oceurs. They help fund Infrastructure like parks, community facilities, local roads, footpaths, stormwater drainage and traffic management. It is possible that the funds contributed may be
less than the cost of this infrastructure, requiring Council to borrow or use general revenue to fund the difference.
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G3-2 Developer contributions by plan

Opering
bafance at
$ 0o 1 .duly 2034

S7.11 contributions - under a plan

CONTRIBUTION PLAN NUMSER 2 - EX RRSC

Quany Roads 7
Rural Hesvy Haulage 1353
Total 1,424

S7.12 Levies — under a plan

CONTRIBUTION PLAN NUMBER 1 - Richmond Valley Council
Sechaon 7,12 Levies 264
Totat 2,054

Contributions received dering the year
Conh Non-cash Land

167 -
167 -

Interest and

Non cash InvessTent
Other Income earned

7

- 7

- "

- 1"

Richmond Valley Counal | Noles 1o the Financial Statements 30 June 2025

o) -

(8)
(18) -

(215) -
(215) .

Held s
restricied
assat mt M June 2025

81
1519
1,580

2,309
2,305

Curmulative
balance of lnternal

(o}/trom

Puna 70 of O4

Item 17.2 - Attachment 1

Page 117



Ordinary Council Meeting 18 November 2025

Richmond Valley Councl | Notes 1o the Financial Statements 30 June 25

End of the audited financial statements
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H Additional Council disclosures (unaudited)

H1-1 Statement of performance measures — consolidated results (graphs)

1. Operating performance ratio

it |
Commentary on 2024/25 result
5 4.94 Purpose of operating
rformance ratio : .
S Pe 202425 ratio  (19.02)%
;',’ 3 Councifls operating pedommance rafio bas dedensed
B o 10 -19.02% for 2024/2025 Thes rato excludes far
e il value gains on iInvestments whech ncreased fom
This rabo measures Counal's 20232024 and has lurther besn ynpacied by
1% achevemeant of containing chanpes in the advance payrment amount of the
16.63 operating expenditure wihin financial assistance grant from the Federal
0 19.02 operatng revenue Government, with 85% beng advance paid n
i 20232024 and only 50% in 202472025, resulling in &
2 | decrease in operatng income refative to operatng
2023 2024 2025 expenditure
Benchmark — > 0.00% Ratio achieves benchmark
Source of benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting . Rattio s outside benchmark

2. Own source operating revenue ratio

80
Commentary on 2024/25 result
70 Purpose of own source
@ p— ‘ operating revenue ratio 2024125 ratic  54.00%
50 49.63
# 4520
5 an
0 This ratio heasures hscal Council's an source operstng revenue ralio has
flexbilty It 1s the degree of increased skghly 1o 54%, remaining below the
20 reliance on extemal funding benchmark of 80% but tending upwards This is
sources such as operaing grants lwgedy due to a decrease i overall grants and
10 and contnbutions CoMnbutions in COMPanson 1o prenous years
4] h—
2023 2024 2025
Benchmark: — » 60.00% Ratio acheves benchmark
Source of benchmark Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting B Ratio s outside banchmark

3. Unrestricted current ratio

£
Commentary on 2024/25 result
14 Purpose of unrestricted
T a2es 298 OUTHIR (O 202425 ratio  2.36x
24 2.36
~ :
S 2
5 16 — To assess the adequacy of
working capdal and Its abity o Counail’s unrestncied current rain has decreasead o
1 sanisty obhkgations in the short 236 however remains well above the benchmark of
teem for the unrestncted activities 1 50 and relabvely consistent with previous years
05 of Counal
0 — . — —_—
2023 2024 2025
Benchmark - > 1 .50x Ratio achweves benchimark
Source of benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and F inancial Reporting B Rstio s outsade benchmark
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H1-1 Statement of performance measures — consolidated results (graphs) (continued)

QLDobt service cover ratio
7

2024

Commentary on 2024/25 result
¢ Purpose of debt service
5.11 cover ratio
5
x4 e
i
measures Council's detit service cover rato has decreased to
. wmm:hb 2 75 and remains above the benchmark of >2.00.
service dedt including inferest, Nbdmhamnumwm
principal and lease payments myﬂmmmunm
l less cash ava sarvice the repayment of

Benchmark: —

»200x

Source of benchmark Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting

5. Rates and annual charges outstanding percentage

I Ratio acheves benchmark
W Ratio s outsde benchmark

15
Purpose of rates and Commentary on 2024/25 result
128 annual charges i
. outstanding percentage
!
5 "
B Counal's rates and anmua outstand
2 mmmummnnanx;?
5 To asseay the impact of remaing below the benchrark of 10%. The
uncollected rates and anrual mw:mm«mwnwmmt
chamges on Counals kqudity and levees its water and sewerage annual charges n
25 the adequacy of recovery efforts amears. Counal actively monitors and pursues
outstanding bafances through I0s debt recovery
0 pPrachices.
024 2025

Benchmark: =

<10.00%

Source of berchmark Code of Accounting Practice and Fmancial Reporting

6. Cash expense cover ratio

| Rato achives benchmark
B Ratio s cutsde benchmark

1S

I Commentary on 2024/25 resuit
134 Purpose of cash -
expense cover ratio
- 10
£
E s
g This gty ratio indicales the Council's cash expense cover mlio has slightly
5 number of months a Council can decreased 10 022 This illustrates that Council
continue paying for #s immediate continues to hold hgh levels of cash and cash
25 expenses without additonal cash | | equivalents. This ratio is well above the benchmark
nfiow. af >3 months
¢
2024 2025

Benchmark —

>3 00months

Source of benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting

1 Ratio achieves benchimark
B Rstio s outside banchmark
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H1-2 Council information and contact details

Principal place of business:
10 Graham Place
Casino NSW 2470

Contact details

Mailing Address:
Locked Bag 10
CASINO NSW 2470

Telephone: 02 6660 0300

Officers
GENERAL MANAGER
Vaughan Macdonald

RESPONSIBLE ACCOUNTING OFFICER
Hayley Martin

Auditors

Audit Office of New South Wales
GPO Box 12

SYDNEY NSW 2001

Other information
ABN: 54 145907 009

Opening hours:

Office Hours: 8:00am - 4:30pm
Cashier Hours: 8:00am - 4.00pm
Monday to Friday

Internet: www.nchmondvalley nsw.gov.au
Email: council@richmondvalley.nsw.gov.au

Elected members
MAYOR
Robert Mustow

Councillors
Stephen Morrissey
Sam Comish
Robert Hayes
Sandra Humphrys
Lyndall Murray
John Walker
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
Report on the general purpose financlal statements
Richmond Valley Council

To the Councillors of Richmond Valley Council

Opinion

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Richmond Valley Council (the Council), which
comprise the Statement by Councillors and Management, the Income Statement and Statement of
Comprehensive Income for the year ended 30 June 2025, the Statement of Financial Position as at

30 June 2025, the Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended,

and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policy information and other
explanatory information,

In my opinion:

. the Council's accounting records have been kept in accordance with the requirements of the Local
Government Act 1993, Chapter 13, Part 3, Division 2 (the Division)
. the financial statements:

- have been prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the requirements of the
Division

- are, in all material respects, consistent with the Council's accounting records

- present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Council as at

30 June 2025, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards

. all information relevant to the conduct of the audit has been obtained
. no material deficiencies in the accounting records or financial statements have come to light
during the audit.

My opinion should be read in conjunction with the rest of this report.

Basis for Opinion

I conducted my audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under the
standards are described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’
section of my report.

| am independent of the Council in accordance with the requirements of the:

. Australian Auditing Standards

. Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 ‘Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (including Independence Standards)' (APES 110).

Level 19, Darling Park Tower 2, 201 Sussex Street, Sydney NSW 2000
GPO Box 12, Sydray NSW 2001 | t 02 5275 7101 | mah@audit.nsw. gov.au | sudt nsw.gov.au
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Parliament promotes independence by ensuring the Auditor-General and the Audit Office of
New South Wales are not compromised in their roles by:

. providing that only Parliament, and not the executive government, can remove an Auditor-General
. mandating the Auditor-General as auditor of councils
. precluding the Auditor-General from providing non-audit services.

I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with APES 110.

I believe the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit
opinion.

Other Information

The Council’s annual report for the year ended 30 June 2025 includes other information in addition to the
financial statements and my Independent Auditor's Report thereon, The Councillors are responsible for
the other information. At the date of this Independent Auditor's Report, the other information | have
received comprise the special purpose financial statements and Special Schedules (the Schedules).

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information. Accordingly, | do not
express any form of assurance conclusion on the other information. However, as required by the Local
Government Act 71993, | have separately expressed an opinion on the special purpose financial
statements and Special Schedule - Permissible income for general rates.

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

if, based on the work | have performed, | conclude there is a material misstatement of the other
information, | must report that fact.

| have nothing to report in this regard.

The Councillors’ Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Councillors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Local Government Act 1993, and for such
internal control as the Councillors determine is necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, the Councillors are responsible for assessing the Council’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting,

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

My objectives are to:

. obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

. issue an Independent Auditor's Report including my opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee an audit conducted in
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect material misstatements.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error. Misstatements are considered material if, individually or in
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions users take based on
the financial statements,

A description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located at the Auditing and
Assurance Standards Board website at: wyyw . auash gov. au/auditors responsibiliies/ard pdf, The
description forms part of my auditor’s report.
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The scope of my audit does not include, nor provide assurance:

. that the Council carried out its activities effectively, efficiently and economically

. on the Original Budget information included in the Income Statement, Statement of Cash Flows,
and Note B5-1 "Material budget variations’

. on the Special Schedules, A separate opinion has been provided on Special Schedule - Permissible
income for general rates

. about the security and controls over the electronic publication of the audited financial statements
on any website where they may be presented
. about any other information which may have been hyperlinked to/from the financial statements.
(V1%

Jan-Michael Perez
Delegate of the Auditor-General for New South Wales

30 October 2025
SYDNEY
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CrRobert Mustow

Mayor Contact: Jan-Michael Perez
Richmond Valley Council Phoneno: 029275 7115
Locked Bag 10 Our raf: RO0B-1981756498-5657
CASINO NSW 2470

30 October 2025

Dear Mayor

Report on the Conduct of the Audit
for the year ended 30 June 2025

Richmond Valley Council

I have audited the general purpose financial statements (GPFS) of the Richmond Valley Council (the
Council) for the year ended 30 June 2025 as required by section 415 of the Local Government Act 1993
(the Act).

| expressed an unmodified opinion on the Council's GPFS.

My audit procedures did not identify any instances of material non-compliance with the financial
reporting requirements in Chapter 13, Part 3, Division 2 of the LG Act and the associated regulation ora
material deficiency in the Council’s accounting records or financial statements. The Coungcil’s;

. accounting records were maintained in a manner and form to allow the GPFS to be prepared and
effectively audited
. staff provided all accounting records and information relevant to the audit.

This Report on the Conduct of the Audit (the Report) for the Council for the year ended 30 June 2025 is
issued in accordance with section 417 of the Act. The Report:

. must address the specific matters outlined in the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice
and Financial Reporting 2024-25
. may include statements, comments and recommendations that | consider to be appropriate based

on the conduct of the audit of the GPFS.

This Report should be read in conjunction with my audit opinion on the GPFS issued under section 417(2)
of the Act.

Lavel 10, Darting Park Tower 2, 201 Sussex Street, Sydney NSW 2000
GPO Box 12, Sydney NSW 2001 | 102 5278 7101 | mad@oudit. new.gov.ou | sudiLnsw.gov.ou
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INCOME STATEMENT

Financial performance

<
B
]
=
8

2025 2024

$m $m

Rates and annual charges
revenue

33.7 324

Grants and
contributions provided for 15.3 13.3
operating purposes revenue

Grants and
contributions provided for 31.9 41.4
capital purposes revenue

Operating result

2 D 7 16.1 27.0
from continuing operations

Net Operating result for the
year before grants and
contributions provided for
capital purposes

(15.8) (14.4)

aaapp,

Operating result from continuing operations

This graph shows the operating result
from continuing operations for the
current and prior two financial years,

Operating result from continuing operations

Council's operating result from
continuing operations for the year was 40 4
$10.9 million lower than the 2023-24
result,

The result was largely driven by lower
capital grants and contributions
recognised during the year; higher 20 4 151
depraciation charges driven by 2
increases in the fair value of Council
non-financial assets in 2023-24; and
higher employee related expenditure. 2 1

$ millon
c

20243 2024 2025
Year ended 30 June
. O perating resull from continumg apsrations
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Income

Council revenue

This graph shows the composition of
Council's revenue recognised for the
current and prior two financial years,

Council's proportion of revenue from
grants and contributions reduced from
54 percentin 2023to 45 per cent in
2025, mainly attributable to lower
capital grants and reducing natural
disaster funding. As a result, the
proportion of council revenue from
rates and annual charges, and user
fees and charges increased from 38
per cent in 2023 to 49 per cent in 2025,

Grants and contributions revenue

This graph shows the amount of grants
and contributions revenue recognised
for the current and prior two financial
yoars,

Grants and contributions revenue
($47.2 million) decreased by
$7.6 million (13.8 per cent) in 2024-25

due to:

* decrease of $7.1 million in capital
grants received by Council for
sporting grounds, parks and
facilities

*  receiving half of the financial
assistance grants for 2025-26in
advance (85 per cent for 2024-25).

Total revenue (%)

$ milion

100
20
80
70
60

40
30
20
10

® Ratens and annual charges

B Grants and contributions

Composition of council revenue

2023 2024
Year ended 30 June

® Usear charges and faes

® Other ravanue

Grants and contributions revenue

2024 2025
Year ended 30 June
B Grants and contributions - capital

B Grants and contributions - opearating
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CASH FLOWS

Statement of cash flows

The Statement of Cash Flows details the Council's inflows and outflows of cash over a specific period. It
helps in assessing the Council's ability to generate cash to fund its operations, pay off debts, and support
future projects. It also aids in identifying any pressures or issues in the Council operating in a financially
sustainable manner,

This graph shows the net cash flows for

: £ Net cash flows for the year
the current and prior two financial

80 4

years,
The net cash flows for tha year were
negative $14.6 million {negative
$17.9 million in 2023-24).
In 2024-25 the net cashflows: §
+  from operating activities Increased
by $5.9 million, mainly due to "
higher receipts from rates and
annual charges and user charges
and fees, offset by higher
payments to employees
*  from investing activities remained
largely consistent with last year (100) 4
*  trom financing activities 2023 2024 2025

decreased by $2.7 million mainly
due to the absence of proceeds
from borrowings.

Year ended 30 June

_ Opersting actvities  Investing activities
m— Financing activitius e Nt cash flown

FINANCIAL POSITION

Cash, cash equivalents and investments

This section of the Report provides details of the amount of cash, cash equivalents and investments
recorded by the Council at 30 June 2025.

Externally restricted funds are the cash, cash equivalents and investments that can only be used for
specific purposes due to legal or contractual restrictions.

Cash, cash equivalents, and investments without external restrictions can be allocated internally by the
elected Council's resolution or policy. These allocations are matters of Council policy and can be
changed or removed by a Council resolution.

Cash, cash equivalents 2025 2024 Percentage Commentary

and investments of total
cash and
investments
2025
$m $m %
Total cash, cash Externally restricted balances are those which
equivalents and 80.1 82.3 are only available for specific use due to a
investments rastriction placed by legislation or third-party

contract, A breakdown of the sources of
axtarnally restricted balances is included in
the graph below.

Rastricted and allocated
cash, cash equivalents
and investments:
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$m $m %

External restrictions 57.7 49.8 72.0 Intemal sllocations are determined by council
policies or decisions, which are subject to
change,

At 30 June 2025 the Councit holds $70,000 in
unrestricted and unallocated cash, cash
equivalents and investments,

Intermal allocations 224 32.3 280

This graph shows the sources of externally
restricted cash, cash equivalents and
investments.

Source of externally restricted cash, cash
equivalents and Investments

In 2024-25 the Council’s main sources of
externally restricted cash, cash

equivalents and investments include: Developer

contributions
26%

* developer contnibutions of Othar
$14.9 million which increased by 41%
$1.8 miltion

*  water charges of $7.1 million which
Increased by $1.0 million

*  sewer charges of $4.1 million which
decreased by $2.1 million

+ domestic waste management charges Domastic
of $8.0 million which increased by wasta
$3.1 million. msn agflmem Sewer

Other externally restricted cash, cash g 7%

equivalents comprise of specific purpose

unexpended grants, stormwater

management and other restricted funds.

Council liquidity

Water
12%

This graph shows the Council's
unrestricted current ratio for the
current and prior two financial years, 3.5

Unrestricted current ratio

3
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20024 2025

The unrestricted current ratio is 2.9

3 4 e LT

specific to local government and
represents council’s ability to meet its 25
short-term obligations as they fall due, y
The ratio measures the ratio of >
unrestricted current assets to current 51
liabilities less specific purpose
2023

2.4
BN

Ratlo (x)

liabilities.

As an insight, in 2023-24, the average 0.5 -
unrastricted current ratio was an n
average of 3.1 for regional councils.

As at 30 Juns

— nrestricted current ratio

--------- Linear (Unrestricted current rabo)
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This graph shows the number of Available cash to cover expenses
months of general fund expenses 10 <
(excluding depreciation and borrowing ald
costs), Council can fund from its
available cash, cash equivalents and
investments (not subject 1o external
restrictions),

Further details on cash, cash
equivalents and investments including
the sources of external restrictions are
included in the section above. 2

Months

Council's available cash, cash
equivalents and investmeants are 3
sufficient to cover 5.8 months of future 2023
expenses, Yaar ended 30 June

I Y R Months of expensas met by avalable cash, cash equivalam
As an insight, in 2023-24, the available snd it R '
cash to cover expenses was an average veevaesse Linoar (Months of ¢

of 7months for regional councils., sauivatens and Investments)

2024

p mat by avalatie cash, cash
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Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment

This graph shows how much the
Council spent on renewing and
purchasing assets in 2024-25, 13.7

Capital expenditure by assetclass

Council renewed $32.5 million of
Infrastructure, property, plant and
equipment during the 2024-25
financial year. This was mainly spent
on roads and large capital renewals in
prograss, including major projects
such as Tatham bndges replacement |
and Casino Sewage Treatmeant Piant 2 4
replacement. A furthar $12.6 million
was spent on new assets across Canitol Work aulk Rosds Blarnd Gthe
variety of asset classes during the In prograss  asrttvwork T AP MM

current year, footpethm  furniture and

o Oty hitangs

$ million
A

rond ansetn
Assctolass

8 Capinl axpenditure in 2024-25

Debt

The table below provides an overview of the Council's loans and committed borrowing facilities.
Committed borrowing facilities are an element of liquidity management and include bank overdrafts, and

credit cards.
Debt 2025 2024 Commentary
$m $m
Loans 14.6 185 The decrease in loans during the year was primarily due
to the repayment of $3.9 million.
Approved ovardraft facility 0.5 0.5 The approved overdraft facility remained unchanged
Amount drawn down . . during the year, and no drawdowns were made.
Cradit card facility 0.1 0.1 The creditcard facilty remained unchanged during the
Adboui used - . Yyear, with only an insignificant amount utilised.
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Debt service cover

This graph shows the Council’s debt
service cover ratio for the current and Debt service cover ratio
prior two financial years, )

The debt service cover ratio measures
the operating cash to service debt

including interest, principal and lease 4 4
payments.

The increase In the operating result
bafore capital excluding interest and
depreciation at 30 June 2025 has
resulted in a slight increase of the
current year ratio.

Ratio (x)

2023 2024 202%
Year endod 30 June

S Debt sarvice cover iatio

P

Jan-Michael Perez
Director, Financial Audit

Delegate of the Auditor-General
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Richmond Valley Council

SPECIAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2025
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Richmond Valley Council

Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2025

Contents Page

Statement by Councillors and Management 3
Special Purpose Financial Statements:

Income Statement of water supply business activity
Income Statement of sewerage business activity
Income Statement of Petersons Quarry

Income Statement of Woodview Quarry

Statement of Financial Position of water supply business activity
Statement of Financial Position of sewerage business activity
Statement of Financial Position of Petersons Quarry

Statement of Financial Position of Woodview Quarry

T0ve Nowus

Note - Material accounting policy information 12

Auditor's Report on Special Purpose Financial Statements 15

Background

i. These Special Purpose Financial Statements have been prepared for the use by both Council and the Office of Local
Government in fulfilling their requirements under National Competition Policy,

ii. The principle of competitive neutrality is based on the concept of a Tevel playing field” between persons/entities competing
in a market place, particularly between private and public sector competitors.

Essentially, the principle Is that govemment businesses, whether Commonwealth, state or local, should operate without
net competitive advantages over other businesses as a result of their public ownership.

iil. For Council, the principle of competitive neutrality and public reporting applies only to declared business activities.

These include (a) those aclivities classified by the Australian Bureau of Statistics as business activites being water
supply, sewerage services, abattoirs, gas production and reticulation, and (b) those activities with a tumover of more
than $2 million that Council has formally declared as a business activity (defined as Category 1 activities)

iv. In preparing these financial statements for Council’s self-classified Category 1 businesses and ABS-defined activities,
councils must (a) adopt a corporatisation model and (b) apply full cost attribution including tax-equivalent regime
payments and debt guarantee fees (where the business benefits from Council's borrowing position by comparison with
commercial rates),

Pan 2 817
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Richmond Valley Council | Special Purpose Financial Statements 2025

Richmond Valley Council

Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2025

Statement by Councillors and Management

Statement by Councillors and Management made pursuant to the Local Government Code of
Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting

The attached special purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with:

NSW Government Palicy Statement, Appiication of National Competition Policy to Local Gavernment

Division of Local Govemment Guidelines, Pricing and Costing for Council Businesses: A Guide fo Compelitive Neutrality
The Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting

Sections 3 and 4 of the NSW Depariment of Climate Change, Energy, the Enviranment and Water's (DCCEEW)
Regulatory and assurance framework for local water utitiies, July 2022

To the best of our knowledge and belief, these statements:
+ present fairy the operating result and financial position for each of Council's declared business activities for the year,
« accord with Coundil's sccounting and other records; and
+ present overhead realiocation charges to the water and sewerage businesses as fair and reasonable,

We are not aware of any matter that would render these statements false or misieading in any way.

Signed In accordance with a resolution of Council made on 21 October 2025,

e

Robert Mustow Stephen Marrissey

Mayor Deputy Mayor

21 October 2025 21 October 2025

Ben Zeller Hayley Martin

Acting General Manager Responsible Accounting Officer
21 October 2025 21 October 2025
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Richmond Valley Council | Income Statement of water supply busness achivity | for the year ended 30 June 2025
Richmond Valley Council

Income Statement of water supply business activity
for the year ended 30 June 2025

$'000 Hoans 2025 2024
Income from continuing operations

Access charges 1,982 1,854
User charges 6,352 6,063
Interest and Investment income 551 366
Fees 289 222
Grants and contributions provided for operating purposes 24 22
Total income from continuing operations ) 9,198 8,567
Expenses from continuing operations

Employee benefits and on-costs 1,802 1,598
Materials and services 3,569 3833
Depraciation, amortisation and impairmment 2,020 1,955
Water purchase charges 1,524 1,385
Net loss from the disposal of assets 378 611
Calculated taxation equivalents - 35 35
Total expenses from continuing operations 9328 9417
Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations before capital amounts (130) (850)
Grants and contributions provided for capital purposes 342 452
Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations after capital amounts 212 (398)
Surplus (deficit) from all operations before tax 212 (398)
Surplus (deficit) after tax 212 (398)
Plus opening accumulated surplus 27,625 27,988
Plus adjustments for amounts unpaid:

— Taxation equivalent payments 35 35
Closing accumulated surplus 27,872 27,625
Return on capital % (0.1)% (0.9)%
Calculation of dividend payable:

Surplus (deficit) after tax 212 (398)
Less: capital grants and contributions (excluding developer contributions ) (342) (452)

Surplus for dividend calculation purposes & 4

Potential dividend calculated from surplus - -

Pan A M7
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Richmond Valley Council | Income Statement of sewerage busness achivity | for the year ended 30 June 2025

Richmond Valley Council

Income Statement of sewerage business activity
for the year ended 30 June 2025

$'000 2025 2024
Income from continuing operations
Access charges 8,803 8,161
User charges 1,891 1,778
Fees 445 197
Interest and investment income 697 591
Grants and contributions provided for operating purposes 12 28
Other income R 18
Total income from continuing operations 11,848 10,774
Expenses from continuing operations
Employee benefits and an-costs 2,235 1,656
Borrowing costs 342 433
Materials and services 4,718 4,498
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 5416 5,146
Net loss from the disposal of assets 294 306
Calculated taxation equivalents 80 74
Total expenses from continuing operations 13,085 12,113
Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations before capital amounts (1,237) (1,339)
Grants and contributions provided for capital purposes B39 2419
Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations after capital amounts (398) 1.080
Surplus (deficit) from all operations before tax (308) 1,080
Surplus (deficit) after tax (398) 1,080
Plus opening accumulated surplus 48,763 47609
Plus adjustments for amounts unpaid:
- Taxation equivalent payments 80 74
Closing accumulated surplus 48,445 48,763
Return on capital % (0.7)% (0.7)%
Calculation of dividend payable:
Surplus (deficit) after tax (398) 1,080
Less: capital grants and contributions (excluding developer contnbutions) (839) (2,419)
Surplus for dividend calculation purposes - xS
Potential dividend calculated from surplus - -
Pama Al 17
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Rachmond Valiey Council | Income Statement of Petersons Quarry | for the year ended 30 June 2025

Richmond Valley Council

Income Statement of Petersons Quarry

for the year ended 30 June 2025

2025 2024
$'000 Category 2 Category 2
Income from continuing operations
Fees 662 860
Interest and investiment income 8 117
Other income 20 20
Total income from continuing operations 690 997
Expenses from continuing operations
Materials and services 138 135
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 12 15
Calculated taxation equivalents 3 3
Total expenses from continuing operations 153 153
Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations before capital amounts 537 844
Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations after capital amounts 537 844
Surplus (deficit) from all operations before tax 537 844
Less: corporate taxation equivalent (25%) [based on result before capital] (134) (211)
Surplus (deficit) after tax 403 633
Plus opening accumulated surplus 2,039 3,108
Plus adjustments for amounts unpaid:
~ Taxation equivalant payments 3 3
- Corporate taxation equivalent 134 211
Less:
- Dividend paid (246) (1,9186)
Closing accumulated surplus 2,333 2039
Return on capital % 25.6% 408%
Calculation of dividend payable:
Surplus (deficit) after tax . 403 833
Surplus for dividend calculation purposes 403 633
Potential dividend calculated from surplus 201 317
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Richmond Valley Council | Income Statement of Woodview Quarry | for the year ended 30 June 2025
Richmond Valley Council

Income Statement of Woodview Quarry
for the year ended 30 June 2025

2025 2024
$'000 Category 2 Category 2
Income from continuing operations
Fees 503 668
Interest and investment income 9 123
Other income 10 5
Total income from continuing operations 522 796
Expenses from continuing operations
Borrowing costs o 14
Materials ard services 149 130
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 13 9
Calculated taxation equivalents 16 113
Total expenses from continuing operations 178 166
Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations before capital amounts 344 630
Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations after capital amounts i 344 830
Surplus (deficit) from all operations before tax 344 630
Less: corporate taxation equivalent (25%) [based on result before capital] (86) (158)
Surplus (deficit) after tax 258 472
Plus opening accumulated surplus 1,999 2,768
Plus adjustments for amounts unpaid:
— Taxation equivalent payments 16 13
- Corporate taxation equivalent 86 158
Less:
— Dividend paid (382) (1,412)
Closing accumulated surplus 1,977 1998
Return on capital % 16.0% 30.8%
Cailculation of dividend payable:
Surplus (deficit) after tax 258 472
Surplus for dividend calculation purposes 258 472
Potential dividend calculated from surplus 129 236
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Richmond Valley Council

Statement of Financial Position of water supply business activity

as at 30 June 2025

$ '000

ASSETS
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments
Receivables
Inventones

Total current assets

Non-current assets
Recelvables

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
Total non-current assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities
Payables

Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Payables

Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets

EQUITY
Accumulated surplus

IPPE revaluation surpius

Total equity

Richmond Valley Counct | Statement of Financal Postion of water supply business activity | as at 30 June 2025

2025 2024
3,152 4328
7.614 5,056
1,667 1,764
218 -

12,651 11,148

445 416
90311 896s1

90,756 80,067

103,407 101,215

1 100

1 100

- 25

- 25

1 125

103406 101,090

27,872 27625
7553 73465

103,406 101,090
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Richmond Valley Council

Statement of Financial Position of sewerage business activity

as at 30 June 2025

$ '000

ASSETS
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments
Receivables
Inventones

Total current assets

Non-current assets
Recelvables

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
Total non-current assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities
Payables

Borrowings

Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings

Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets

EQUITY
Accumulated surplus

IPPE revaluation surplus

Total equity

Richmond Valley Counal | Statement of Financial Posshion of sewerage business activity | as at 30 June 2025

2025 2024
10,117 0,926
3,277 3022
2,256 2112
53 -
15,703 15,060
540 493
126,528 125422
127,077 125,915
142,780 140,975
56 76
1,767 1,673
1,823 1,749
4,469 6,236
4,469 6236
6,292 7,985
136,488 132,990
48,445 48,763
88,043 84,227
136,488 132,990
Pasn Q17
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Richmond Valley Counct | Statement of Financal Position of Petersons Quarry | as at 30 June 2025
Richmond Valley Council

Statement of Financial Position of Petersons Quarry

as at 30 June 2025

2025 2024
$'000 Category 2 Category 2
ASSETS
Current assets
Investmaents 1,755 1,449
Total current assets 1,755 1,449
Non-current assets
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment 2,008 2,067
Total non-current assets 2,008 2,067
Total assets ' 3853 3,516
Net assets 3,853 3,516
EQUITY
Accumulated surplus 2,333 2,039
Revaluation reserves 1,520 1,477
Total equity 3,853 3,516
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Richmaond Valley Council | Statement of Financial Position of Woodview Quarry | as at 30 June 2025

Richmond Valley Council

Statement of Financial Position of Woodview Quarry

as at 30 June 2025

2025
$'000 Category 2
ASSETS
Current assets
Investmaents 1,698
Total current assets 1,698
Non-current assets
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment 2,150
Total non-current assets 2,150
Total assets - 3,848- '
LIABILITIES
Non-current labllities
Provisions 415
Total non-current liabilities 415
Total liabilities 415
Net assets 3,433
EQUITY
Accumulated surplus 1,977
Revaluation reserves 1,456
Total equity 3,433

2024
Category 2

1,693
1,693

2,080
2,000
3,783

337
337

337
3,446

1,909
1,447

3,446
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Richmond Valley Council | Special Purpose Financial Statements 2025

Note — Material accounting policy information

A statement summarising the supplemental accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the special purpose financal
statements (SPFS) for National Competition Policy (NCP) reporting purposes follows.

These financial statements are SPFS prepared for use by Council and the Office of Local Government. For the purpeses of
these statements, tha Council is a non-reporting not-for-profit entity.

The figures presented In these special purpose financial statements have been prepared In accordance with the recognition
and measwement criteria of relevant Australian Accounting Standards, other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian
Accounting Standards Board (AASB) and Australian Accounting Interpretations.

The disclosures in these special purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Local Government
Act 1993 (Act), the Local Government (General) Regulation 2021 (Regulation) and the Local Government Code of Accounting
Practice and Finandial Reporting.

The statements are prepared on an accruals basis, They are based on historic costs and do not take into account changing
money values or, except where specifically stated, fair value of non-current assets. Certain taxes and other costs, appropriately
described, have baen imputed for the purposes of the National Competition Policy.

The Statement of Financial Position includes notional assats/iabilities recaivable from/payable to Council's general fund. These
balances reflect a notional intra-entity funding arrangement with the deciared business activities.

National Competition Policy

Council has adopted the principle of ‘competitive neutrality” in its business activities as part of the National Competition Policy
which is being applied throughout Australia at all levels of government. The framework for its application is set out in the June
1998 NSW Government Policy statement titled 'Application of National Competition Policy to Local Government'. The Pricing
and Costing for Council Businesses — A Guide to Compelitive Neutrality issued by the Office of Local Government in July
1997 has also been adopted,

The pricing and costing guidelines outline the process for identifying and allocating costs to activities and provide a standard
for disclosure requirements. These disclosures are reflected in Coundil's pricing and/or financial reporting systems and include
taxation equivalents, Council subsidies, and returns on investments (rate of return and dividends paid).

Declared business activities

In accordance with Pricing and Costing for Council Businesses — A Guide to Competitive Neutrality, Council has declared that
the following are to be considered as business activities:

Category 1
(where gross operating tumover is over $2 milbon)

a. Water Supplies
Comprising the whole of the operations and assets of the water supply systems, which service the towns of Broadwater,
Casino, Coraki, Evans Head and Woodburn.

b. Sewerage Services
Comprising the whole of the operations and assets of the sewerage reticulation and treatment systems, which service the
towns of Casino, Broadwater, Coraki, Evans Head, Rileys Hill and Woodbum.

Category 2
(whare gross operaling lumaover is less than $2 mifion)

a, Petersons Quarry
Coundil has leased out this quarry and receives rental payments from the sales tied to extraction rates of the lessee.
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Richmond Valley Council | Special Purpose Financial Statements 2025
Note — Material accounting policy information (continued)

b. Woodview Quarry
Council has leased out this quarry and receives rental payments from the sales tied to extraction rates of the lessea.

Taxation equivalent charges

Council is liable to pay vanous taxes and financial duties. Where this is the case, they are disclosed as a cost of operations
just like all other costs.

However, where Council does not pay some taxes which are generally paid by private sector businesses, such as income
tax, these equivalent tax payments have been applied 1o all Council-nominated business activities and are reflected in Special
Purpose Financial Statements.

For the purposes of disclosing comparative information relevant to the private sector equivalent, the following taxation
aquivalents have been applied to all Council-nominated business activities (this does not include Council's non-business
activities):

Notional rate applied (%)

Corporate income tax rate — 25.0% (LY 25%)

Land tax - the first $1,075,000 of combined land values attracts 0%. For the combined land values in excess of $1,075,000 up
to $6,571,000 the rate is 1.6% + $100. For the remaining combined land value that exceeds $6,571,000 a premium marginal
rate of 2.0% applies.

Payroll tax ~ 5.45% on the value of taxable salaries and wages In excess of $1,200,000.

In accordance with DCCEEW's regulatory and assurance framework, @ payment for the amount caloulated as the annual tax
equivalent charges (excluding income tax) must be paid from water supply ard sewerage business activities,

The payment of taxation equivalent charges, referred to in the regulatory and assurance framework as a ‘dividend for taxation
equivalent, may be applied for any purpose allowed under the Act.

Achievement of substantial compliance to DCCEEW's regulatory and assurance framework is not a prerequisite for the
payment of the tax equivalent charges; however the payment must not exceed $3 per assessment.

Income tax
An income tax equivalent has been applied on the profits of the business activities,

Whilst income tax is not a specific cost for the purpose of pricing a good or servica, it needs to be taken into account in terms
of assassing the rate of return required on capital invested.

Accordingly, the return on capital invested is set at a pre-tax level - gain/{loss) from ordinary activities before capital amounts,
as would be applied by a private sector competitor. That is, it should inciude a provision equivalent to the corporate income
tax rate, currently 25.0%.

Income tax is only applied where a gain/ (loss) from ordinary activities before capital amounts has been achieved.

Since the taxation equivalent is notional — that is, it is payable to Council as the ‘'owner’ of business operations - it represents
an internal payment and has no effect on the operations of the Council. Accordingly, there is no need for disciosure of internal
charges in the SPFS.

The rate applied of 25.0% is the equivalent company tax rate prevalent at reporting date. No adjustments have been made
for variations that have occurred during the year.

Local government rates and charges

A calculation of the equivalent rates and charges for all Category 1 businesses has been applied to all assets owned, or
exdusively used by the business activity,

Loan and debt guarantee fees
The debtguarantee fee is designed to ensure that Council business activities face 'true’ commercial borrowing costs in line with

private sector competitors. In order to calculate a debt guarantee fee, Coundil has determined what the differential borrowing
rate would have baen betweean the commercial rate and Council's borrowing rate for its business activities.
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Richmond Valley Council | Special Purpose Financial Statements 2025

Note — Material accounting policy information (continued)

(i) Subsidies

Government policy requires that subsidies provided to customers, and the funding of those subsidies, must be explicitly
disclosed. Subsidies occur where Council provides services on a less than cost recovery basis. This option is exercised on a
range of services in order for Council to meet its community service obligations. The overall effect of subsidies is contained
within the Income Statements of business activities.

(1) Return on Investments (rate of return)

The NCP policy statement requires that councils with Category 1 businesses ‘would be expected to generate a return on capital
funds employed that is comparable to rates of retum for private businesses operating in a simiar field".

Funds are subsequently available for meeting commitments or financing future investment strategies. The rate of return is
disclosed for each of Council’s business activities on the Income Statement.

The rate of return is calculated as follows:

Operating result before capital income + interest expense

Written down value of |,PP&E as at 30 June

As a minimum, business activities should generate a retumn equal to the Commonwealth 10 year bond rate which is 4.16%
at 30/6/25.

(iii) Dividends
Coundil is not required to pay dividends to either itself (as owner of a range of businesses) or to any external entities.

Local government water supply and sewerage businesses are permitted to pay an annual dividend from its water supply or
sewerage business surplus,

Each dividend must be calculated and approved in accordance with DCCEEW's regulatory and assurance framework and
must not exceed:

+  50% of this surplus in any one year, or
» the number of water supply or sewerage assessments at 30 June 2025 multiplied by $30 (less the payment for tax
equivalent charges, not exceeding $3 per assessment).

in accordance with DCCEEW's regulatory and assurance framework, statement of compliance and statement of dividend
payment, dividend payment form and unqualified independent financial audit report are submitted to DCCEEW.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
Report on the special purpose financlal statements
Richmond Valley Council

To the Councillors of Richmond Valley Council
Opinion

I have audited the accompanying special purpose financial statements (the financial statements) of
Richmond Valley Council’s (the Council) Declared Business Activities, which comprise the Statement by
Councillors and Management, the Income Statement of each Declared Business Activity for the year
ended 30 June 2025, the Statement of Financial Position of each Declared Business Activity as at 30 June
2025 and the Material accounting policy information note,

The Declared Business Activities of the Council are:

. water supply
. sewerage
. Petersons Quarry

. Woodview Quarry,

In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Council’'s declared Business Activities as at 30 June 2025, and their financial performance for the year
then ended, in accordance with the Australian Accounting Standards described in the Material
accounting policy information note and the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial
Reporting 2024-25 (LG Code).

My opinion should be read in conjunction with the rest of this report.

Basis for Opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under the
standards are described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements'
section of my report.

tam independent of the Council in accordance with the requirements of the:

. Australian Auditing Standards

. Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 ‘Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (including Independence Standards)' (APES 110).

Parliament promotes independence by ensuring the Auditor-General and the Audit Office of
New South Wales are not compromised in their roles by:

. providing that only Parliament, and not the executive government, can remove an Auditor-General
. mandating the Auditor-General as the auditor of councils
. precluding the Auditor-General from providing non-audit services.

| have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with APES 110.

I believe the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit
opinion.

Level 19, Darling Park Tower 2, 201 Sussex Street, Sydney NSW 2000
GPO Box 12, Sydray NSW 2001 | t 02 5275 7101 | mah@audit.nsw. gov.au | sudt nsw.gov.au
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Emphasis of Matter - Basis of Accounting

Without modifying my opinion, | draw attention to the Material accounting policy information note to the
financial statements which describes the basis of accounting, The financial statements have been
prepared for the purpose of fulfilling the Council's financial reporting responsibilities under the LG Code.
As a result, the financial statements may not be suitable for another purpose.

Other Information

The Council's annual report for the year ended 30 June 2025 includes other information in addition to the
financial statements and my Independent Auditor’'s Report thereon. The Councillors are responsible for
the other information. At the date of this Independent Auditor’s Report, the other information | have
received comprise the general purpose financial statements and Special Schedules (the Schedules).

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information. Accordingly, | do not
express any form of assurance conclusion on the other information. However, as required by the Local
Government Act 1993, | have separately expressed an opinion on the general purpose financial
statements and Special Schedule 'Permissible income for general rates’.

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work | have performed, | conclude there is a material misstatement of the other
information, | must report that fact.

| have nothing to report in this regard.

The Councillors’ Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Councillors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements and
for determining that the accounting policies, described in the Material accounting policy information note
to the financial statements, are appropriate to meet the requirements in the LG Code. The Councillors'
responsibility also includes such internal control as the Councillors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation and fair presantation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Councillors are responsible for assessing the Council’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

My objectives are to:

. obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

. issue an Independent Auditor's Report including my opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee an audit conducted in
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect material misstatements,
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error. Misstatements are considered material if, individually or in
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions users take based on
the financial statements.

Adescription of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located at the Auditing and
Assurance Standards Board website at: wyyw auash gov au/auditors responsibhilites/ard pdf. The
description forms part of my auditor's report.

Pano 1R 17
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The scope of my audit does not include, nor provide assurance:

. that the Council carried out its activities effectively, efficiently and economically

. about the security and controls over the electronic publication of the audited financial statements
on any website where they may be presented

. about any other information which may have been hyperlinked to/from the financial statements.

P

Jan-Michael Perez
Delegate of the Auditor-General for New South Wales

30 October 2025
SYDNEY
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Richmaond Vakey Councd | Permssible income or general rates | for the year ended 30 June 2025

Richmond Valley Council

Permissible income for general rates

Calculation Calculation

$'000 Putes 2024/25 2025/26

Notional general income calculation '

Last year notional general income yield . 18,311 17,020

Plus or minus adjustments * b 33 19

Notional general income c=a+h 16,344 17,039

Permissible income calculation

Percentage increase d 4.60% 3.90%

Plus percentage increase amount * f=dxfcsel 752 665

Sub-total g=(cee=l) 17,096 17,704

Plus {or minus) last year's carry forward total h (86) (6)

Less valuation objections claimed in the previous year I - (4)
Sub-total J=h+1) (86) (10)

Total permissible income k=g+| 17,010 17,694

Less notional general income yield I 17,020 17,699

Catch-up or (excess) result m=kol (10) (5

Plus income lost due to valuation objections claimed * " 4 -
Carry forward to next year * pEmene e (6) (5)

Notes

(1) The notional general income will nol reconcile with rate Income in the financial statements In the coresponding year The stalements afe
reported on an accrual accounting basis whech include amounts that redate to prior years' rates income

@

Adjustments account for changes in the number of assessments and any increase or decrease in land value occurnng durng the year
I'he adjustments are called ‘supplementary valuations' as defmed in the Valuation of Land Act 1916 (NSW)

131 The ‘percentage increase’ is inclusiva of the rate-peg parcentage, and/or special vanation and/or Crown land adyustment (where
applicable)

41 Valuation obyections are unexpected changes in land values &5 a resull of land owners successiully objecting Lo the fand value issued by
the Valuer Geneml Councids can daim the value of the ncome lost due to valuabon obechons in any single year

®

Carry-forward amounts which are in excess (an amount that exceeds the permissible income) require Minstenal approval by order
published in the NSW Government Gazette in accordance with secton 512 of the Act The OLG wil extract these amounts from
Council's Permissible income for generml rates Statement in the financial data return (FDR) to administer this process

Pan Uk 11
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
Special Schedule - Permissible income for general rates
Richmond Valley Council

To the Councillors of Richmond Valley Council
Opinion

I have audited the accompanying Special Schedule - Permissible income for general rates (the Schedule)
of Richmond Valley Council (the Council) for the year ending 30 June 2026,

In my opinion, the Schedule is prepared, in all material respects in accordance with the requirements of
the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting 2024-25 (LG Code) and is in
accordance with the books and records of the Council,

My opinion should be read in conjunction with the rest of this report.

Basis for Opinion

I conducted my audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under the
standards are described in the *Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Schedule’ section of my
report.

Iam independent of the Council in accordance with the requirements of the:

. Australian Auditing Standards

. Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 ‘Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (including Independence Standards)' (APES 110).

Parliament promotes independence by ensuring the Auditor-General and the Audit Office of
New South Wales are not compromised in their roles by:

. providing that only Parliament, and not the executive government, can remove an Auditor-General
. mandating the Auditor-General as auditor of councils
. precluding the Auditor-General from providing non-audit services.

I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with APES 110.

I believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
audit opinion.

Emphasis of Matter - Basis of Accounting

Without modifying my opinion, | draw attention to the special purpose framework used to prepare the
Schedule. The Schedule has been prepared for the purpose of fulfilling the Council’s reporting obligations
under the LG Code. As a result, the Schedule may not be suitable for another purpose.

Level 19, Darling Park Tower 2, 201 Sussex Street, Sydney NSW 2000
GPO Box 12, Sydray NSW 2001 | t 02 5275 7101 | mah@audit.nsw. gov.au | sudt nsw.gov.au
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Richmond Vabkey Councd | Permessible income for general rates | for the year ended 30 June 2025

Other Information

The Council's annual report for the year ended 30 June 2025 includes other information in addition to the
Schedule and my Independent Auditor’s Repart thereon, The Councillors are responsible for the other
information. At the date of this Independent Auditor’'s Report, the other information | have received
comprise the general purpose financial statements, special purpose financial statements and Special
Schedule ‘Report on infrastructure assets as at 30 June 2025,

My opinion on the Schedule does not cover the other information. Accordingly, | do not express any form
of assurance conclusion on the other information. However, as required by the Local Government Act
1993, | have separately expressed an opinion on the general purpose financial statements and the special
purpose financial statements.

In connection with my audit of the Schedule, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Schedule or my
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work | have performed, | conclude there is a material misstatement of the other
information, | must report that fact.

I have nothing to report in this regard.

The Councillors’ Responsibilities for the Schedule

The Councillors are responsible for the preparation of the Schedule in accordance with the LG Code, The
Councillors' responsibility also includes such internal control as the Councillors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of the Schedule that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the Schedule, the Councillors are responsible for assessing the Council’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting,

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Schedule

My objectives are to:

. obtain reasonable assurance whether the Schedule as a whole is free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error

. issue an Independent Auditor's Report including my opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee an audit conducted in
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect material misstatements.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error. Misstatements are considered material if, individually or in
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions users take based on

the Schedule.
Adescription of my responsibilities for the audit of the Schedule is located at the Auditing and Assurance
Standards Board website at: www suash gov au/suditors responsibilities/ar8 pdf. The description forms
part of my auditor’s report.
Parn & 11
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Richmond Vabey Councd | Permssible income for general rates | for the year ended 30 June 2025

The scope of my audit does not include, nor provide assurance:

. that the Council carried out its activities effectively, efficiently and economically

. about the security and controls over the electronic publication of the audited Schedule on any
website where it may be presented

. about any other information which may have been hyperlinked to/from the Schedule.

P

Jan-Michael Perez
Delegate of the Auditor-General for New South Wales

30 October 2025
SYDNEY
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Richmond Valley Council

Report on infrastructure assets as at 30 June 2025

Estimated cost
Estimated cost to bring to the

Rchmond Valley Council | Report on infrastructure assets as al 30 June 2025

Assets in condition as a percentage of

to bring assets agreed level of 2024/25 202426 Gross
to satisfactory servicesetby  Required Actual Netcarrying replacement IRNS Mpisciment oot
Asset Class Asset Category standard Council maintenance * maintenance amount cost (GRC)
$°000 $ '000 $ "000 $'000 $'000 $ 000 1 2 3 4 5

Buildings Buildings - specialised 83 83 397 314 79171 107,590 409% 361% 139% 02% 00%

Sub-total 63 63 397 314 79,171 107,590 499% 36.1% 139% 02% 0.0%
Other structuresOther structures 35 35 6 " 27.715 34,134 890% 90% 19% O01% 00%

Sub-total 35 35 6 " 27,715 34,134 89.0% 9.0% 19% 01% 0.0%
Roads Sealed roads 31,944 31544 2178 2820 301,903 412,569 722% 190% 64% 15% 10%

Unsealed roads 12,867 12,867 1,181 2660 8,987 44 988 11.7% 453% 314% 107% 10%

Bridges 7,481 7.481 75 201 108,155 146,510 181% 523% 17.9% 116% 02%

Footpaths 22 22 46 17 22,531 24 340 928% 55% 13% 05% 00%

Buik earthworks L e - = 143,433 .= 00 00% 00% 00% 00%

Sub-total 52,314 52,314 3,480 6,498 583,000 628,407 56.0% 28.1% 10.7% 4.4% 0.8%
Water supply  Water supply network 885 885 535 608 85976 127,424  388% 262% 324% 26% 02%
network Sub-total 885 885 535 609 85,976 127,424 38.8% 262% 324% 26% 0.0%
Sewerage Sewerage network 6,788 6,788 1551 1,584 _ 18511 201711 334% 238% 330% 73% 25%
network Sub-total 6,788 6,788 1,551 1,584 116,511 201,711 334% 238% 330% T.3% 28%
Stormwater Stormwater drainage 2,159 2158 203 297 63,141 78,336 443% 345% 144% B1% O07%
drainage Sub-total 2,159 2,159 203 297 63,141 78,336 44.3% 345% 144% 61% 0.7%
rrewdinnan fan navl asna Pann Tnf 11
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Richmond Valley Council

Report on infrastructure assets as at 30 June 2025 (continued)

Estimated cost
Estimated cost to bring to the

Rchmond Valley Council | Report on infrastructure assets as al 30 June 2025

Assets in condition as a percentage of

to bring assets agreed level of 2024/25 202425 Gross
1o satisfactory servicesetby  Required Actusl Netcarrying repiscement 08 Fpisciment cost
Asset Class Asset Category standard Council maintenance * maintenance amount cost (GRC)
$°000 $'000 $ 000 $ '000 $'000 $ '000 1 2 3 4 5
SRR i Oer Oper Sipwcs Reamiin 140 140 153 159 48771 59224 seom 103 24% 0% 0
assets Sub-total 140 140 153 159 48,771 50,224  86.9% 103% 24% 03% 0.1%
Total — all assets 62,384 62,384 6,325 9,472 1,004,264 1,236,826 51.7% 26.9% 16.4% 41% 0.9%

18l Required mainknance is 1he amount iantified in Councl's assel management plans

Infrastructure asset condition assessment ‘key’

Condition

Good
Satisfactory
Poor

Very poor

LN -3

Excellentivery good

Integrated planning and reporting (IP&R) description

No work required (normal maintenance)
Only minor maintenance work required
Maintenance work required

Renewal required

Urgent renewal/upgrading required

Pann Anf 11
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Richmond Valey Counall | Report on infrastructure assets as at 30 June 2025
Richmond Valley Council

Report on infrastructure assets as at 30 June 2025

Infrastructure asset performance indicators (consolidated) *

Amounts Indicator Indicators Benchmark
$'000 2025 2025 2024 2023
Buildings and infrastructure renewals ratio
Asset renewais ' 16,932

Dep jon; amortiaaion and Impainment 24.769 68.36% 61.29% 182.51% > 100.00%

Infrastructure backlog ratio
Estimated cost to bring assets to a satisfactory

standard 62,384 6.10% 6.86% 3.86% < 2.00%
Net carrying amount of infrastructure assets 1,023,310

Asset maintenance ratio

Actual assel maintenance 9,472

Required asset maintanance 6.325 149.75% 131.27%  177.87% > 100.00%

Cost to bring assets to agreed service level

Estimated cost to bring assets to

an agreed service level set by Council 62,384 5.04% 5.26% 2.79%
Gross replacement cost 1,236,826

M Al asset parformance indicators are calculated using classes idensified in the previous lable

M Assal renewals represent the replacement and/or refurbishment of exisiing assels 10 an equivalent capaclyperfarmance as opposed (o
the acquisition of new assets (or the refurbishment of old assets) that ncreases capacity/perdormance

Pan Qs 11
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Richmond Valley Council

Report on infrastructure assets as at 30 June 2025

Bulldlnp and Infrastructure renewals ratio
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Buildings and Commentary on result
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Rchmond Valley Council | Report on infrastructure assets as al 30 June 2025

Asset maintenance ratio
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Rchmond Valley Council | Report on infrastructure assets as al 30 June 2025
Richmond Valley Council
Report on infrastructure assets as at 30 June 2025

Infrastructure asset performance indicators (by fund)

General fund Water fund Sewer fund Benchmark
$ ‘000 2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024
Buildings and Infrastructure renewals ratio
Asset renewals '
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 66.20% 57.34% @ ” 0.00% - > 100.00%
Infrastructure backiog ratio
Estimated cost to bring assets to a satisfactory standard
Net carrying amount of infrastructure assets 6.67% 7.55% 1.03% 1.00% 5.83% 6.46% <2.00%
Asset maintenance ratio
Actual asset maintenance -
Required aasel malnienance 171.72% 145.53% 113.83% 109.87% 102.13% 97 .64% > 100.00%
Cost to bring assets to agreed service level
Estimated cost to bring assels to an agreed service level set by
Council 6.03% 8,13% 0.69% 0.69% 3.37% 3.84%

Gross replacement cost

") Asset renewals represent the replacement andior refurteshment of exsting assets to an equivalent capacty/perdformance as opposad o the acquisiion of new assets (or the mfurbishment of old assets) thal
ncreases capacity/performance

Pana 11 nf 11
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Richmond Cancise Investment Report Pack
Valley Richmond Vatiey Council
Coungil 1 October 2025 to 31 October 2025
1. Portfolio Valuation As At 31 October 2025
% Waeighted
Security Face Value  Face Value Total Running Running
Fixed Interest Security Rating Onginal Current Market Value Value  Yield Yield
At Call Deposit
C8A Business Online Saver Acct RVC At Call SAPSTA1+ 10,385.000.00 10,385,000.00 10,385,000.00 10.97% 3.35%
C8A General Fund Bk Acct RVC At Call SEPSTAT+ ©669,180.18 669,180.18 669,180.18 0.71% 260%
CBA Trust Acct RVC At Call S&PSTA1+ 87,050.17 87.050.17 8705017 0.09% 230%
MACQ 940323454 At Call Moodys A2 10,029,725.90 10,029,725.90 10,029,725.90 10.80% 3.50%
NAB Business Cheque Acct RVC At Call S8PSTA+ 12.32 12.32 1232 0.00%  0.00%
21,170,968.57 21,170.968.57 21,170,968.57 22.37% 0.77%
Floating Rate Note
Auswide 1.5 17 Mar 2026 FRN Moodys Baa2 1,000,000.00 1,000,00000 1,000,000.00 106% 4.23%
Auswide 1.6 22 Mar 2027 FRN Moodys Baa2 1,500,000.00 1,500,000.00 1,500,000.00 158% 4.05%
CACU 1.7 21 Sep 2026 FRN S&P BBB- 1,750,000.00 1,750,000.00 1,750,000.00 1.85% 5.08%
MACQ 0.48 08 Dec 2025 FRN Moodys A2 1,000,380.00 1,000,3%0.00 1,000,390.00 1.06% 4.48%
JUDO 1.45 13 Jun 2028 FRN S&P BBB 1,500,000.00 1,500.000.00 1,500,000.00 1.58% 4.96%
6,750,390.00 6,750,390.00 6,750,390.00  7.13% 0.33%
Fixed Rate Bond
NTTC 1.1 15 Dec 2025 - lssued 10 October 2021 - Richmond Council Fixed Moodys Aa3 2,000,000.00 200000000 200000000 211% 1.10%
BOQ4.7 27 Jan 2027 Fixed S&P BBB+ 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1.06%  5.60%
3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 3.17% 0.11%
Unit Trust
NSWTC Long Term Growth Fund UT 3,000000.00 408698841 408698841 432% 20.40%
NSWTC Medim Term Growth Fund UT 11,005,029.35 14635379.12 14,635,379.12 15.46% 11.88% o
14,005029.35 18,722,367.53 18,722,367.53 19.78% 2.72%
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Richmond Concise Investment Report Pack
Vallgy Richmond Vatiey Council
Coungil 1 October 2025 to 31 October 2025
1. Portfolio Valuation As At 31 October 2025
Term Deposit
AMP 4.45 24 Nov 2025 180DAY TD Moodys STP-2  2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2000,000.00 2.11% 4.45%
AMP 4.3 07 Jan 2026 160DAY TD Moodys STP-2  3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 3.17% 4.30%
AUBANK 4.33 08 Apr 2026 182DAY TD S&PSTA2 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 200000000 2.11% 4.33%
Auswide 4.2 09 Sep 2026 365DAY TD Moodys STP-3  2,000,000.00 2,000,00000 200000000 211% 4.20%
BBA 4.15 02 Mar 2025 182DAY TD S&PSTA2 4,000,000.00 4,000,00000 4,000,000.00 4.23% 4.15%
BBA 4.30 12 Feb 2025 155DAY TD S&P ST A2 3,000,000.00 3,00000000 300000000 317% 4.30%
BOQ 4.45 06 Nov 2025 183DAY TD S&P STA2 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 200000000 2.11% 4.45%
BOQ 4.35 02 Dec 2025 1800AY TD S&P ST A2 2,000,000.00 2000,000.00 2000,000.00 2.11% 4.35%
BOQ4.25 31 Mar 2025 182DAY TD S&P STA2 2,000,000.00 200000000 200000000 211% 4.25%
HEART 4.35 30 Sep 2026 3650AY TD Fitch STF3 1,000.000.00 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1.06% 4.35%
ING 5.17 21 Nov 2025 365DAY TD S&P ST A1 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1.06% 5.17%
NAB 4.30 28 Sep 2026 367TDAY TD S&P ST AT+ 2,000,000.00 200000000 200000000 211% 430%
PCU 4.35 01 Apr 2026 180DAY TD S&P STAZ 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2.11% 4.35%
RABO 4.32 05 Feb 2026 182DAY TD S&P ST A1 2,000,000.00 200000000 200000000 211% 4.32%
RABO 4.36 30 Apr 2026 182DAY TD S&P ST A1 3,000,000.00 300000000 3,000,000.00 317% 4.38%
RCU 4.3 08 Dec 2025 123DAY TD Unrated STUR  2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2.11% 4.30%
RCU 4.3 10 Mar 2026 183DAY TD Unrated STUR  2,000,000.00 2,000,00000 200000000 211% 4.30%
RCU 4.3 11 Mar 2026 182DAY TD Unrated STUR  2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 200000000 211% 4.30%
SCCU 4.3 10 Mar 2026 182DAY TD Unrated STUR  2,000,000.00 2,000,00000 2,000,000.00 211% 4.30%
SYD 4.55 01 Dec 2025 180DAY TD Unrated STUR  2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2.11% 4.55%
SYD 4.25 10 Mar 2026 183DAY TD Unrated STUR  2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2000,000.00 211% 4.25%
45,000,000.00 45,000,000.00 45,000,000.00 47.55% 2.07%
Porifoli Tota 89,926 387.92 04,543 126 10 94,643,726.10 100 00% S

Item 17.3 - Attachment 1

Page 164



Ordinary Council Meeting 18 November 2025

Richmond Concise Investment Report Pack
Valley Richmond Vallay Council
Council | October 2025 to 31 October 2025

2. Portfolio Valuation By Categories As At 31 October 2025

% Total

Security Type Market Value Value Market Value by Security Type

Fixed Rate Bond 3,000,000.00 3.17%

At Call Deposit 21,170,968.57 22.37%

Term Deposit 45,000,000.00 47.55%

Fioating Rate Note 6,750,390.00  7.13% . F-x-d"am ao'na

Unit Trust 18,722,367.53 19.78% = At Call Deposit
- i

Portfolio Total 94,643,726.10 100.00% Term Deposit

» Floating Rate Note

Unit Trust
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Richmond Conclse Investment Report Pack
v Vallay Richmond Valley Council

Coungil 1 October 2025 to 31 October 2025
2. Portfolio Valuation By Categories As At 31 October 2025
Issuer Market Value % Total Value

K 5,000,000.00 5.28% Market Value by Issuer
Australian Unity Bank 2,000,000.00 2.11%
Auswide Bank Limited 4,500,000,00 4.75% » AMP Bank
Bank of Queensiand 7,000,000.00 7.40%
Bank of Sy(j\gy 4.000.000.00 4.23% » Australian Unaty Bank
Beyond Bank 7,000,000.00 7.40%
Commonwealth Bank of Australia Ltd 11,141,230.35 1.77% e e
Hearttand Bank 1,000,000.00 1.06%
llawarra Cradit Union 1,750,000.00 1.85% SR Omm—
ING Bank 1,000,000.00 1.06% » Bank of Sydney
Judo Bank 1,500,000.00 1.58%
Macquarie Bank 11,030,115.90 11.65% » Bayond Sank
Move Bank 6,000,000.00 6.34%
National Australia Bank Ltd 2,000,012.32 2.11% e —
Northern Territory Treasury Corporation 2,000,000.00 2.11% = ,,:ﬂ.,.d Bank
NSW Treasury Corporation 18,722,367.53 19.78%
Police Bank 2,000,000.00 2.11% » Bawarra Credit Union
Rabobank 5,000,000.00 5.28%
Southern Cross Credit Union 2,000,000.00 2.11% » ING Bank
Portfolo Total 04,643,726.10 100.00% < Sk Bonk

» Macguarie Bank
Move Bank

Nationa| Australia Bank Ltd
Northern Territory Treasury
Carpaoration

NSW Treasury Corporation
Police Bank

ia bobank

Southern Cross Credit Union
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3. Investment Revenue Received For 1 October 2025 to 31 October 2025
Settlement  Face Value (Basis of Consideration

Securky aoad Date Interest Calculation)  Notional icome Type

DEF 4.8 03 Oct 2025 182DAY TD Defenca Bank Ltd 3 Oct 2025 2,000,000.00 47,868.49 Security Coupon Interest

NAB 4.25 08 Oct 2025 90DAY TD National Australia Bank 30 Oct 2025 2,000,000.00 20,958.91 Security Coupon Interest

RABO 4.5 30 Oct 2025 182DAY TD Rabobank Australia Limited 30 Oct 2025 1,000,000.00 22,438.36 Security Coupon Interest

AMP 5 30 Oct 2025 273DAY TD AMP Bank Lid 30 Oct 2025 2,000,000.00 74,794.52 Security Coupon Interest

Other Macquarie Bank Ltd 31 Oct 2025 29,725.90 Bank Interest

Other Commonwealth Bank 31 Oct 2025 34,694.61 Bank Interest

Other Commonwealth Bank 31 Oct 2025 2,937 .21 Bank Interest

Other Commonwealth Bank 31 Oct 2025 170.05 Bank Interest
233,588.05

Medium Term Growth Fund NSW Treasury Corporation 144,020.25 Fair Value Gain/(Loss)

Long Term Growth Fund NSW Treasury Corporation 68,161.00 Fair Value Gain/{Loss)
212,181.25

TOTAL 445,769.30
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4. Comparison of Investment Revenue Eamed to Original Budget and Investment Portfolio by Month 2025 - 2026 YTD

Comparison of Investment Revenue Earned to Original Investment Portfolio by Month
Budget 120,000,000.00

3,000,000
100,000,000.00
2,500,000

80,000,000.00

2,000,000
60,000,000.00

1,500,000

40, !
1,000,000 0,000,000.00
500,000 20,000,000.00
] .00
Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov  Dec Jan Feb

Mar Apt May Jun

il Mg Sep Oct Nov Det Jan Febs Na Apt May lun

_— Curnilative Total  se—Orignal Bucget W2024/25 wJ025/2026
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5. Environmentally Sustainable Investment Performance Report for the Period Ending 31 October 2025 Relative To 30

September 2025,
Portfolio Summary by Fossil Fuel Lending ADIs

g:mga:t;g ADIs % Joto) Curent Peiod % Tota' Prios Period Fossil Fuel vs Non Fossil Fuel Lending ADI
Bank of Queensland 1.1% 1,000,000.00 1.0% 1,000,000,00
Commonwealth Bank of Australia Ltd 11.8% 1114123035 134% 12.873,021.95
ING Bank Australia Limited 1.1% 1,000,000.00 1.0% 1,000,000.00
Macquarie Bank 11.7% 11,030,11590 115% 11,026,046.94
National Australia Bank Lid 2.1% 200001232 42% 4.000.01232 = Fossil Fuel Lending ADis
27.7% 26,171,358.57 31.1% 29,899,081.21 (31.1%)
Non Fossil Fuet Lending ADIs » Non Fossil Fuel Lending
Auswide Bank Limited 48% 4500,00000 47% 4.500,000.00 ADIs (68.9%)
Australian Unity Bank 2.1% 2,000,00000 00% 0.00
AMP Bank 5.3% 500000000 73% 7.000,000.00
Bank of Queensland 6.3% 6,000,00000 62% 6,000,000.00
Bank of Sydney 42% 400000000 42% 4,000.000.00
Beyond Bank 7.4% 700000000 73% 7,000000.00
Defence Bank 0.0% 000 21% 2,000,000.00
Heartland Bank 1.1% 1,000,000.00 1.0% 1.000,000.00
liawarra Credit Union 1.8% 1,750,00000 18% 1.750.000.00
Judo Bank 1.6% 1,500,000,00 16% 1,500,000,00
Move Bank 6.3% 6,000,00000 62% 6,000.000.00
Northern Territory Treasury Corporation 2.1% 2,000,00000 21% 2,000,000.00
NSW Treasury Corporation 10.8% 18,722,367.53 192% 18,510,186.28
Police Bank 2.1% 200000000 00% 0.00
Rabobank 53% 500000000 3.1% 3,000,000.00
Southern Cross Credit Union 2.1% 2000,00000 21% 2000,000.00
72.3% 68,472,367.53 68.9% 66,260,186.28
Total Portfolio 94,643,726.10 96,159,267.49

All amounts shown in the table and charts are Current Face Values.

The above percentages are relative to the portfolio total and may be affected by rounding.
A fossil fuel lending ADI appearing in the non-fossil fuel related table will indicate that the
portfolio contains a "green bond” issued by that ADI,

Note: AMP has been reclassified during May to a non-fossil fuel lending ADI
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Disdlaimer:

Laminar Capital Pty Ltd ABN 33 134 784 740 (AFSL 476686), its officers, employees, agents and associates {“Associates”) from time to time hold interests in securities of, or eam brokerage,
fees and other benefits from, corporations or investment vehicles referred to in documents provided to clients, All information contained herein is confidential and proprietary to Laminar Capital
and, accordingly, this matenial is not to be reproduced in whole or in part or used for any purpose except as authorised by Laminar Capital. It is to be treated as strictly confidential and not
disclosed directly or indirectly fo any other person, firm or entity.

Distribution of this information 1o anyone other than the original recipient and that party’s advisers is unauthonsed. Any reproduction of these matenals, in whole or in part, or the divulgence of
any of its contents, without the prior consent of Laminar Capital is prohibited. Any securities recommendation or comments (including an epinion) contained in this document is general advice
anly and does not take into account your personal objectives, financial situation or needs. Laminar Capital is not acting In a fiduciary capacity. Recommendations or statements of opirson
expressed may change without nctice. You should not act on a recommendation or statement of opinion witheut first considering the appropriateness of the general advice to your personal
circumstances or consulting your investment advisor to determine whether the recommendation or statement of opinion is appropniate for your investment objectives, financial situation or needs.

Laminar Capital believes that the information contained in this document is accurate when issued, Laminar Capital does not warrant that the information contained herein is accurate, reliable,
complete or up-to-date, and, to the fullest extent permitted by law, disciaims all liability of Laminar Capital and fts Associaltes for any loss or damage suffered by any person by reason of the use
by that person of, or their relance on, any information contained in this document or any error or defect in this document, whether arising from the negligence of Laminar Capital or its
Associates or otherwise, No action should be taken on the basis of or in reliance on the information, opinions or condusions contained in this document.

Laminar Capital acts as principal when we buy and sell fixed interest securities in the secondary markets. The yield that we quote to you incorporates any margin that we may receive. The
margin is the difference between the price at which we, as principal, buy the secwrity and the price at which we sell the secunity to you. Laminar Capital may also receive placement fees from
Issuers for distributing secunties on their behalf.

This document is not, and is not intended to be, an offer or invitation for subscription or sale, or a recommendation, with respect to any securities, nor is it to form the basis of any contract or
commitment. This document does not purport to identify the nature of the specific market or other risks associated with these products. Before entenng into any transaction in refation fo the
products, the investor showutd ensure that it fully understands the terms of the products and the transaction, relevant risk factors, the nature and extent of the investor's risk of loss and the nature
of the contractual relationship inte which the investor is entering. Prior to investing in these products, an investor should determine, based on its own independent review and such professional
advice as it deems appropaate, the economic risks and merits, the legal, tax accounting characteristics and nisk, and the consequences of an investment in them. This is not a substantive
commentary or analysis by Laminar Capital and has not been prepared as a research product or comments by a research analyst.

LAMINAR CAPITAL PTY LTD
ACN 134 784 740
WWW.LAMINARCAPITAL . COM.AU

MELBOURNE OFFICE: LEVEL 5 RIALTO NORTH, 525 COLLINS STREET, MELBOURNE, VIC 3000 T 61 3 5001 6990 F 61 3 9001 6933
SYDNEY OFFICE: LEVEL 18 ANGEL PLACE, 123 PITT STREET, SYDNEY NSW, 2000 T 61 2 8084 1230
BRISBANE OFFICE: LEVEL 15 CENTRAL PLAZA 1, 345 QUEEN STREET, BRISBANE QLD, 4000 T 61 7 3123 5370
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